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AUDITORS' REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Shareholders of
ACCIONA, S.A.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Acciona, S.A. (the Parent) and Subsidiaries
(the Group), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2013 and the related
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and notes to the consolidated
financial statements for the year then ended. As indicated in Note 2.1 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, the Parent’s directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union and the other provisions of the regulatory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Group. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole based on our audit work performed in accordance with the audit
regulations in force in Spain, which require examination, by means of selective tests, of the evidence
supporting the consolidated financial statements and evaluation of whether their presentation, the
accounting principles and policies applied and the estimates made comply with the applicable
regulatory financial reporting framework.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements for 2013 present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of Acciona, S.A. and
Subsidiaries at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated results of their operations and their
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and the other provisions of the regulatory financial
reporting framework applicable to the Group.

Without qualifying our audit opinion, we draw attention to Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the accompanying consolidated financial statements include significant
impairment losses, due mainly to the new legislation affecting the renewable energy industry. The
aforementioned impairment losses were recognised mainly on the basis of the parameters established in
the regulations, currently in the process of being approved, to implement Royal Decree-Law 9/2013,
which came into force on 14 July 2013, which has had a significant impact on the business plan of the
Group's Energy Division and on the assumptions included therein. Notes 2, 4, 6 and 28 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements include the effects arising from the aforementioned
regulatory change and the assumptions used by the directors to calculate these impacts, which constitute
their best estimates at the date of preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.




The accompanying consolidated directors’ report for 2013 contains the explanations which the directors
of Acciona, S.A. consider appropriate about the Group’s situation, the evolution of its business and
other matters, but is not an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. We have checked that
the accounting information in the consolidated directors' report is consistent with that contained in the
consolidated financial statements for 2013. Our work as auditors was confined to checking the
consolidated directors’ report with the aforementioned scope, and did not include a review of any
information other than that drawn from the accounting records of Acciona, S.A. and Subsidiaries.

DELOITTE, S.L.

Registered in ROAC UNDER NO. S0692
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[ CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS FOR 2013 and 2012 (Ihousands of eares) .~ . - |
—— — . T

CNete 3RS
Property, plant and equipment 4 8,513,655 10,144,316
Investment property 5 315,325 327,082
Goodwill 97,407 1,048,086
Other intangible assets 679,444 806,486
Non-current financial assets 10 183,712 130,285
Investments accounted for using the proportional method 8 161,515 148,725
Biological assets 11 6,830 6,825
Defetred tax assets 23 1,053,581 928,421
Non-current receivables and other non-current assets 12 514,455 430,896
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 11,525,924 13,971,122
Bioclogical assets 11 - -
Inventories 13 1,047,145 1,183,045
Trade and other receivables 14 1,859,052 2,370,601
Other current financial assets 10 368,653 369,914
Current income tax assets 23 96,999 62,572
Other current assets 181,799 237,613
Cash and cash equivalents 15 1,247,944 1,196,105
Non-current assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations 24 456,119 428,325
CURRENT ASSETS 5,257,711 5,848,175
|_IO_I'AL ASSETS © 16,783.638  19,819297
LIABILTIIES AND FQUITY Note 31/12/13 314202
Share capital 57,260 57,260
Retained eamings 3242767 5,153,741
Treasury shares (6,461) (4,107
Translation differences (63,628) 22,828
Interim dividend - -
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent 3,229,938 5,229,722
Non-controlling interests 169,145 278,548
EQUITY 16 3.399,083 5,508.270
Debt instruments and other marketable securities 21 251,853 269,304
Bank borrowings 18 5,988,012 6,669,477
Defetred tax liabilities 23 833,478 910,416
Provisions 17 517,529 550,034
Other non-current liabilities 22 532,438 471,320
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,123,310 8.870.551
Debt instruments and other marketable securities 21 162,406 6,542
Bank borrowings 18 1,929,792 2,102,269
Trade and other payables 2,206,928 2,335,187
Provisions 186,354 173,176
Current income tax liabilitics 23 25,916 30,735
Other current liabilities 22 468,092 484,892
]511:‘1:3;:::11[6; :gs:;;?;zi l\:\;ﬁh non-current assets classified as held for sale and 24 281754 107,675
CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,261,242 5,440.476
"TOT AL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,753,635 © 19,818,297

The accompanying Notes 1 to 37 are an integral part of the consolidated balance sheet for 2013.
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(‘O‘N‘i{)l IDATEDR INCOME: STATEMENTS FOR 2013 and 012 .

{THiousanils of eriros).
| NOLE ™ 2m3. 22 7|
Revenue 26 6,607,009 7.015,960
Other income 364,586 500,496
Changes in inventories of finished gocds and work in progress 3,978 (7.466)
Procurements 27 (1,531,817 (1,656,283)
Staff costs 27 (1,334,360) (1,325,461)
Other operating expenses 27 (2,881,113) (3,096,671)
Depreciation and amortisation charge and change in provisions and atlowances 45727 (1,152,737) (741,153)
Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of non-current assets 26 (1,840,854) (45,699)
Other gains or losses (5,628) 2477
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (1,770.936) 646,200
Finance income 29 73,444 74,716
Finance costs 29 (475,064) (501,517)
Translation differences (18,752) 28,588
Net gains/losses arising from changes in value of financial instruments at fair value 20 5,209 (3.254)
Net gains/losses arising from changes in value of non-financial assets at fair value - =
Result of companies accounted for using the equity method 8 11,878 780
PROTFIT BEFORE TAX (2,174.221) 245,513
Income tax expense 23 145,781 61,331}
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (2,028,440) 184,182
| Profit/Loss after tax from discontinued operations 24 - .j
[ PROFIT FOR THE YE AR (2,028.440) 184,182
| Non-controlling interests 16 56,069 5219 |
[ PROTIT A1TRIBUTABLE 10 THE PARENT 11,972,371y 189,401 |
| BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING OPLRATIONS (enros) 32 (34.55) 330 |
I DILUTED I ARNINGS PER SHARE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (ewros) 32 (34.55)_ 330 l
| BASIC EARMNGS PER. SHARE (euros) 2 (3159) 430 |
| DILUTED EARMINGS PEP. SHARE (curos) 3 (33 33) 330 |
The accompanying Notes 1 to 37 are an integral part of the consolidated income statement for 2013,
Prepared by Edward EWING Page 5 of 169 April 5th, 2014
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CO\'SOLID ATED ST A TEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE I\C‘OML I'OR 20 l"

(Thusands of egrns) .
Note | - 13 2082

A) CONSOLIDATED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (2,028.410) 184,182
1. Profit attributable to the Parent (1,972,371) 189,401
2. Non-controlling interests (56,069) (5.219)
B) ITEMS THAT WILI NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO THE INCOME
STATEMENT 269) (167)
1. Revaluation/(Reversal of the revaluation) of property, plant and equipment _ -
and intangible assets
2. Actuarial gains and losses and other adjustments 17 (332) (237)
3. Tax effect 63 70
g%l;rr%\?ng%ﬂ MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO THE INCOME 123863 (77.353)
Income and expense recoghised directly in equity 25,590 (154,465)
1. Revaluation of financial instruments: 7,868 (1,703)

a) Available-for-sale financial assets 10 7,808 {1,703)

b) Other income / (expenses) =
2. Cash flow hedges 20 167,453 (220,959)
3. Translation differences (138,794) 1,997
4. Other income and expenses recognised directly in equity - -
5. Tax effect (10,967} 66,199
Transfers to the income statement: 98,273 77,113
1. Revaluation of financial instruments: (1,468) -

a) Available-for-sale financial assets (1,468) .

b) Other income / (expenses) - -
2. Cash flow hedges 20 139,508 110,161
3. Translation differences 2,350 -
4. Other income and expenses recognised directly in equity - -
5. Tax effect 42,117) (33,048)
TOTAL RECOGNISED INCOMEF / (EXPENSE) (A+B+C) (1,904,846) 106,662

a) Attributable to the Parent (1.842 406) 113 807

b) Attributable to non-controlling interests (62,440) (7,145

The accompanying Notes 1 to 37 are an integral part of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for 2013.
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* CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT'OF CHANGES PN TOTAL EQUITY FOR2013 (fhonsands of ewios) |

Equlb attributable to the Far en( (thmlsands of em onj :
i ﬁlmrehuldel ) eqult; X '

:Sharu ; Pmﬁtmr

o premium, . - thevear © . . .l
- . reservesand T atmbutable - Other i © Non- ‘
Share’  wterim. Treaswry - tothe . eguity. . Vaiustion -~ confroliing - Yotat
| cupital  dividend .~ shares SPment = wmwromenty . adjustments . iterests - equity
Opening balance at 01/401/13 57260 5487071 (4,107) 189,401 - (499.,903) 278,548 5,508,270
Adjustments due to changes in
accounting policies -
Adjustments due to errors -
Adjusted opening balance 57.260 5,487,071 (4,107) 189,401 - (499,903) 278,548 5,508,270
Total recognised
income/(expense) (1,972,371) 129,965 (62,440) (1,904,846)
Transactions with
shareholders or owners - (151,690) (7.704) - - (45,536) (204,930)
Capital increases/(reductions) -
Conversion of financial
liabilities into equity -
Dividends paid (151,690) (12,477) (164,167)
Treasury share transactions
(net) e o {7.704) (7,704)
Increases/(Decreases) due to
business combinations = (33,059 (33,059)
Other transactions with
shareholders or owners -
Other changes in equity 186,067 5,350 (189,401) - - {1,427) 580
Share-based payments &) 5,350 5,345
Transfers between equity items 189,401 (189.,401) .
Other changes (3,329) (1,427) (4,756)
Closing balance at 31/12/13 57,260 5,521,448 {6,461) (1,972,371) - (369,938) 169,145 3,399,083

R®: 918 514 253 - @: edward@sande.es

The accompanying Notes 1 to 37 are an integral part of the consolidated statement of changes in total equity for 2013,
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_ CONSOLIDATED STATEMEEN | OF CHANGES INTOTAL EQUIFY AT 31 DECEMBER 2012 (thousands of enros)

Prepared by Edward EWING

. Equityattributable-to the Parent (thowsands of enres)
< sL Bharvholders® equity | T W
. Smare . Profitfer
premigem, theyear - g2t CF .
s reserves and attributable - Other - = . Non- g.
Share - interim  'Freasury to the Coeguty - Valuafion cantrolling TFatal
_eapital - dividend shares  ~ Parent  mstruments  adjuitments interésts equity
Opening balance at 01/01/12 63,550 5,913,842 (411,129) 202,062 - (424,309) 300,662 5,644,677
Adjustments due to changes in
accounting policies
Adjustments due to errors
Adjusted opening balance 63,550 5,913,842 {411,129 202,062 - (424,309) 300,662 5,644,677
Total recognised 189.401 -
income/(expense) 9, (75,594) (7,145} 106,662
Transactions with
shareholders or owners (6,290)  (624,931) 398,556 (11,453) (244,118)
Capital increases/(reductions) -
Conversion of financial 5
liabilities into equity
Dividends paid (184,673) (11,051) (195,724)
(T;:SS“Y share transactions (6,290) (440258) 398,556 (47.992)
Increases/(Decreases) due to _
business combinations (402) (402)
Other transactions with _
shareholders or owners
Other changes in equity - 198,161 8,466 (202,062) - - (3,516) 1,049
Share-hased payments (2,256) 8,466 6,210
Transfers between equity items 202,062 (202,062) -
Other changes (1,646) (3.516) (5.161)
Closing balance at 31/12/12 57,260 5,487,071 (4,107) 189,401 . (499,903) 278,548 5,508,270
g_ The accompanying Notes 1 to 37 are an integral part of the conselidated statement of changes in total equity for 2013,
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

oo ~(0N‘SOIIDL1'I15 D STAT E}IIzNIS QF ¢ ASH FLOWS FOR 13 -k,“t"D 2002 (1 hoosands af eurog) !
|20~ B
CASH FLOWS TROM OPERATING ACTINVITIES 791,112 752,923
Profit before tax from continning operations (2,174,221) 245,513
Adjustments for: 3,314,241 1,126,894
Depreciation and amortisation charge and provisions 3,013,487 785,795
Other adjustments to profit (net) 300,754 341,099
Changes in working capital 167,592 (24,748)
Other cash flows from operating activities: (516,500) (594,736)
Interest paid (455,388) (503,460)
Interest received 44,082 100,473
Income tax recovered/(paid) (110,855 (161,450)
Other amounts received/(paid) relating to operating activities 6,161 (30,299)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (297,842) (976,453)
Payments due to investment: (436,596) (897,120)
Group companies, associates and business units (13,710) {144 926)
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property (422,886) (752,194)
Proceeds from disposal: 137,483 66,449
Group companies, associates and business vnits 98,725 23877
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property 38,758 42,572
Other cash flows from investing activities: 1,271 (145,782)
Dividends received 4,664 6,331
Other amounts received/(paid) relating to investing activities (3,393) (152,113)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (404,117) (134,715)
Proceeds and (payments) relating to equity instruments: (7,704) (47,992)
Purchases {7.704) (47,992)
Disposals - -
Proceeds and (payments}) relating to financial liability instruments: (258,727) 80,444
Proceeds from issues 763,886 1,513,708
Repayments and redemptions (1,022,613) (1,433,264)
Dividends and returns on other equity instruments paid (164,167) (195,724)
Other cash flows from financing activities 26,481 28,557
Other amounts received/(paid) relating to financing activities 26,481 28,557
; S . db o " (37,314)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 12,572
NET INCREASE/ADECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS LA (345,673)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,196,105 1,541,778
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,247,944 1,196,105
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
Cash on hand and at banks 996,966 935,613
Qther financial assets 250,978 260,492
FOTAL CASH ANDCASH EQUIVALENTSATENDOFYEAR - 124798 119,108

The accompanying Notes 1 to 37 are an integral part of the consolidated statement of cash flows for 2013,

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 9 of 169 April 5th, 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 OF ACCIONA, S.A. AND
SUBSIDIARIES
(Consolidated Group)

1.- Group activities

Acciona, S.A. (“the Parent” or “the Company™) and its subsidiaries make up the Acciona
Group (“Acciona” or “the Group”). Acciona, S.A.’s registered office and headquarters are in
Alcobendas (province of Madrid) at Avenida de Europa 18.

The Acciona Group companies operate in several sectors of economic activity, including most
notably:

- Acciona Infrastructure: including mainly construction and engineering activities and
transport and hospital concessions.

- Acciona Energy: including the various industrial and commercial activities of the
electricity business, ranging from the construction of wind farms to the generation,
distribution and retailing of various energy sources.

- Acciona Water: including the activities relating to the construction of desalinisation
plants, water treatment plants and drinking water stations as well as the management of
the entire water cycle, an activity that covers from the initial harnessing of the water, its
treatment, including desalinisation, to its cleansing and return to the environment after
use. It also operates concessions for services related to the water cycle.

- Acciona Service: including the activities of facility services, airport handling services,
waste collection and treatment, and logistics services, among others.

- Other Activitics: businesses relating to fund management and stock market brokerage,
wine production, as well as the activities of the Acciona Trasmediterranea subgroup, the
real estate business, and other investments.

Note 28 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements “Segment Reporting” includes

detailed information relating to the assets, liabilities and transactions carried out in each of the
above business divisions making up the Acciona Group.

2. Basis of presentation of the consolidated financial statements and basis of
consolidation
2.1 Basis of presentation and regulatory framework for the Energy division

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements for 2013 of the Acciona Group were prepared by the
directors of Acciona, S.A. at the Board of Directors Meeting held on 25 February 2014, and
present a true and fair image of the Group’s consolidated equity and consolidated financial
position at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated results of its operations, the changes in

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 10 of 169 April 5th, 2014
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the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the changes in the consolidated equity
and the consolidated cash flows in the year then ended.

These consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with the regulatory
financial reporting framework applicable to the Group and, in particular, with International
Financial Reporting Standards (II'RS) as adopted by the European Union, in conformity with
Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of the Council. The main
mandatory accounting principles and measurement bases applied. the alternative treatments
permitted by the relevant legislation in this connection and the standards and interpretations
issued but not yet in force at the date of formal preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised in Note 3.

These consolidated financial statements were prepared on the basis of the accounting records
kept by the Parent and by the other Group companies. These records include the figures
relating to the joint ventures, groupings and consortia in which the Group companies have
interests, which are proportionately consolidated through the inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements of the proportion of the assets, liabilities and transactions of these entities
relating to the Group’s percentage of ownership, after the appropriate eliminations of asset
and liability balances and intra-Group transactions in the year.

The Acciona Group’s consolidated financial statements for 2012 were approved by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 6 June 2013. The consolidated financial
statements for 2013 of the Acciona Group and the separate financial statements for 2013 of
the companies making up the Group have not yet been approved by the shareholders at their
respective Annual General Meetings. However, the Parent’s Board of Directors considers that
the aforementioned financial statements will be approved without any material changes.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of euros (unless otherwise
indicated) because the euro is the functional currency of the principal economic area in which
the Acciona Group operates. Foreign operations are accounted for in accordance with the
policies established in Notes 2.2-g and 3.2-q.

Regulatory framework for the Energy division

The business of electricity production under the special regime in Spain is regulated by
Spanish Electricity Industry Law 54/1997, of 27 November, and by the subsequent
implementing regulations.

Most of the Group’s electricity production facilities in Spain are governed, as far as the
remuneration framework for the support of renewable energy sources is concerned, by the
special regime provided for in Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May, regulating electricity
production under the special regime.

Transitional Provision One of Royal Decree 661/2007 acknowledges the right of wind
generated power facilities, inter alia, with start-up certificates pre-dating 1 January 2008 to
continue to receive the premiums and incentives existing under the previous regime (Royal
Decree 436/2004, of 12 March) until 31 December 2012. The facilities owned by the Group’s
subsidiaries that commenced operations prior to that date availed themselves of the
aforementioned Transitional Provision. For all the facilities that came into service after 1

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 11 of 169 April 5th, 2014
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January 2008 caps and floors were set for the aggregate price (market price plus premium)
applicable to power sales in the market or a regulated fixed tariff was established.

Royal Decree-Law 6/2009, of 30 April, introduced the facility pre-assignment system for
entitlement to the system of special regime premiums defined in the Spanish Electricity
Industry Law until the targets set in the Renewable Energy Plan for 2020 had been met, The
facilities that met the pre-assignment conditions established in the Royal Decree-Law at the
date of its publication would be entitled to the premiums and tariffs provided for in Royal
Decree 661/2007.

Royal Decree 1614/2010 was approved on 7 December 2010. The purpose of this legislation
was to modify and regulate matters relating to the production of electricity using solar thermal
and wind energy technologies with the aim of containing the deficit. The principal new
developments were the establishment of a limit on the equivalent hours of operation with
entitlement to a premium for solar thermal and wind technologies, the obligation to sell
electricity at the regulated tariff for the solar thermal sector for the twelve months following
the entry into force of the Royal Decree (or following the start-up of the related facility if
later) and a 35% reduction in the premiums for wind powered facilities subject to Royal
Decree 661/2007 and for the period from the date of approval of the Royal Decree to 31
December 2012, while maintaining the amounts relating to the cap, floor and regulated tariff
unchanged.

It should be noted in connection with the Group’s farms and the regulatory changes
introduced by Royal Decree 1614/2010 that the reduction of the premiums barely affected the
Group’s farms, since most of them had start-up certificates pre-dating 1 January 2008 and
they availed themselves of the aforementioned Transitional Provision of Royal Decrce
661/2007. The remainder of the facilities sold their energy under the regulated tariff regime.
Also, the limits placed on operating hours have not affected the Group’s facilities, since the
number of hours established in the Royal Decree exceeded the hours that the facilities actually
operate.

On 28 January 2012, Royal Decree-Law 1/2012 was published in the “Boletin Oficial del
Estado” (Official State Gazette) and came into force on that same date, giving rise to the
suspension of remuneration pre-assignment procedures and the removal of economic
incentives for new electricity production facilities which use combined heat and power,
renewable energy sources and waste. Royal Decree-Law 1/2012 affects, inter alia, facilities
under the special regime that at 28 January 2012 had not been registered in the Pre-
assignment Register. Since the Group’s facilities had been registered in the aforementioned
Register before 28 January 2012, this Royal Decree did not have any effect on the
profitability and recoverability of the carrying amounts of the Group’s facilities.

In addition, 28 December 2012 saw the publication of Law 15/2012 on tax measures aimed at
energy sustainability, which affects all electricity production facilities in Spain from 2013
onwards. All of Acciona’s facilities are affected by the tax on the value of electricity output,
which consists of a 7% tax on income from electricity sales. On the other hand, the
aforementioned Law also introduced a charge for the use of inland water for electricity
production. This charge consists of a tax of 22% on the economic value of electricity output,
with a 90% reduction in the tax for facilities with a capacity of less than 50 MW and pumped
storage power plants. Lastly, Law 15/2012 also establishes a dual tax on solar thermal plants.
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On the one hand, the Law eliminated the premium for power produced using fossil fuels and,
on the other, it introduced a tax of EUR 0.65 per GJ of gas consumed.

Until 31 December 2012, practically all the facilities owned by the companies in the Group
operating on the Spanish market were doing so under the free market regime by selling their
energy to the pool through Acciona Green Energy Development, S.L., a Group company
acting solely for the purposes of intermediation. As will be seen below, from the 2013
financial year on, the first transitional provision of Royal Decree 661/2007 is no longer
applicable due to the changes in the remuneration for the present financial year for the
facilities previously covered by it.

Royal Decreec Law 2/2013 of 1 February on urgent measures in the electricity sector was
approved in 2013. This RDL, in force from 1 January 2013, sets the premiums for all
technologies at zero value and eliminates the caps and floors for the market sale option,
leaving the option for tariff-based sales. It also modified the annual coefficient for updating
these tariffs, now referenced to the underlying inflation instead of the Consumer Price Index
(CPI).

This RDL establishes that the registered holders of facilities have to opt between selling the
electricity under the regulated tariff option and selling it freely on the market without
receiving any premium. Once this choice has been made, the option is irrevocable.

For practical purposes, this RDL has meant that the wind farms and thermoelectric or biomass
power stations in the Acciona Group have chosen the fixed tariff sale option from 2013 on.
The hydroelectric power stations in the Special Regime were already selling at the tariff prior
to the publication of this RDL.

In addition, Royal Decree-Law 9/2013 adopting urgent measures to guarantee the financial
stability of the electricity system was published on 12 July. This Royal Decree, which came
into force on 13 July 2013, repealed, among others, Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May, and
Royal Decree 6/2009, of 30 April, the decrees governing, as described in the preceding
paragraphs the remuneration framework supporting renewable energies for most of the
Acciona Group’s power generation facilities located in Spain. This RDL introduced
substantial changes in the applicable legal and economic framework.

This new regulation foresees that, in addition to the remuneration for the sale of electricity
generated valued at market prices, facilities will be able to receive a specific remuneration
comprising a term per unit of power installed, covering, where appropriate the investment
costs for a standard installation that cannot be recovered through electricity sales and an
operating term that covers, where applicable, the difference between operating costs and the
revenue from that standard installation’s participation on the market.

To calculate this specific remuneration, consideration will be given to the following items for
a standard installation and throughout its regulatory lifetime with respect to activities
conducted by an efficient and well-managed company:

a) The standard revenue from the sale of the energy generated valued at the market production
price.

b) Standard operating costs.
¢) The standard value of the initial investment.

Using these parameters, which may be modified every three years, the aim is not to exceed
the minimum level necessary to cover costs and enable the facilities to compete on a level
footing with the rest of the technologies on the market make it possible to obtain a reasonable
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return. With regard to this reasonable return, the Royal Decree indicates that this will be
similar, before tax, to the mean return from ten-year State Bonds on the secondary market
after applying the appropriate differential. The First Additional Provision of Royal Decree-
Law 9/2013 sets this appropriate differential at 300 basis points for facilities under the
premium-based regime, all without prejudice to a possible review every six years.

RDL 9/2013 came into force on 14 July 2013 and foresees the specification of the new
remuneration framework through the publication of regulations that are as yet pending
approval. In this sense, in the context of the interviews with interested parties initiated by the
National Markets and Competition Commission (CNMC) in February 2014, a draft
Ministerial Order setting out all the parameters described above and necessary to determine
the remuneration applicable to renewable energy, co-generation and waste was made
available to stakeholders. In practice, the facilities in the Energy division located in Spain are
subject to the new remuneration model established in the Electricity Industry Act and
RDL 9/2013 from its entry into force. Thus, the revenue received from the sale of energy after
14 July 2013 is being settled up as an interim payment on account of the final remuneration
that may be decided.

Bearing these circumstances in mind, the Group re-assessed ils revenue, impairment test and
the other related aggregate figures in accordance with the new regulatory framework,
recognising the impairments arising out of the new model and described in Notes 4 and 6.

Moreover, it should be noted that Law 24/2013 was enacted in December 2013 to replace the
Electricity Industry Act (Law 54/1997) and provide the legal framework for the new situation,
eliminating the concept of the special regime and creating that of the specific remuneration
and establishing the criterion for defining the “reasonable return” for facilities.

Biofuels

With respect to the biodiesel business in Spain, Royal Decree 1738/10 established obligatory
minimum annual targets for the sale or consumption of biofuels for transportation purposes.
These targets were reviewed downwards in Royal Decree 459/2011 and Royal Decree 4/2013,
reducing the initial 7% to 4.10% in 2013 and subsequent years for the consumption of
biofuels in diesel.

Following the enactment of Royal Decree 4/2013 of 23 February, a notable decline in the
volume of biodiesel demanded has been noted during 2013. In this coniext, the sector’s
prospects are for a fall in demand compared to previous years. On 24 January 2014, the
Ministry of Industry approved a resolution assigning amounts of biodiesel production for the
calculation of the said targets during an initial period of two years that will begin to run from
5 May 2014, Out of a maximum of 4.8 million tonnes assigned per annum, without including
plants in Argentina or Indonesia, a very significant portion has fallen to other European Union
countries (34%), leaving 66% for domestic companies. This resolution has caused an evident
surplus in the capacity installed in Spain for the proposed targets.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

a. Consolidation methods
The Group’s subsidiaries, considered to be the companies over which effective control is
exercised by virtue of ownership of a majority of the voting power in their representation

and decision-making bodies, were fully consolidated (see Appendix I). Joint ventures -
entities managed jointly with third parties on the basis of contractual arrangements- were
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proportionately consolidated (see Appendix II). Lastly, associates, i.e. companies not
classified as subsidiaries or joint ventures over whose management the Group is in a
position to exercise significant influence, were accounted for using the equity method (see
Appendix III). As a general rule, associates are deemed to be companies in which the
Group holds more than 20% of the share capital or of the voting power in their governing
bodies. In addition, certain companies were considered to be associates. even though the
aforementioned percentage was not reached, because significant influence is deemed to
exist (basically through membership of the Board of Directors and/or significant
transactions with the associate).

. Eliminations on consolidation

All material balances and effects of the transactions performed by the subsidiaries with
associates and joint ventures were eliminated on consolidation.

The corresponding gains on transactions with associates and jointly controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s ownership interest in the share capital thercof.
Exceptionally, the profits and losses on internal transactions with Group companies, jointly

controfled entities or associates in connection with certain concession-related activities
were not eliminated.

Uniformity

The Spanish resident companies included in the scope of consolidation were consolidated
on the basis of their separate financial statements prepared in accordance with the Spanish
National Chart of Accounts and foreign companies were consolidated in accordance with
local standards. All material adjustments required to adapt these financial statements to
International Financial Reporting Standards and/or make them compliant with the Group’s
accounting policies were considered in the consolidation process.

Subsidiaries

“Subsidiaries” are defined as companies over which the Parent has the capacity to exercise
effective control; control is, in general but not exclusively, presumed to exist when the
Parent owns directly or indirectly more than half of the voting power of the investee. In
accordance with IAS 27, control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of a company so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are fully consolidated with those of the Parent.
Accordingly, all material balances and effects of the transactions between consolidated
companies are eliminated on consolidation.

On acquisition, the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured
at their acquisition-date fair values, as provided for in IFRS 3, Business Combinations.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets is
recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is lower than the fair value of the
identifiable net assets, the difference is credited to profit or loss on the acquisition date.

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the date of acquisition to year-end. Similarly, the results of
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subsidiaries disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the beginning of the year to the date of disposal.

The interest of non-controlling sharcholders is stated at their proportion of the fair values
of the assets and liabilities recognised.

The share of third parties of the equity of their investees is presented within the Group’s
equity under “Non-Controlling Interests” in the consolidated balance sheet. Similarly, their
share of the profit or loss for the year is presented under “Non-Controlling Interests” in the

consolidated income statement.

e. Joint ventures

Joint ventures are deemed to be ventures in which the investee (jointly controlled entity) is
jointly managed by a Group company and one or more unrelated third parties. All parties
share control over strategic decisions, which require their unanimous consent.

The financial statements of jointly controlled entities are proportionately consolidated
with those of the Parent and, therefore, the aggregation of balances and subsequent
eliminations are only made in proportion to the Group’s ownership interest in the capital

of these entities.

The assets and liabilities relating to jointly controlled operations and the Group’s share of
the jointly controlled assets are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet classified
according to their specific nature. Similarly, the Group’s share of the income and expenses
of joint ventures is recognised in the consolidated income statement on the basis of the

nature of the related items.

Equity method

In the consolidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method, i.e. at the Group’s share of net assets of the investee, after taking into
account the dividends received therefrom and other equity eliminations.

The value of these investments in the consolidated balance sheet includes, where
applicable, the goodwill arising on the acquisition thereof.

When the Group’s investments in associates are reduced to zero, any additional implicit
obligations at the subsidiaries that are accounted for using the equity method are
recognised under “Long-Term Provisions” in the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to present results uniformly the Group’s share of the profit or loss before and after
tax of associates is disclosed in the consolidated income statement.

g. Translation differences

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations with a
functional currency other than the euro are translated to euros at the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly. Capital
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and reserves are translated at the historical exchange rates. Any translation differences
arising are classified as equity. Such translation differences are recognised as income or as
expenses in the year in which the operation is disposed of.

Changes in the scope of consolidation

During the 2013 financial year, the main reductions and in the stakes inctuded within the
scope of consolidation correspond to the sale of the Acciona ISL Health Victoria Holdco,
Ltd. company based in Canada. This company (as indicated in Note 24), was classified
among the non-current assets held for sale at 31 December 2012. In addition, within the
energy division, the month of December 2013 saw the sale of the Yeong Yang Windpower
Company based in South Korea (see Note 4).

In 2012 the main exclusion from consolidation and reduction in percentage of ownership
arosc as a result of the sale of Concesionaria Universidad Politécnica de San Luis Potosi,
S.A. de C.V. with registered office in Mexico. This company (as indicated in Note 24) had
been classified as a non-current asset held for sale at 31 December 2011.

Appendix IV includes the changes in the scope of consolidation in 2013 and 2012.

Principal accounting policies

3.1 Adoption of new standards and interpretations issued

Standards and interpretations applicable in 2013

In 2013 new accounting standards came into force, which, accordingly, were taken into
account in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Standards, amendments and " 'Mandatorily applicable in
- interpretations: . annual reporting periods
= T : beginning on or after:
Approved for use by the EU
Amendments to IAS I Presentution of Minot amendments relaing to the presentaiton of 1 fuly 2012
Temis of Other Compieheisive Incore items of uthet coprehensive income : ‘ '
(ssued 1 Jane 2011). ‘ ‘ 1
Amendments to IAS 19, Employee The amendments affect mainly defined benefit 1 January 2013
Benefits (issued in June 2011). plans since one of the major changes is the
elimination of the “corridor™,
IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (1ssued  Sels out a framework for measurme fain value 1 January 2013
m Mag 20113 | 2 o L= p L
Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes - On the measurement of deferred taxes arising from 1 January 2013
Deferred Taxes Arising From Investment investment property using the fair value model in
Property (issued in December 2010). IAS 40.
Aniendments to IFRS 7, Offsettng’ -~ _Introduction of new breakdowns telating 1o the 1 January 2013
Financial Assers. and Finanmial Liabilities offserting of financial assets and finanicial liabletics '
(issued in Decentber 2011) an TAS 32 . : ‘
Imj)fox'ements to IFRSs, 2009-2011 cycle Minor amendments to a series of standards. 1 January 2013
(issued in May 2012).
IFRIC 20, Stipping Costs athe . © - Addresses the accounting tieatment of ihe wagte "1 Januars 2013
Production Phase of a Sutface Mine (issued  matertal 1emoval coste nurred iu'swface minng ! '
in Qctober 2011). - © operations '
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These standards and interpretations have been applied in these annual accounts. The only
noteworthy impacts are listed below:

IFRS 13 Measurement of Fair Value is currently the only regulatory source for the calculation
of fair value of assets and liabilities valued in this way in line with the requirements of other
norms. IFRS 13 changes the definition of fair value and introduces new considerations, as
well as extending the disclosures required in this matter.

Fair value pursuant to IFRS 13 is defined as the price that would be received for selling an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market players on the date
of measurement (for example a starting price), regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The Group has analysed to what extent the new definition of fair value might affect the
valuation of the items in the assets and liabilities. The conclusion reached is that IFRS 13 only
gives rise to notable modifications with respect to the methods and calculations applied to
date in terms of the valuation and recognition of financial derivatives.

The new definition of a liability’s fair value under IFRS 13 based on the concept of
transferring a liability to another player on the market confirms that credit risk itself must be
considered in the fair value of the liabilities. To date, the Acciona Group, pursuant to the
definition of a liability’s fair value given in IAS 39 and based on the concept of settlement,
did not include the impact of credit risk in the valuations of derivatives.

According to IFRS 13, the impact of first applying this standard is prospectively seen in the
statement of comprehensive income and thus, since 1 January 2013, Acciona Group
incorporates an adjustment of bilateral credit risk with the aim of reflecting both the inherent
counterparty risk on the fair value of derivatives.

At 1 January 2013, this modification has implied a lower valuation of derivatives on the
liability side in the amount of EUR 22,644 thousand, on the one hand recognised as a
reduction of debt with credit entities in the amount of EUR 15,027 thousand for subsidiarics
and jointly controlled entities and, on the other, as an increase in the valuation of the
investment using the equity method in an amount of EUR 5,331 thousand, after tax, by those
companies included under this method. The net effect of taxes and external impacts that this
amendment has had on the heading for equity adjustments in the evaluation of cash flow
hedges has been positive in the amount of EUR 15,660 thousand.

Note 16 “Debt with credit entities” details the impact of IFRS 13 at 31 December 2013 and
Note 3.2 I) explains in detail how the credit risk adjustment is calculated.

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet in force

At the date of preparation of these financial statements, the most significant standards and
interpretations that had been published by the IASB but which had not yet come into force,
either because their effective date is subsequent to the date of the consolidated financial
statements or because they had not yet been adopted by the European Union, were as follows:

Standards, amendments Mandatorily applicable in
and interpretations: annual reporting periods
. begmning on or atter:
Approved for use by the EU
IFRS 10. Consolidated Financial’ - Supersedes the 1equirements 1elafing to 1 January 2014
* Sislements (1ssued 1 Maz 2011) consohdatixl finanesal datements i 1AS 27 "
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Standards, smendments
and mterpreta‘tmnm

IFRS 11, Joint Ammgements (1ssued in
May 2011).

IERS 12. Diselosure of lutei<sts m Other
},memEs \mued i May 7011)

IAS 27 (Revlsed), Separate Fmanclal
Statements (issued in May 2011).

TAS 28 (Revised), Tnvestments i -
Associates and Jomt Ventmm f 1=sué¢1 m
May 201 1) v o
Transition rules Amendments to IFRS 10
11 and 12 (issued in June 2012).

Tnvestment Entities: Amendmonts to.
FFRS 10, IFRS 12 and JAS 27 h-;sued m )
October 2012) .

Amendments to LAS 32, Oﬂ’sc‘rtmg
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
{(issued in December 2011).

Not vet approved for use in the
European Union

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments
Classification and Measurement (issued in
November 2009 and October 2010),
Amenidments to TFRS 9 and TFRS 7.
Efiective Date and Transtizon Diaclogmes
(ssued m December 2011 and hedge
acconniing and othet amendments
Apublished m Noxenher 2013)
Amendments to IAS 39 — Novation of
derivatives and continuation of hedge
accounting (published in June 2013)
Amendinents to 148 36~ Disclesures of
recoverabls amonints of non-financial

assets (published in May 20413).
Amendments to IAS 19— Cont 1but10ns b)
employees to defined benefit plans
(published 1 November 2013}

Improvenents to IFES 2016-201% cycle
and 2011-2013 cyule (published
December 2013) L
IFRIC 21 — Encumbrances (published in
May 2013)

Supersedes IAS 31 on joint ventures.

- Smgle [FRS. taresmmlg the disclosurs lequ:rcnwlts;
< for 1nferesis m subsidizies, assberates, o
| attangements and enconsohdated caties

The IAS is revised, since as a result of the issue of
IFRS 10 it applies only to the separate financial
statements of an entity.

Revision 1n wn]lmcmm vath the 1ssuc of IFRS 11 )

]omt &rrangem‘ms

Clariﬁcation of the rules for transition to these
standards.

Excepttun fiom consylidation for parsnt tompanies

that meei the defintion of m\restmcm entmh

Additional clariﬁcations to the rulcs for offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities under
IAS 32.

Replaces the IAS 39 classification, measurement
and derecognition requirements for financial assets
and liabilities

Dreferral of the effactive date of IFRS 9 and
amendments io tran«ruon 1equu emeuta and
dmlns'mes :

The amendments determine in which cases and with

which criteria the novation of a derivative makes it
unnecessary to suspend hedge accounting.

Clarifies when ceviain disclosures ar< necessary and
exicuds those requirsd when the recoverable valne
15 ihe fau value minus sales cosis. .

The amendment is issued to be able to facilitate the
possibility of deducting these contributions from the
cost of the service in the same peried in which they
are paid providing certain requirements are met,

‘Minor amendments to 2 sertes of standards.

Interpretation of when to recognise a liability for
charges or encumbrances that are conditional on the
entity’s participation in an activity on a specified
date

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments.

" Mandatorily apphicable in
. annual reporting periods

beginiing on.or after;
1 January 2014
1 January 2014
1 January 2014

1 January 2014

| January 2013

1danuary 2014

1 January 2014

Not set

Mol et

1 January 2014
I January 2014

1 January 2014

1 July 2014

1 January 2014

IFRS 9 will in the future replace IAS 39. The chapters relating to classification and
measurement and the accounting of hedges have already been issued. There are very
significant differences with respect to the current standard, in relation to financial assets,
including the approval of a new classification model based on only two categories, namely
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instruments measured at amortised cost and those measured at fair value, the disappearance
of the current “held-to-maturity investments” and “available-for-sale financial assets”
categories, impairment analyses only for assets measured at amortised cost and the non-
separation of embedded derivatives in financial asset contracts.

In relation to financial Labilities, the classification categories proposed by IFRS 9 are
similar to those currently contained in IAS 39 and, therefore, there should not be any very
significant differences, except, in the case of the fair value option for financial liabilities,
for the requirement to recognise changes in fair value atiributable to own credit risk as a
component of equity.

The accounting of hedges will also imply major changes as the approach in the standard is
very different from that in the current IAS 39 as it attempts to align accounting with the
economic risk management. The future impacts of adopting this standard have not yet been
analysed. All of the effects will be analysed after the standard is completely finalised. This
standard is not, however, expected to come into effect earlier than 2017.

- IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, IAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements
and IAS 28 (Revised), Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

This “package” of five standards or amendments was issued jointly and is aimed at
superseding the current standards in relation to consolidation and the accounting for
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and the related disclosures.

IFRS 10 modifies the current definition of control. The new definition of control sets out
the following three elements of control: power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from involvement with the investee; and the ability to use power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements supersedes IAS 31. IFRS 11 changes the focus of the
analysis of joint arrangements and classifies joint arrangements into only two types: joint
operations and joint ventures. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. The way in which the joint arrangement will be accounted for depends on the
conclusion reached as to its classification.

The fundamental change introduced by IFRS 11 with respect to the current standard lies in
the accounting treatment of jointly controlled entities, since they must always be accounted
for using the equity method, whereas IAS 31 currently provides for the option of choosing
between accounting for them using the equity method and proportionately consolidating
them. In this regard, IAS 31 also permitted the latter accounting option to be chosen if the
arrangement was structured in the form of a separate legal entity, which is no longer
relevant in the TFRS 11 analysis model, which is based on the existence of a separate
vehicle, regardless of whether or not it is legally separate.

IFRS 12 represents a single standard presenting the disclosure requirements for interests in
other entities (whether they be subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements or other
interests) and includes new disclosure requirements.
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TAS 27 and IAS 28 are revised in conjunction with the issue of the aforementioned new
IFRS.

From this “package” of standards IFRS 11 will foreseeably have a material effect on the
Acciona Group’s consolidated financial statements as the option that has been applied for
the consolidation of joint ventures has been the proportionate consolidation of their
financial statements (sec Note 2.2-e). The Group’s directors are currently assessing the
impact that the application of this standard will have on the consolidated financial
statements and the preliminary analysis indicates that at 31 December 2013 the effect
would be a downward adjustment of EUR 383 million in the net amount of revenue, a
reduction of EUR 58 million in the operating profit, a EUR 1,563 million smaller volume
of assets as well as a reduction of EUR 675 million in net borrowing.

With the exception of the matters indicated in the preceding paragraphs, the Group’s directors
do not expect any significant changes to arise as a result of the introduction of the other
standards, amendments and interpretations published but not yet in force, since they are to be
applied prospectively, the amendments relate to presentation and disclosure issues and/or the
matters concerned are not applicable to the Group’s operations,

3.2 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies used in preparing the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted

by the European Union, were as follows:

A)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the
lower of acquisition or production cost less any accumulated depreciation and their
recoverable amounts.

The costs of expansion, modernisation or improvements leading to increased productivity,
capacity or efficiency or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised.
Acquisition cost includes professional fees and borrowing costs incurred during the
construction period that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use. The interest rate used is that corresponding to funds borrowed
specifically or, in the absence thereof, the rate applicable to the funds borrowed generally by
the company making the investment.

The acquisition cost of assets acquired before 31 December 2003 includes any asset
revaluations permitted in the various countries to adjust the value of the property, plant and
equipment due to the effect of inflation until that date,

The balances of assets retired as a result of modernisation or for any other reason are
derecognised from the related cost and accumulated depreciation accounts.
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In-house work on non-current assets is recognised at accumulated cost (external costs, internal
costs calculated on the basis of in-house consumption of warehouse materials and
manufacturing costs incurred).

Upkeep and maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated income statement for the year
in which they are incurred.

Generally, depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method, on the basis of the
acquisition cost of the assets less their residual value. The land on which the buildings and
other structures stand has an indefinite useful life and, therefore, is not depreciated. The
Group companies depreciate their property, plant and equipment over the years of estimated
useful life. The annual depreciation rates applicable in 2013 were as follows:

- Anpual dépreciation cates.
Buildings 2-10%
“Special Bt
Wind fams 5%
Hudinaleeais power planty 1-2% .
Biomass plants 4%
-Selat thermal plants 333,
Vessels 5-20%
'Remaming plant 1-30%
Machinery 5-33%
Foiniture© 5-33%
Computer hardware 13-33%
‘Iransport equipment 7-25%
Other items of property, plant and equipment 2-33%

Finance leases
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are recognised in the corresponding

asset category and are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
asscts.

B) Investment property

“Investment Property” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet reflects the net values
(i.e. less any accumulated depreciation) of the land, buildings and other structures held either
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is stated at acquisition cost and for all purposes the Group applies the
same policies as those used for property, plant and equipment of the same kind.

Each year the Group determines the fair value of its investment property based on appraisals
undertaken by independent valuers (see Note 5).

Investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the years of estimated useful
life of the assets, which constitutes the period over which the Group companies expect to use
them. The average depreciation rate is as follows:
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Annuil depreeiation rate
Buildings held for rental 2-5%

C)  Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s ownership interests in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent assets and liabilities, of a subsidiary or jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition or at the date on which control is obtained.

The assets and liabilities acquired are measured provisionally at the date on which control is
acquired, and the resulting value is reviewed in a maximum period of one year from the date
of acquisition. Until the fair value of the assets and liabilities has been definitively
determined, the difference between the cost of acquisition and the carrying amount of the
company acquired is recognised provisionally as goodwill.

Any excess of the cost of the investments in the consolidated companies over the

corresponding underlying carrying amounts acquired, adjusted at the date of first-time
consolidation, is allocated as follows:

- If it is attributable to specific assets and liabilities of the companies acquired, increasing
the value of the assets (or reducing the value of the liabilities) whose market values were
higher (lower) than the carrying amounts at which they had been recognised in their
balance sheets and whose accounting treatment was similar to that of the same assets
(liabilities) of the Group: amortisation, accrual, etc.

- Ifit is attributable to specific intangible assets, recognising it explicitly in the consolidated
balance sheet provided that the fair value at the date of acquisition can be measured
reliably.

- The remaining amount is recognised as goodwill, which is allocated to one or more
specific cash-generating units.

Goodwill is only recognised when it has been acquired for consideration and represents,
therefore, a payment made by the acquirer in anticipation of future economic benefits from

assets of the acquired company that are not capable of being individually identified and
separately recognised.

Goodwill acquired on or after 1 January 2004 is measured at acquisition cost and that
acquired earlier is recognised at the carrying amount at 31 December 2003.

On disposal of a subsidiary or joinily controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising in the acquisition of companies with a functional currency other than the

euro is translated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the consolidated
balance sheet.
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D) Other intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised initially at acquisition or production cost and are
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indcfinite uscful lives are not amortised.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over thosc useful lives using methods
similar to those used to depreciate property, plant and equipment. The amortisation rates,
which were determined on the basis of the average years of estimated useful life of the assets,
are basically as follows:

Armual amor Gsation xate
Development expenditure 10 - 20%
Admiastiatve coBcessIcis 2 .a8n
Leasehold assignment rights 10 - 20%
 Cumputer softerare . G - %

The consolidated companies recognise any impairment loss on the carrying amount of these
assets with a charge to “lmpairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current
Assets” in the consolidated income statement. The criteria used to recognise the impairment
losses on these assets and any subsequent recovery thereof are detailed in Note 3.2-E).

Research and development expenditure

As a general rule, expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the year in
which it is incurred, except in development projects in which an identifiable asset is created, it
is probable that the asset will generate future economic benefits, and the development cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. The Group’s development expenditure, which relates
basically to the wind power business, is only recognised as an asset if it is probable that it will
generate future economic benefits and the development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Development expenditure is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. Unless the
aforementioned conditions for recognition as an asset are met, development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Administrative concessions

The “Administrative Concessions™ line item includes concessions that have been acquired by
the Group for consideration (in the case of concessions that can be transferred) or for the
amount of the expenses incurred to directly obtain the concession from the Government or
from the related public agency. Administrative concessions are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the concession.

Intangible assets in infrastructure projects
Since the adoption of IFRIC 12, the Acciona Group has included intangible assets associated

with concessions in which the investment recovery risk is borne by the operator under
“Intangible Assets in Infrastructure Projects”. This type of concession-related activity is
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carried out through investments mainly in transport, car park and water supply infrastructure
that is operated by subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates (concession operators),
the detail being as follows:

- The concession infrastructure is owned by the grantor in most cases.

- The concession grantor, which can be a public or private sector entity, controls or regulates
the service offered by the concession operator and the conditions under which it should be
provided.

- The infrastructure is operated by the concession operator as established in the concession
tender specifications for an established concession term. At the end of this period, the assets
are handed over to the concession grantor, and the concession operator has no right
whatsoever over these assets.

- The concession operator receives revenue for the services provided either directly from the
users or through the concession grantor.

The most significant accounting methods used by the Acciona Group in relation to these
concession arrangements are as follows:

- Capitalisation of the borrowing costs incurred during the construction period and non-
capitalisation of the borrowing costs after the entry into service of the related assets.

- Amortisation of the concession infrastructure on a straight-line basis over the concession
term.

- Concession operators amortise these assets so that the carrying amount of the investment
made plus the costs considered necessary to return the assets in working order is zero at the
end of the concession term.

- In virtually all of the concessions of the Acciona Group, the construction work was carried
out by Group companies. In this regard, the income and expenses corresponding to
infrastructure construction or upgrade services are recognised at the gross amount thereof
(recognition of the sales and the cost of sales in the consolidated financial statements of the
Acciona Group), recognising the construction margin in the consolidated financial statements.
If construction were not carried out by the Group itself, this fact would be taken into account
for the purpose of recognising sales and the cost of sales in the consolidated financial
statements.

Computer software
The acquisition and development costs incurred in relation to the basic computer systems used
in the Group’s management are recognised at cost with a charge to “Other Intangible Assets”

in the consolidated balance sheet.

Computer system maintenance costs are recognised with a charge to the consolidated income
statement for the year in which they are incurred.
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E) Impairment of non-current assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, investment property, goodwill and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets might have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset itself does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest
identifiable cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

At the end of each reporting period, goodwill is reviewed for impairment (i.e. a reduction in
its recoverable amount to below its carrying amount) and any impairment is written down
with a charge to “Impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assets” in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill must not be
reversed in a subsequent period.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The
methodology used to estimate value in use varies on the basis of the type of asset in question.
For these purposes, the Group considers three types of assets: investment property (assets held
to earn rentals), goodwill of companies and assets of a limited duration (primarily assets
related to electricity production and infrastructure concessions).

Investment property (assets held to earn rentals)

The Group’s investment property relates to properties earmarked for lease. The fair value at 31
December 2013 of the Group’s investment property was calculated on the basis of the
appraisal conducted at that date by “Aguirre Newman Valoraciones y Tasaciones, S.A.” (its
report was issued on 02 January 2014).

Assets of this type are measured by discounting rentals at rates that vary on the basis of the
type of building earmarked for lease and of the specific characteristics thereof. In proportion
to their carrying amounts, the assets held to earn rentals may be classified as rental housing
(57%), offices (14%), hotels (17%) and other buildings (12%) (residences, car parks, etc.) The
discount rates (yields) used for each type of building lie in the following ranges: housing units
(3.0-5.5%), offices (6.50-9.0%), hotels (7.25-8.00%) and other buildings (5.25-8.0%).
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Based on the appraisal performed, impairment losses were recognised (see Note 5) under
“Impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals of Non-Current Assets™) in the consolidated

income statement.

Goodwill of companies

The impairment test takes into consideration the cash-generating units’ overall capacity to
generate future cash flows. The Group prepares five-year forecasts of projected cash flows,
including the best available estimates of the income and expenses of the cash-generating units
using industry projections, past experience and future expectations.

Also, a residual value is calculated on the basis of the normalised cash flows of the last year
of the forecast, to which a perpetuity growth rate is applied which under no circumstances
exceeds the growth rates of previous years. The cash flow used to calculate residual value
takes into account the replacement investments required for the continuity of the business in
the future at the estimated growth rate,

The weighted average cost of capital (WACC) is used to discount cash flows, which will
depend on the type of business and on the market in which it is carried on. The average
leverage during the projection period is taken into account in the calculation of the WACC.

Other items calculated include: i) the effective cost of borrowings, which takes into account
the tax shield that they give rise to, based on the average tax rates in each country; and ii) the
estimated cost of equity based on a risk-free interest rate, (generally using as a benchmark the
return on a ten-year bond in Spain), the beta (which factors in the leverage and the risk
associated with the asset), a market premium (estimated on the basis of historical yields in the
capital markets) and a country-risk premium (that reflects the risk differential between the
various markets). These variables are tested using recent studies on premiums required at long
term, comparable companies in the industry and rates habitually used by investment banks.

The impairments recorded as a result of these analyses are described in Note 6 and are
recognised under “Result for impairment of assets on the income statement”,

Non-current assets in projects

This line item includes concession assets and projects with a limited duration and with an
independent financial structure (mainly property, plant and equipment of the Energy division).
These types of business are characterised by having a contractual structure that enables the
costs incurred in a project to be clearly determined (at both the initial investment stage and the
operating stage) and the related revenue to be reasonably projected over the life thereof,

To calculate the value in use of assets of this nature, the expected cash flows are projected
until the end of the life of the asset. Therefore, it is assumed that there is no terminal value.,
The projections include both known data (based on project contracts) and basic assumptions
supported by specific studies performed by experts (on demand, production, etc.). Also,
macroeconomic data, such as inflation, interest rates, etc. are projected using data provided by
independent specialist sources e.g. Bloomberg).

Since these assets are financed with funds borrowed specifically, the discounted cash flows
are those obtained by the shareholder after servicing the debt. The rates used to discount these
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cash flows are based on the cost of equity, and in each case include the business risk and the
sovereign risk relating to the location where the operation is being performed.

As a result of the analysis effected, the impairment of concession assets has been recognised
(see Note 7). In addition, the impairment of non-current assets in projects in the energy
division (sce Notc 4) has been recognised as “Result for impairment of assets on the income
statement.

F) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Finance leases

When the consolidated companies act as the lessee, they present the cost of the leased assets
in the consolidated balance sheet, based on the nature of the leased asset, and, simultaneously,
recognise a liability for the same amount (which will be the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the aggregate present values of the amounts payable to the lessor plus, where
applicable, the price of exercising the purchase option). These assets are depreciated using the
same criteria as those applied to similar items of property, plant and equipment that are
owned.

The finance charges arising under finance leases arc charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

When the Compaiiia Trasmediterrdnea subgroup acquires vessels under finance leases, it is
obliged to place deposits with a pre-established payment schedule and pre-established interest
to cover future finance lease payments from the moment construction of the vessels begins.

In 2013 no borrowing costs on the financing obtained for making the deposits were
capitalised to non-current assets (no such sum was recognised in 2012 either).

Operating leases

In operating leases, the ownership of the leased asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to the leased assets remain with the lessor, which recognises the assets at
their acquisition cost.

These assets are depreciated using a policy consistent with the lessor’s normal depreciation

policy for similar items and lease income is recognised in the income statement on a straight-
line basis.

When the consolidated companies act as the lessee, lease costs, including any incentives
granted by the lessor, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis.

Amounts received and receivable as incentives for the arrangement of operating leases are
also recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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G)  Non-current receivables and other non-current assets

“Non-Current Receivables and Other Non-Current Assets” includes the non-current trade

receivables, mainly from public authorities, and withholdings from trade receivables, relating
mainly to the Infrastructure division.

Since its adoption of IFRIC 12, the Acciona Group has recognised under “Non-Current
Receivables and Other Non-Current Assets” non-current assets associated with concessions in
which the grantor guarantees the recovery of the asset through the payment of a fixed or

determinable amount and, accordingly, in which, therefore, the operator does not bear any
demand risk.

This type of concession-related activity is carried on through investments mainly in transport,
water supply and hospital infrastructure that is operated by subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities or associates (concession operators), the detail being as follows:

- The concession infrastructure is owned by the grantor in most cases.

- The concession grantor, which can be a public or private sector entity, controls or regulates

the service offered by the concession operator and the conditions under which it should be
provided.

- The infrastructure is operated by the concession operator as established in the concession
tender specifications for an established concession term. At the end of this period, the assets

are returned to the concession grantor, and the concession operator has no right whatsoever
over these assets.

- The concession operator receives revenue for the services provided either directly from the
users or through the concession grantor.

The most significant accounting methods used by the Acciona Group in relation to these
concession arrangements are as follows:

- The account receivable is recognised for the present value of the amount receivable from the
grantor.

- Borrowing costs are not capitalised, either during the construction phase or after the
concession has started to operate.

- Even during the construction phase the Group recognises interest income earned on the
financial asset, based on its effective interest rate.

- In virtually all of the concessions of the Acciona Group, the construction was carried out by
Group companies. In this regard, the income and expenses corresponding to infrastructure
construction or upgrade services are recognised at the gross amount thereof (recognition of the
sales and the cost of sales in the consolidated financial statements of the Acciona Group),
recognising the construction margin in the consolidated financial statements. If construction
were not carried out by the Group itself, this fact would be taken into account for the purpose
of recognising sales and the cost of sales in the consolidated financial statements.
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- There is no depreciation or amortisation charge since the arrangements constitute a financial
asset,

- Annual billings are divided into a financial asset component recognised in the balance sheet
(and, therefore, not recognised as sales) and the component relating to services provided,
which is recognised under “Revenue”.

H)  Financial instrument disclosures

As a result of the adoption in 2007 of IFRS 7 and of the amendments to TAS 1 and IFRS 7, the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures on financial instruments and risk and capital
management were extended and are detailed in the following notes:

Financial asset and liability categories, including derivative financial instruments and

accounting policies are detailed in Note 3.2-i.
Classification of the fair value measurements of financial assets and for derivative
financial instruments consistent with the fair value hierarchy established in IFRS 7,

detailed in Note 3.2-.
Qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements relating to capital are detailed in

Note 16 g.
- Risk accounting and management policies are detailed in Note 19,

- Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting are detailed in Note 20.
Transfers from equity to profit for the year of settlements of hedging derivative financial

instrument transactions are detailed in Note 29,

D Financial instruments

Non-current and current financial assets excluding hedging derivatives

The financial assets held by the Group companies are classified as:

- Loans and receivables: financial assets originated by the companies in exchange for
supplying cash, goods or services directly to a debtor. These items are measured at
amortised cost, which is basically the initial market value, minus principal repayments,
plus the accrued interest receivable calculated using the effective interest method.

Held-to-maturity investments: assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity The Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them from the date of
purchase to the date of maturity. This category includes mainly short-term deposits, which
arc measured at amortised cost, as indicated above.

Held-for-trading financial assets: assets acquired by the companies with the intention of
generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in their prices or from differences between
their purchase and sale prices. This heading also includes financial derivatives not
considered to qualify for hedge accounting, as well as other assets which upon initial
recognition are designated, as permitied under IFRS, as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. They are measured at fair value at the date of subsequent
measurement where this can be determined reliably. In these cases, the gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement for the year. At
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31 December 2013 and 2012, the Acciona Group did not have any financial assets of this
type.

- Deposits and guaraniees: in the specific case of the acquisition of vessels under finance
lease agreements, as indicated in Note 3.2-f), the Compaiifa Trasmediterranea subgroup is
obliged to give deposits with a pre-established payment schedule and pre-established
interest to cover future finance lease payments. These deposits are recognised under “Non-
Current Financial Assets” and “Other Current Financial Assets” in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet, based on the dates on which the related lease payments payable
fall due. Both headings include the amounts effectively delivered and interest until year-
end calculated on a time proportion basis, which are taken to profit or loss over the term of
the lease, also on a time proportion basis.

- Available-for-sale financial assets: these relate to securities acquired that are not classified
in the other categorics, substantially all of which relate to investments in the capital of
companies. They are measured:

- At acquisition cost, adjusted for any impairment losses disclosed, in the case of
investments in unlisted companies, since it is not always possible to determine the fair
value reliably.

- At fair value when it is possible to determine it reliably, based on either the market
price or, in the absence thereof, using the price established in recent transactions or the
discounted present value of the future cash flows. The gains and losses from changes
in fair value are recognised directly in equity until the asset is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in equity are recognised in
the income statement for the year. If fair value is lower than acquisition cost and there
is objective evidence that the asset has suffered an impairment loss that cannot be
considered reversible, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.

At 31 December 2013, the available-for-sale financial assets were measured by
reference to quoted (unadjusted) market prices and categorised in level one of the fair
value measurement hierarchy established in IFRS 7.

In 2013 and 2012 no financial assets were reclassified among the categories defined in the
preceding paragraphs.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised using the trade date method.
Transfers of financial assets

The Acciona Group derecognises financial assets when they expire or when the rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
have also been transferred, such as in the case of firm asset sales, factoring of trade
receivables in which the company does not retain any credit or interest rate risk, sales of
financial assets under an agreement to repurchase them at fair value and the securitisation of
financial assets in which the transferor does not retain any subordinate financing or award any
kind of guarantee or assume any other kind of risk.
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Bank borrowings other than derivatives

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Borrowing costs, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption
and direct issue costs, are recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent
that they are not seitled in the period in which they arise. In subsequent periods, these
obligations are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

In specific cases where liabilities are the underlying of a fair value hedge, they arc measured,
exceptionally, at fair value for the portion of the hedged risk.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group’s activities expose it mainly to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange
rates and interest rates and in certain fuel stocks and fuel supplies. The Group uses foreign
exchange forward contracts and interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures.
Electricity and fuel price and supply hedging transactions are also arranged. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of
Directors.

Accounting policies:

Derivatives are recognised at fair value (see measurement bases below) at the consolidated
balance sheet date under “Other Current Financial Assets” or “Non-Current Financial Assets”
if positive and under “Bank Borrowings” (both current and non-current) if negative. Changes
in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as they arise. If the derivative has been designated as a hedge which is highly
effective, it is recognised as follows:

- Fair value hedges: these hedges are arranged to fully or partially reduce the risk of
fluctuations in the value of assets and liabilities (underlying) recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. The portion of the underlying for which the risk is being
hedged is measured at fair value, as is the related hedging instrument, and changes in the
fair values of both items are recognised under the same heading in the consolidated income
statement. At 31 December 2013, the Group had not arranged any fair value hedges.

- Cash flow hedges: these hedges are arranged to reduce the risk of potential changes in the
cash flows associated with the interest payments on non-current floating-rate financial
liabilities, exchange rates and fuel stock and fuel hedges. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives are recognised, with respect to the effective portion of the hedge, under “Equity
- Reserves - Valuation Adjustments - Hedges”. The cumulative gain or loss recognised in
this heading is transferred to the consolidated income statement to the extent of the impact
of the underlying (resulting from the risk hedged) on the consolidated income statement;
thus this effect is netted off under the same heading in the consolidated income statement.
Gains or losses on the ineffective portion of the hedges are recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement,
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- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation: changes in fair value are recognised, in
respect of the effective portion of these hedges, net of the related tax effect, as
“Translation Differences” in equity, and are transferred to the consolidated income
statement when the hedged investment is disposed of. At 31 December 2013, the Group
did not have any hedges relating to net investments in a foreign operation.

Group policy on hedging:

At the inception of the transaction, the Group designates and formally documents the hedging
relationship and the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. Hedges are only
recognised when the hedging relationship is expected, prospectively, to be highly effective
from inception and in subsequent years it will be effective to offset the changes in the fair
value or cash flows of the hedged item during the life of the hedge and, retrospectively, that
the actual effectiveness of the hedge, which can be reliably calculated, is within a range of
80 - 125% of the gain or loss on the hedged item.

The Group does not hedge forecast transactions, but rather only firm financing commitments.
If the cash flows from forecast transactions were hedged, the Group would assess whether
such transactions were highly probable and whether they were exposed to changes in cash
flows that could ultimately affect profit for the year.

If the cash flow hedge of a firm commitment or forecast transaction results in the recognition
of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, then, at the time the asset or liability is
recognised, the associated gains or losses on the derivative that had previously been
recognised in equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or liability. For
hedges that do not result in recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, amounts deferred
in equity are recognised in the income statement in the same period as that in which the
hedged item affects net profit or loss.

Compound financial instruments with multiple embedded derivatives

The Acciona Group does not have any compound financial instruments with embedded
derivatives.

Measurement bases

The Group measures derivatives not traded on an organised market (OTC) by discounting the
expected cash flows and using generally accepted option pricing models based on spot and
futures market conditions at the end of cach year. The fair value calculations for each type of
financial instrument are as follows:

Interest rate swaps are valued by discounting future settlements between fixed and
floating interest rates to their present value, in line with implicit market rates, obtained
from long-term interest rate swap curves. Implicit volatility is used to calculate the fair
values of caps and floors using option pricing models.

- Foreign currency hedging and option contracts arc valued using the spot exchange rate,
the forward interest rate curves of the related currencies and, in the case of options,
implicit volatility until maturity.
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- Commodities contracts (for fuel) are valued in a similar way, in this case, taking into
account the futures prices of the underlying and the implicit volatility of the options.

In order to determine the adjustment for credit risk in the valuation of derivatives at 31
December 2013, the technique applied has been based on a calculation through simulations of
the total expected exposure (incorporating both the actual and the potential exposure) adjusted
in line with the probability of default over time and the severity (of potential loss) assigned to
the Company and to each of the counterparties.

More specifically, the adjustment for credit risk has been obtained from the following
formula:

EAD * PD * LGD

where

- EAD: Exposure at default at any given moment. This is calculated through the simulation of
scenarios with market price curves.

- PD: Probability of default i.c. that one or other of the counterpartics may fail to fulfil its
payment obligations at any given moment.

- LGD: Loss given default with a severity = 1- (recovery rate): The percentage of losses
ultimately occurring when one of the counterparties is subject to default.

The total expected exposure from derivatives is obtained using observable market inputs, such

as interest curves, exchange rates and volatilities depending on the market conditions on the
valuation date.

The inputs applied to obtain credit risk and counterparty risk (determination of the probability
of default) are mainly based on the application of credit spreads of the Company or other
comparable businesses currently traded on the market {CDS curves, IRR of debt issues). In
the absence of credit spreads of the Company or other comparable businesses and in order to
maximise the use of relevant observable variables, the listed references taken into account are
those considered most suitable in each case (listed credit spread indices). For counterparties
with credit information available, the credit spreads used are obtained from the Credit Default
Swaps (CDS) listed on the market,

Furthermore, for the adjustment of the fair value to the credit risk, consideration has been
given to the credit enhancements in terms of collateral or guarantees when determining the
severity rate to be applied to each position. Severity is considered to be unique over time. If
there are no credit enhancements in terms of collateral or guarantees, the minimum recovery
rate applied has been 40%. Nonetheless, this rate would range between 65% and 85%

depending on the degree of progress in the project (construction or operation phase) for
derivatives contracted under Project Finance structures.

At 31 December 2013, the fair value valuations made of the different derivative financial
instruments including the information used for the calculation of the adjustment for credit risk
of both the Company and its counterparty are classified at level 2 in the fair value hierarchy
established in IFRS 7 as the inputs based on prices listed for similar instruments on active
markets (not included in level 1), listed prices for identical or similar instruments on markets
that are not active, and techniques based on valuation models for which all the significant
inputs are observable on the market or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Although the Acciona Group has determined that most of the inputs used to evaluate the
derivatives are at level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, the credit risk adjustments use level 3
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inputs such as the credit estimations based on the credit rating or comparable companies to
assess the probability of insolvency for the Company or its counterparty. The Group has
assessed the relevance of the credit risk adjustments for the total valuation of the derivative

financial instruments and has concluded that they are not material.

Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value, which does not
differ substantially from their fair value.

Current/Non-current classification

In the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, assets and liabilities maturing within no
more than twelve months are classified as current items and those maturing within more than
twelve months are classified as non-current items. The companies in the Real Estate division
classify their liabilities based on their production cycle, which usually encompasses a longer
period than the aforementioned twelve months. The current assets and liabilities allocated to
this division with an estimated maturity of more than twelve months are as follows:

- Fhousands of enroy

2013 2012
Inventorfes .. 781,514 910 809
Trade receivables
Total current assets - 781514 916,809
Bank horowings 104,178 122 818
Other current liabilities 4.530 10,556
Totat curvent linbilibies 108,708 133,378

Loans maturing within twelve months but whose long-term refinancing is ensured at the
Group’s discretion through available long-term credit facilities are classified as non-current

liabilities.

1)) Inventories
The Group companies measure their inventories as follows:

In the Construction business, procurements, consisting basically of construction materials
located at the sites of the various construction projects in progress, are measured at
acquisition cost. Semi-finished goods or work in progress to be included in the value of
the construction projects are recognised at production cost.

Land is measured at the lower of acquisition cost, plus urban development costs, if any,
purchase transaction costs and borrowing costs incurred from the date of commencement
of the development of the site for its desired use until construction begins, and estimated
market value. If the building work is halted due to its rescheduling or other reasons, the

borrowing costs cease to be capitalised.

The costs incurred in property developments (or in parts of a development) unfinished at
year-end are treated as inventories. These costs include land, urban development and
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construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs incurred in the construction period, and
other allocable direct and indirect costs. Commercial costs are charged to the income
statement in the year in which they are incurred.

The borrowing costs capitalised in 2013 and 2012 amounted to EUR 0.6 million and EUR
0.2 million, respectively (see Note 29).

Other inventories are recognised generally at the lower of weighted average cost and net
realisable value. These inventories can, on a residual basis, be measured at FIFO cost.

The Group assesses the fair value of the real estate inventories at the end of each year based
on the appraisals undertaken by independent valuers, and recognises the appropriate write-
down if the inventories are overstated. The Acciona Group calculated the fair value of its
property developments based on the appraisals conducted at 31 December 2013 by its
independent valuers: “Savills Consultores Inmobiliarios, S.A.” (whose report was issued on
12 February 2014) and “Instituto de Valoraciones, S.A.” (whose report was issued on 17

January 2014).

The appraisals were carried out in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards
issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) of the United Kingdom and the
International Valuation Standards (IVS) issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee (IVSC). The residual method was used to calculate the fair value, supplemented
by the comparative method. This value constitutes the best estimate of the market value of

these assets.

Whenever there is a reasonable change in the basic assumptions that affect the recoverable
amount of the assets, the Group performs a sensitivity analysis to determine whether this
change may reduce the realisable value to below the carrying amount, in which case, an

impairment loss is recognised.

K) Treasury shares

At 31 December 2013, Acciona, S.A. and its subsidiary Finanzas Dos, S.A. held 140,440
treasury shares representing 0.245% of the share capital at that date. The acquisition cost of
these shares amounted to EUR 6,461 thousand. The acquisition cost of the treasury shares and
the gains or losses on transactions involving them are recognised directly in equity (see

Note 16).

At 31 December 2012, Acciona, S.A. and its subsidiary Finanzas Dos, S.A. held 108,781
treasury shares representing 0.19% of the share capital at that date. The acquisition cost of
these shares amounted to EUR 4,107 thousand. The acquisition cost of the treasury shares and
the gains or losses on transactions involving them are recognised directly in equity (see

Note 16).

Effective 6 June 2012, the Board of Directors of Acciona, S.A. reduced capital by EUR
6,290,450 through the retirement of 6,290,450 treasury shares. This resolution to reduce
capital was approved by the shareholders at a General Meeting held on 24 May 2012 (see

Note 16-a)).
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L) Termination benefits

Under current legislation, the Spanish consolidated companies and certain foreign companies
are required to pay termination benefits to employees terminated without just cause. The
Acciona Group companies currently do not have any extraordinary employee termination
plans that have not been appropriately provisioned in accordance with current legislation.

M)  Provisions

The Group’s consolidated financial statements include all the provisions covering present
obligations at the balance sheet date arising from past events which could give rise to a loss
for the companies that is certain as to its nature but uncertain as to its amount and/or timing.
They include all the provisions with respect to which it is considered that it is more likely
than not that the obligation will have to be settled.

Provisions, which are quantified on the basis of the best information available on the
consequences of the event giving rise to them and are reviewed and adjusted at the end of
each year, are used to cater for the specific obligations for which they were originally
recognised. Provisions are fully or partially reversed when such obligations cease to exist or
are reduced.

Litigation and'or claims in process

At the end of 2013 and 2012, certain litigation and claims were in process against the
consolidated companies arising from the ordinary course of their operations. The Group’s
directors, taking into account the opinion of its legal advisers, consider that the outcome of
litigation and claims will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements
for the years in which they are settled. Accordingly, they did not deem it necessary to record
an additional provision in this connection.

Operating provisions and allowances

These provisions and allowances include costs that have not yet been incurred. The provision
for the cost of completion of construction projects is intended to cover the expenses arising
from the date on which project units are completed to the date of delivery to the customer.

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

Except for the two groups discussed later in this section, the Acciona Group companies do not
have any pension plans to supplement social security pensions. The appropriate provisions are
recognised for terminations of permanent site personnel.

- The collective agreements of certain companies in the Compafifa Trasmediterranea
subgroup establish benefits of specific amounts for employees who reach retirement age,
subject to compliance with the conditions stipulated in thesc agreements. Some of these
collective agreements also establish a loyalty bonus based on the employee’s length of service
at the company,
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On 15 December 2002, pursuant to Royal Decree 1588/1999, of 15 October, Compafiia
Trasmediterranea externalised its employee retirement benefit obligations by arranging a
single-premium insurance policy. The cost recognised at 31 December 2013 and 2012 relating
to the amounts payable to the insurance company for the benefit obligations accrued in those
years amounted to EUR 196 thousand and EUR 385 thousand, respectively, and this amount
was recognised under “Wages and Salaries” in the accompanying consolidated income
statement.

“Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at 31
December 2013 and 2012 includes the liabilities relating to Compafiia Trasmediterrénea’s
loyalty bonus obligations, amounting to EUR 740 thousand and EUR 741 thousand,
respectively.

- As a result of the acquisition of assets and/or companies from the Endesa Group in
2009, certain companies in the Acciona Group entered into or were subrogated to collective
agreements that establish benefits of specific amounts for employees included in such
agreements who reach retirement age, provided that the conditions established in the
agreements are met. Some of these collective agreements also establish a loyalty bonus based
on the employee’s length of service at the companies. The impact of these obligations is not
material.

These companies also have various pension obligations to their employees, which vary
depending on the Endesa Group company from which they came. These obligations, which
are both defined benefit and defined contribution obligations, are basically formalised in
pension plans or insurance policies, except as regards certain benefits in kind, mainly
electricity supply obligations, which, due to their nature, have not been externalised and are
covered by the related in-house provisions.

For the defined benefit plans, the companies recognise the expenditure relating to these
obligations on an accrual basis over the working life of the employees by performing at the
consolidated balance sheet date the appropriate actuarial studies calculated using the projected
unit credit method. The past service costs relating to changes in benefits are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement as the benefits vest.

The defined benefit plan obligations represent the present value of the accrued benefits after
deducting the fair value of the qualifying plan assets. The actuarial losses and gains arising in
the measurement of both the plan liabilities and the plan assets are recognised directly in
equity under “Reserves - Change due to Actuarial Losses and Gains on Pension Schemes”.

For each of the plans, any positive difference between the actuarial liability for past services
and the plan assets is recognised under “Provisions” in the consolidated balance sheet and any
negative difference is recognised under “Trade and Other Receivables” on the asset side of
the consolidated balance sheet, provided that such negative difference is recoverable by the
Group, usually through a reduction in future contributions.

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the consolidated
income statement for the year, in line with the rendering of services by the employees.

The Group recognises the full amount of the expenditure relating io these plans when the
obligation arises by performing the appropriate actuarial studies to calculate the present
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actuarial obligation at year-end. The actuarial gains and losses disclosed each year arc
recognised in the consolidated income statement for that year.

The impact of these plans on the consolidated income statement is not material (see Note 17).

The Group recognises termination benefits when there is an individual or collective
agreement with the employees or a genuine expectation that such an agreement will be
reached that will enable the employees, unilaterally or by mutual agreement with the Group
company, to cease working for the Group in exchange for a termination benefit. If a mutual
agreement is required, a provision is only recorded in situations in which the Group has
decided to consent to the termination of the employees when this has been requested by them.
In all cases in which these provisions are recognised the employees have an expectation that
these early retirements will take place.

N) Grants

Government grants related to assets to cover staff re-training costs are recognised as income
once all the conditions attaching to them have been fulfilled over the periods necessary to
match them with the related costs.

Government grants related to property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets are treated

as deferred income, are classified under “Other Non-Current Liabilities” and are taken to
income over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned under “Other Income™.

0)] Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents the amounts receivable for the goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes. Sales of goods are recognised
when substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred.

Following is a detail of certain of the particular features of the business activities carried on
by the Group:

Construction business.

The Group companies recognise construction contract revenue and expenses by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the consolidated balance sheet date,
determined on the basis of an examination of the work performed. Under this method,
contract revenue is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the accounting periods
in which the contract work is performed, and contract costs are recognised as an expense in
the accounting periods in which the work for which they are incurred is performed, provided
that:

- Total contract revenue and the costs to complete the contract can be measured reliably;
where appropriate, estimated contract revenue and contract costs are reviewed and revised
as the contract progresses.

- Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will be obtained.

- The costs attributable to the contract can be clearly identified and measured reliably.
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In exceptional cases, where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred and
contract revenue is recognised only to the extent of the probable recoverability of contract
costs incurred.

In practice, revenue relates to the work completed in the year (as determined in the
aforementioned examination), measured at the contract prices, provided that the work in
question is included in the subject-matter of the main contract entered into with the customer.

Since contracts can be subject to variations during the performance of the construction project
-due to instructions from the customer to change the scope of the work to be performed-
contract variations are only recognised as revenue when negotiations have reached an
advanced stage and, therefore, it is sufficiently certain that the customer will approve the
variation.

Late-payment interest resulting from a delay in the payment of progress billings by the
customer is only recognised when it can be measured reliably and its collection is reasonably
assured.

If, due either to a delay in collection or to the insolvency of the customer, uncertainty arises as
to the collectability of an item already rccognised as contract revenue, the related provision
for uncollectable amounts is recorded on the basis of the estimated customer risk.

Construction contract costs are recognised on an accrual basis, i.e. they are recognised as an
expense in the year in which the work to which they relate is performed. Costs that relate to
future activity on the contract, such as insurance premiums, site installations, fencing and
enclosures, etc., are initially recognised as assets and are periodically charged to income on
the basis of the stage of completion of the contract.

As regards the depreciation of property, plant and equipment used in construction contracts,
the assets whose estimated useful life coincides with the duration of the construction work are
depreciated over the term of the contract so that they are fully depreciated upon completion
thereof.

Machinery whose useful life exceeds the term of the contract is depreciated systematically on
the basis of the technical criteria stipulated in the various contracts in which it is used.

Machinery removal and site installation dismantling costs, upkeep costs within the warranty
period and the costs, if any, arising in the period from the completion of the construction work
to the date of final settlement are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the life of the
construction project, since they relate both to the completed contract units and to future
activity on the contract.

When it is considered probable that estimated contract costs will exceed contract revenue, a
provision for the expected loss is recognised with a charge to the income statement for the
year in which the loss becomes known, irrespective of whether the construction units under
the contract have been completed.
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Real Estate business:

The Group companies recognise property sale revenue and expenses on the date the property
is delivered, since this is considered to be the time when the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership are transferred to the buyers.

Accordingly, at the date of delivery of the property the Group companies recognise the
provisions, if any, required to cover the contractually stipulated costs not yet incurred in
relation to the asset delivered. These provisions arise from a present obligation of the Group
company, the amount of which can be estimated reliably and whose settlement will probably
give rise to an outflow of resources for the Group company.

Rental revenue is recognised on an accrual basis, and incentive-related income and the initial
costs of the lease agreements are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the agreement.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of property
developments or investment property -assets that necessarily require a substantial period of
time to be prepared for their intended use or sale- are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for use or sale, provided that the fair value
exceeds the accumulated cost of the asset. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Services business:

Revenue associated with the rendering of services is also recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date, provided the outcome of the
transaction can be estimated reliably.

The Group companies recognise as the profit or loss on their services each year the difference
between production (value at the selling price of the services provided during the period, as
stipulated in the main contract entered into with the customer or in approved amendments or
addenda thereto, or of the services not yet approved whose recovery is reasonably certain) and
the costs incurred during the year, since the revenue and expenses from projects in the
services industry can undergo major changes during the period of performance, which are
difficult to predict and quantify objectively.

Price revisions stipulated in the initial contract entered into with the customer are recognised
as revenue on an accrual, basis, irrespective of whether they have been approved by the
customer on an annual basis.

FEnergy business:

One of businesses of the Acciona Group is the turnkey construction of wind farms and other
energy production facilities. The total costs incurred in these projects are recognised as
operating expenses and the related sales are recognised in accordance with the stage of
completion of the project, calculated on the basis of the price and terms and conditions of the
sale agreement at the cost incurred and at the estimated cost, based on the detailed budgets of

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 41 of 169 April 5th, 2014



EDWARD EWING - INTERPRETE JURADO

ga, 2 - 4°C /28017 MADRI
=918 514 253 - @: edward@sande.es

Calle Francisco Madaria

=

Certified Translation

each contract applied since the inception thereof. Losses on contracts are recognised in full in
the consolidated income statement for the year as soon as they become known.,

P) Income tax. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The current income tax expense is calculated by aggregating the current tax arising from the
application of the tax rate to the adjusted accounting profit for the year, after deducting the tax
credits allowable for tax purposes, plus the change in deferred tax assets and ligbilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the taxes expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities in the consolidated financial
statements and their tax bases. They are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the pertod when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Income tax and changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities not arising from business
combinations are recognised in the consolidated income statement or in equity accounts in the
consolidated balance sheet depending on where the profits or losses giving rise to them have
been recognised.

Changes arising from business combinations that are not recognised on the acquisition of the
controlling interest because their recovery is not assured are recognised by reducing, where
appropriate, the carrying amount of goodwill recognised when the business combination was
accounted for or, if no such goodwill exists, using the aforementioned method.

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences, and tax loss and tax credit carryforwards
are only recognised if it is considered probable that the consolidated companies will have
sufficient future taxable profits against which they can be utilised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised are reassessed at each balance sheet date in
order to ascertain whether they still exist, and the appropriate adjustments are made on the
basis of the findings of the analyses performed.

Q)  Foreign currency balances and transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of each company are recognised
in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. During the year, the differences that arise between the balances translated at the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction and the balances translated at the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of collection or payment are recorded as finance costs or
finance income in the consolidated income statement.

Also, balances receivable or payable at 31 December each year denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies in which the financial statements of the consolidated
companies are denominated are translated to euros at the year-end exchange rates. The
translation differences are recognised as finance costs or finance income in the consolidated
income statement.

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 42 of 169 April 5th, 2014



EDWARD EWING - INTERPRETE JURADO
Calle Francisco Madariaga, 2 - 4°C / 28017 MADRI[

918 514 253 - @: edward@sande.es

Certified Translation

R) Environmental activities

In general, environmental activities are considered to be operations whose main purpose is to
prevent, reduce or redress damage to the environment.

Investments relating to environmental activities are mcasured at acquisition cost and
capitalised as an addition to non-current assets in the year in which they are made.

Environmental protection and improvement expenses are charged to income in the year in
which they are incurred, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financial flow arises.

Provisions for probable or certain third-party liability, litigation in process and outstanding
environmental indemnity payments or obligations of undetermined amount not covered by the
insurance policics taken out are recorded when the liability or obligation giving rise to the
indemnity or payment arises.

S) Discontinued operations and non-current assets_and liabilities classified as held for
sale

The Group classifies as “Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale” property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, other non-current assets or investments under “Investments
Accounted for Using the Equity Method” and disposal groups (groups of assets which will be
disposed of together with their directly associated liabilities) for which at the date of the
consolidated balance sheet an active programme and reasonable prices had been established to
sell them and the sale is expected to be completed within twelve months from that date.

The Group classifies as “Discontinued Operations” the business lines that were sold or
disposed of by other means or which meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale,
including, where applicable, assets which, together with the business line, form part of the
same disposal plan or are classified as held for sale as a result of commitments acquired. Also,
companies acquired exclusively with a view to resale are classified as “Discontinued
Operations”.

These assets or disposal groups are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell, and depreciation on such assets ceases from the time they are classified as
“Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale”. However, at the date of each consolidated
balance sheet the related valuation adjustments are made to ensure that the carrying amount is
not higher than fair value less costs to sell.

The non-current assets held for sale and the components of the disposal groups classified as
held for sale are presented in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as follows: the
assets as a single line item called “Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations™ and the liabilities also as a single line item called “Liabilities
Associated with Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”.

The profit or loss after tax of discontinued operations is presented as a single line item in the
consolidated income statement as “Profit/Loss after Tax from Discontinued Operations”.

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 43 of 169 April 5th, 2014



EDWARD EWING - INTERPRETE JURADQ
Calle Francisco Madariaga, 2 - 4°C / 28017 MADF-

—=2 W 918514 253 - @ edward@sande.es

Certified Translation

T) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit or loss attributable to the Parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, excluding the
average number of shares of the Parent held by the Group companics.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders adjusted by the effect attributable to the dilutive potential ordinary shares by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all the potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares of the Parent. For these
purposes, it is considered that the shares are converted at the beginning of the year or at the
date of issue of the potential ordinary shares, if the latter were issued during the current
period. Since the Group does not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares, the basic
earnings per share and the diluted earnings per share for 2013 and 2012 coincide.

U) Consolidated statement of cash flows

The following terms, with the meanings specified, are used in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, which was prepared using the indirect method:

- Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are taken to be
changes in the value of short-term, highly liquid investments.

- Operating activities: the principal revenue-producing activities of the Company and other
activities that are not investing or financing activities. Beginning with the profit before tax
from continuing operations, in addition to the adjustment for “Depreciation and
Amortisation Charge”, transfers of interest paid and received are recognised under “Other
Adjustments to Profit (Net)” although on a separate basis, as well as the transfer of the
gains or losses on disposal of non-current assets included under investing activities and,
lastly, the adjustments to the results of companies accounted for using the equity method
and, in general, any results that do not generate cash flows.

- Investing activities: the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investrments
not included in cash and cash equivalents.

- Financing activities: activities that result in changes in the size and composition of equity
and borrowings that are not operating activities.

3.3 Accounting cstimates and judgements
The information in these financial statements is the responsibility of the Parent’s directors.

In the consolidated financial statements for 2013 and 2012 estimates were made by the

Group’s directors in order to measure certain of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and

obligations reported herein. These estimates relate basically to the following:

- The measurement of assets and goodwill to ascertain whether there are any
impairment losses thereon.

- Distribution of the cost of the business combinations.
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- Recognition of revenue in the construction business.

- The assumptions used in the actuarial calculation of the pension liabilities and
obligations.

- The useful life of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assets.

- The assumptions used in measuring the fair value of the financial instruments.

- The probability of the occurrence and the amount of liabilities of undetermined
amount or contingent liabilities.

- The future facility closure and land restoration costs.

- The results for tax purposes of the various Group companies that will be reported to

the tax authorities in the future that served as the basis for recognising the various
income tax-related balances in the accompanying consolidated financial statements,

These estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 31 December
2013 and 2012 on the events analysed. However, events that take place in the future might
make it necessary to change these estimates. Any such changes would be made in accordance
with the requirements of IAS 8.

3.4 Changes in accounting estimates and policies and correction of fundamental errors

- Changes in accounting estimates: the effect of any change in accounting estimates is
recognised under the same income statement heading as that under which the expense or
income measured using the previous estimate was recognised.

- Changes in accounting policies and correction of fundamental errors. The effects of
changes and corrections of this kind are recognised as foltows: if material, the cumulative
effect at the beginning of the year is adjusted under “Reserves” and the effect for the
current year is recognised in the income statement. In these cases, the financial data for
the comparative year presented together with those for the current year are restated.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no significant changes in accounting cstimates or
accounting policies or corrections of errors.

4, Property, plant and equipment

The changes in 2013 and 2012 in cost and accumulated depreciation were as follows (in
thousands of euros):

Advances
and
prupeity,
plant and Other Accumuiated
| eqaipment itenis of dept eciution
. Electricity Other in the praperty, amd

" Preperty.plant.  Iandand  generating _ plantand  cowrseof  plant and impanment
and equipment huiidings facilitics machinety copstrwetion  equipment losses Total
?;};;i‘i at 477040 10,691,653 1,470,981 746,940 254683 (3,221,736) 10,419,561
Varaaons dve to
chiinges m the ! p . ) | o
‘srops of A7 LRy (1% 527 (3.246)
censplidation
Adcitisiiiaage 7,020 18,621 39309 376,605 24966 (647.993)  (181,472)
for the year ’ ? ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
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Advanees
oo amd
. property. ' - Sl
oo0ow . e o pntand  Other Acemmulated. -
] e © o equipment . ifems of . depreciation
Electricity Other. - inthe property, amd

Property,plent . Landand ' geacraing - plantand  ourscof - | plantand ' impeirment .
' gnd equipment- - buldings fueplifies,  muchmery éomafruction eqmipment  losses Total -
Reductions (732) (7,185)  (103860)  (18336)  (18918) 92057 (56.974)
Clramstas 3 THEET el | BIWR L ILeS6  e3MT . 1945
Other changes 3901 (19060)  (3,682) (3,305) 1,089 (14421)  (35478)
o SISABT 1LASH016  LATLASL 21T 173758 (38SAOLN) 1044316
Variations due to

changes in the

scope of 9 (115,699) 538 145 43) 27,986 (87,064)
consolidation

Additions/chat Aol 3 i K i PN | -
Pt 5916 12100 42430 15200 10ATT  (1479960) (1213.608)
Reductions (1,478) (524)  (82,700)  (I8748)  (10,685) 73032 (41,009)
“Fravsfers (638 AT (0776 Q45ABD)  (BISH (RS (i43.060)
Other changes (3.612)  (211,104)  (17.841) 3.626) (6,024 56,377 (185,830)
s 500473 1346210 T 1403502 LGM 28719 (5195889 851365

The breakdown of the net balances at the end of 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Property,plant =~ -~ 7 - .
and equipment . - - CLE D P
o - © Accumulated o O Aecumnlated
© .. . deprecation y - oodepreciation oo
Cost = = .amd o0 Cost - - and Total -
; - impamment W . c impanment - - . . -
) 0 = o | fosses .  lusses . —
Land and buildings 509473 (157.797) 351,676 525 487 (153.143) 372,344
Blecunity genctafing facilities - 1346210 @BAIN 7303008 11454016 (2616965 8837051
Other plant 933,974 (649 490) 284,484 999,410 (549,956} 449 454
Machnery .- 460528 (3074800 162048 472,441 (35357 116367
Advances and properts. plant and " '
equipment in the course of construction 201.634 = 201 634 274,117 - 274117
Other ftens of property, plant and 5 R T .
o . pepsaty. p METIS 7 (177.9%9) 0920 273,758 (179279} . 94483
Total 13,709,538 (5,195.883) 8,513,655 13,999,229 (3,854,913) 10,144,316

The most notable change in 2013 to this line item on the balance sheet relates to the additions
for the impairment of the value of tangible assets in the amount of 798 million euros. In
accordance with the indications given in Note 3.2.E), most of these impairments at 31
December 2013 correspond to assets in the Energy division, mainly in domestic assets for
wind power, hydroelectric, biomass and solar thermal electricity generation, in the amount of
EUR 562.5 million and wind power generation assets located in United States in the amount
of EUR 55.1 million.

With respect to the property, plant and equipment allocated to the domestic market, since
there has been a new significant regulatory change in the Spanish electricity system (see
Note 2) the Acciona Group has evaluated the main implications on the project flows from not
only the levies and charges in place from 1 January 2013 on the revenue from the sale of
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energy, but also the loss of the fixed production tariff derived from RDL 9/2013 and the
collection of remuneration for the investment or transaction, as appropriate, for those projects
where this is applicable during their regulatory lifespan according to the draft Ministerial
Order made available to the stakeholders as part of the interviews with interested parties
initiated by the National Markets and Competition Commission (CNMC) in F ebruary 2014.

For the calculation of the value in use, a projection of the expected cash flows has been
prepared until the end of the asset’s working life or the concession (in some cases, as with
wind power technology, this is greater than the regulatory lifespan), without any remainder
value.

The cost of own capital used to update the asset cash flows has been 9.5%. Assets with certain
peculiar features, such as not being leveraged, have been discounted from the project cash
flows using a weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of 7.2%.

After effecting this analysis, it was seen that it was necessary to apply impairment to the
tangible assets in the cost of different projects under operation for a global amount, as
indicated in the preceding paragraphs, of EUR 562.5 million and recognised under “Result of
asset impairment” on the consolidated income statement. Wind power generation assets were
particularly affected due mainly to the fact that the wind farms commissioned prior to 2005,
according to the draft Ministerial Order, will cease to have any additional remuneration at the
market price (pool), as will hydroelectric assets for which, over and above the fall in margin
under the new regulatory framework, the forecasts have worsened in the course of the year
with regard to the renewal of certain concessions on their maturity.

Finally, the biomass and solar thermal generation assets have been affected to a lesser degree.
In the case of biomass because the relative importance of this asset class for the Group’s mix
of generation assets is not very relevant and, in the case of solar thermal assets because they
have been less impacted by the new Royal Decree compared to the impact suffered in the
preceding regulation.

Furthermore, the Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on the outcome of the
impairment test in the event of variations in the following hypotheses:

- Increase/Reduction in the cost of own capital and the WACC rate

- Increase/Reduction in the pool’s tariffs

- Increase/Reduction in the Long-term CPI

The results of these sensitivity analyses indicate that:

- With a WACC rate of 6.7% and a cost of own capital of 8.4%, the impairment would be
EUR 106 million less. With a WACC rate of 7.7% and a cost of own capital of 10.5%, the
impairment would increase by EUR 128 million.

- In addition, upward and downward variations of 5% in the pool’s tariffs would respectively

result in a reduction and an increase in the impairment recognised in the amounts of EUR 51
million and EUR 106 million.
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- Furthermore, upward and downward variations of 50 basis points in the long-term CPI
applicable to the operating and maintenance costs would respectively result in an increase and
a reduction in impairment in the amounts of EUR 32 miilion and EUR 19 million.

With respect to the plant, property and equipment allocated to the US market, certain wind
power assets presented signs of impairment though their scant profitability at the close or
previous financial year, so they were subjected to an impairment test. During 2013, energy
prices have continued to fall and the long-term bilateral power sale contracts being concluded
on the US market reflect prices that do not show signs of any recovery in the medium term. In
consequence, at 31 December 2013, the Group has re-assessed the impairment tests to reflect
the new price curve hypotheses. The costs of own capital used to update the cash flows from
these projects have ranged between 7% and 8%, depending on the state in which each asset is
located (and this rules which regulation is applicable) and the contracts on prices signed at
each wind farm.

According to the results of these analyses, impairments amounting to EUR 55.1 million have
been recognised for assets under operation on this market (EUR 30.6 million at 31 December
2012).

These amounts are recognised on the income statement under the heading “Result due to asset
impairment”.

On the other hand, with respect to the addition of plant, property and equipment during the
2013 financial year, most of these addition were recognised under the heading “Advances and
plant, property and equipment in progress” and basically correspond to several wind farm and
photovoltaic projects developed in Costa Rica, South Africa and Poland for the Energy
division, as well as the acquisition of various items of machinery needed for the execution of
building works by the Infrastructure division.

During 2012, the most significant additions were in relation to the performance of wind
projects in Croatia, Poland, Italy and Spain and solar thermal facilities also in Spain, all of
which are in the Energy division.

In addition, during the 2013 financial year, there were reductions in the plant, property and
equipment basically within the Energy division as a consequence of the disposal of a wind
farm in South Korea (under “Variations due to change of scope™) and the re-classification as
Assets Held for Sale of several wind farms located in Germany (see Note 24), under the
heading “Transfers”.

Disposals in 2012 related mainly to the disposal of two vessels by the Compafiia
Trasmediterranea subgroup.

At 31 December 2013, EUR 201,144 thousand of property, plant and equipment (31
December 2012: EUR 102,642 thousand) had been classified under “Non-Current Assets
Classified as Held for Sale”, related mainly to vessels belonging to the Compafiia
Trasmediterranea subgroup and several wind farms in Germany (see Note 24).

“Other Changes” includes the negative effect of translation differences in 2013 for an amount
of EUR 186 million (2012: negative amount of EUR 11 million),
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“Other Plant” consists mainly of vessels belonging to the Compafiia Trasmediterrinca
subgroup, with a gross cost of EUR 726 million. As a result of deviations from the business
plan and in connection with the fleet optimisation begun by the subgroup in 2012 and the
operating losses in 2013, new signs of impairment in their value came to light and so the
Group has commissioned new appraisals from independent experts to assess whether the
recoverable value covers the carrying value at 31 December 2013. The Tradex Shipbrokers,
S.A. appraisal company was hired and, in light valuations provided by these independent
experts, the Acciona Group has recognised impairment in the amount of EUR 100 million
euros reflected under “Result from asset impairment”, Of this sum, an amount of EUR 15
million corresponds to vessels classified as “Non-current assets held for sale”, and the rest to
vessels reflected under “Plant, property and equipment”.

For its part, “Advances and Property, Plant and Equipment in the Course of Construction™
includes mainly the costs of constructing certain wind and photovoltaic farms located in Costa
Rica and South Africa by the energy division and which have not yet come into service.

In 2013 the companies capitalised to property, plant and equipment finance costs amounting
to EUR 12.9 million and EUR 13.7 million as of 31 December 2012 (see Note 29).

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment in use at 31 December 2013 and 2012
amounted to EUR 494 million and EUR 381 million, respectively; most of these assets are
currently in use.

At 31 December 2013, the Group companies had property, plant and equipment purchase
commitments amounting to EUR 288 million, mainly for wind farm projects undertaken by
the Energy division for projects undertaken in countries with projects under way, namely:
South Africa, Costa Rica and Chile. The amount committed at 31 December 2012 came to
EUR 33 million.

The Group has taken out insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which its property,
plant and equipment are subject and the claims that might be filed against it for carrying on its
business activities. These policies are considered to provide adequate cover for the related
risks.

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment did not include any
material gross amount in 2013 or 2012 in respect of assets held under finance leases.

The Group has mortgaged land and buildings totalling EUR 28 million (EUR 34 million in
2012) to secure credit facilities granted to the Group by banks. In addition, at 31 December
2013, certain vessels with a carrying amount of EUR 182 million (EUR 316 million in 2012)
had been mortgaged to sccure repayment of the loans received for their acquisition or as
collateral for the funding of working capital. Of this amount, EUR 55 million are classified as
“Non-current assets classified as held for sale” (EUR 102 million in 2012).

5. Investment property

The Group’s investment property relates mainly to properties earmarked for lease.

The changes in 2013 and 2012 in the Group’s investment property were as follows:
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Tovestnrent pmpem Thousands of editos
‘ ' .Aceﬁmulﬁted
depreciation and
Cost impairment losses Total
Balarice at 312710 - . . Lo 435222 - @33ed 341,858
Additions 315 (10.935) (10.620)
Drspysals {1,182y - - 161 (1,631)
Transfers £3,413) 301 (3,112)
Ctiher changes -d2 &5y LLED.
Balance at 31/12/12 420,964 {93,882) 327,082
- Addutions - 318 {9,845 (85260
Disposals (214) 2,057 1,843
Transfers @EALT 8 4 06%)
Other changes 3 )
' Balance at 3112413 416546 (161,221) 315328

No significant changes have taken place in 2013. Tn 2012, the main variations were related to
the disposals of investment property arising basically from the sale of properties earmarked
for lease.

At 31 December 2013, EUR 62,407 thousand (31 December 2012: EUR 93,860 thousand)
corresponding to this balance sheet heading were classified under “Non-Current Assets
Classifted as Held for Sale” (see Note 24).

The fair value of the investment property at 31 December 2013 and 2012 calculated on the
basis of appraisals undertaken at that date by independent valuers (see Note 3.2-e), amounted
to EUR 420,569 thousand (31 December 2012: EUR 467,168 thousand) of which EUR
62,407 thousand (31 December 2012: EUR 93,860 thousand) corresponded to investment
property recognised as assets held for sale (see Note 24).

In 2013, as a result of the appraisals discussed in the preceding paragraph, the Group
recognised additional impairment losses on investment property of EUR 2,805 thousand,
which were recognised under “Gains or Losses from Impairment of Non-Current Assets” in
the accompanying consolidated income statement. Of this amount, a total of EUR 2,016
thousand corresponds to assets held for sale and has been classified under that item, In 2012,
impairment losses of EUR 3,878 thousand were recognised on investment property.

The rental income earned by the Group from its investment property, all of which is leased
out under operating leases, amounted to EUR 19 million (2012: EUR 2] million). Direct
operating expenses arising from investment property amounted to EUR 7 million (2012: EUR
8 million), recognised under “Other Operating Expenses” in the accompanying consolidated
income statement.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had mortgaged a portion of its investment
property for EUR 207 and 216 million, to secure credit facilities granted to it by banks.

The Group has arranged insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which its investment
property is subject and the claims that might be filed against it for carrying on its business
activities. These policies are considered to provide adequate cover for the related risks.
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The detail, by location, of the cost of the properties held to earn rentals owned by the Acciona
Group at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Leeation ™’ 3
Accumulated
depreciation

and
impairment
Cost losses
Madud 250,565 143 3093
Eastern Spain 12,613 (4,060)
Andalusia 59317 (27.306)
Catalonia, Aragon 68.542 (18.911)
Other 15,500 {76335
Total 416,546 {101,221)

6. Goodwill

Cost

255,238
12,596
59,254
68373
25500

420,964

2012
Accumulated
depreciation

and
impairment
losses

40,512 .

(3,719

{24,102y

(18,915)

654

(93.882)

The changes in “Goodwill” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in 2012 were as

follows (in thousands of euros):

Balance at
31112111

Acciona Renewable Energy subgroup 871,216
Interlogistiva def Fo, 8 A~ . R F v
Trasmediterranea subgroup 24,878
Compafiia Litbanizada del Coto subgtoup 12979
(formealy [MOS AY o —— et

Acciona Facility Service subgroup 78.639
Aceiona Water subgroup 33,620
Acciona Wind Power subgroup 18,995
Other o= © o 3387
Total 1,048,760

Additions

Impair ment

(236)

(236)

Other
changes
(268)

156}
(438)

Balanct at
C 31712412
£70.948
5147
24.878

12,537

78,639
32629
18.995

. 3313

1,048,086

The changes in “Goodwill” on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet in 2013 were as

follows (in thousands of euros):

- Balanceat
Acciona Renewable Energy subgroup 870,948
Interlogfstica fef Frio, 8.4 ., . . . 5147
Trasmediterranea subgroup 24,878
Compatita Ltbanizada del Coto subgieup 12337
{forretlv TNOSA} - T
Acciona Service subgroup 78,639
Acciona Water subgioup 33,629
Acciona Wind Power subgroup 18,995
it ' 3313
Total 1,048,086

Addifions  Tmpairment

(870 151)
15,147}
24 878)

(27677

(18,995
€2.888)
(949,734)

Other
- changes
(797)

{87)

161
(945)

Balance at

311213

366
97,407

The most significant goodwill of the Acciona Group arose in the acquisition in prior years of
certain companies in the Energy division and relate to the excess of the price of acquisition
over the fair value of the assets acquired by the Group from these companies which represent
the technical development and commercial capacity of new businesses primarily in
international markets. Accordingly, it was allocated to the cash-generating unit of the Group’s
rencwable energy business and is measured annually on the basis of the overall capacity to
generate cash flows in the future. The countries in which these investments were made were
mainly Canada, United States, Australia and Mexico.
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From December 2012, the domestic renewable energies market has undergone significant
regulatory changes, such as Law 15/2012 on fiscal measures for electricity sustainability,
RDL 2/2013 on urgent measures in the electricity system and, in particular, RDL 9/2013
adopting urgent measures to guarantee the financial stability of the electricity system together
with their regulatory developments currently pending publication, including the draft
Ministerial Order dated February 2014 revealing the remuneration parameters for standard
facilities applicable to certain eleciricity generation facilities using renewable energy, co-
generation and waste (see Note 2).

The said regulatory changes published in the 2013 financial year, particularly the general
modification of the remuneration framework that came into effect in the second half of the
year, have a notable impact at the level of the Group’s finances and profitability, so it has
been obliged to re-assess and substantially alter the strategic business plan of the Energy
division and, in particular, the international growth foreseen for the years to come, mainly
because the assets in the Renewable Energy Division do not generate sufficient free cash flow
to fund the contributions that need to be undertaken in international projects. In this respect,
the Division’s new investment prospects will be limited to the completion of the investments
already committed abroad (projects under way in South Africa, Costa Rica and Chile totalling
311.71 MWs), with all additional growth investments being stopped.

All of the above has been taken into account for the drafting of the projections used in the
preparation of the new goodwill impairment test. With regard to the rest of the additional
relevant hypotheses for the test, an inflation estimate of 1.1% for 2014 and 1.4% until 2018
has been considered for the domestic market, while the international market has taken into
account growth rates equivalent to the inflation estimated for each financial year. The

perpetual growth rate used (g) has been 1.5% and the discount rate (WACC) used has been
7.2% after tax.

As a result of this impairment analysis, at 31 December 2013, there was a clear impairment in
the Energy division’s goodwill in the amount of EUR 870 million under “Result for
impairment of assets” on the attached consolidated income statement.

Furthermore, impairments of lesser significance have been recognised in other goodwill
items, mainly the goodwill corresponding to the Trasmediterranea subgroup and the Acciona
Facility Service subgroup, caused by the deviations arising in the year on the current business
plans that have brought to light lower rates of growth and profitability.

The Acciona Group uses the acquisition method to account for all inclusions of companies in
the Group involving the acquisition of a controlling interest.

The most significant inclusions in the Group in 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Net increase in

Carrying value of assets
amount of and liabilities
100% of through
Acquisition  Percentage the applicafion of
Company cost acquired company mar ket value Goodwill
e - 2013
San Solar Energy Facility {Proprietary) Limited 327 63 75% - 327
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2012
Cuouﬁa,;i'md f#‘ahty i_?mpﬁetaz:ﬁ Iz.mﬂtéd* \ 1331 51% = 1321 =
Sishen solar facility (Proprietary) Limited 708 51% - 708 -
Deep sever wind fasthity (Propuciary) L imitad " 51e St T 5
Kimberly solar facility (Proprietary) Limited 477 351% - 477 -

7. Other intangible assets

The changes in “Other Intangible Assets” in 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands of
€uros):

Acenmulated
‘amortisation .
> . - and
"l Pevelopment Transfer ~ Computer ; impawrment
. Other imtangible assets expendifire  LConcessiony - rights - - software - Advances - losses . Total -
Balance at 31/12/11 79,032 798,311 1,916 53,763 20,059 (209,094) 743,987
Adddtions + chatge fo1 the year 8184 . GL463 . 187 . 189 . 63.656 56,145y, 8223
Reductions 0 {11,878)  (1,052) {180) (5,838) 793 (18,155)
-Transfery [ “' 4733 123 R 7 A%.647 {383 . (460
Other changes (0 (7,448) 0 382 {60) 6,005 (1,122)
Balazice at 31/12/12 87215 88T 1169 59,95 29070 @S8829) 806486
Additions / charge for the year 6,445 38,148 112 4,247 34922 (133,420)  (49,546)
Reductions B8 (@200 @80 {387 @ 15387 (7738
Transfers 686 (408) 267 (140) (39,939) (3,557) (43,091
Other changes 1 @R @) (4H48) 0575 3602 (26667
Balance at 31/12/13 94,313 875,510 1,064 63,057 22,112 (376,612) 679444

The “Concessions” heading mainly includes those concession assets where the risk of
recovering the asset is assumed by the operator. In addition, it includes the cost of the
administrative concessions, as well as the identifiable intangible values acquired in business
combinations, corresponding to raft of expectant right and intangible assets, for the
development of future wind projects acquired from third parties through the acquisition of
equity stakes in the companies holding these rights and the levies paid by Acciona Agua for
the concept of concessions related to the integral water cycle.

At 31 December 2013, the main additions relate to the development of certain concession
operations held by the Group relating to road transport infrastructure, mainly in Brazil, as well
as the integral water cycle, mainly in Spain.

“Other Changes” includes the effect of translation differences in the period for a negative
amount of EUR 27 million (negative effect of EUR 7 million in 2012).

In accordance with the impairment tests carried out, impairments have been recognised in the
Infrastructure division’s concession assets in the domestic arena as they have shown
deviations in the course of the year according to the expected concession model in the amount
of EUR 12 million, as well as fundamentally in a motorway concession in Brazil (Acciona
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" Direct investments of the Parent L1211 before tax Dividends other changes - the vear = 3171272012

" Tranvia Metopolitd Group 2869 1,032 (136 468y .- 3297
Consorcio Tranvia de Zaragoza 7 540 (135) - 1406) 1,365 8364
tnart Hospital Can Misses 3087 i - {1,014) 2410. 3412
Movo Hospital de Vigo 3,149 571 —~ a7 9.220 12,769
Total direct investnients 16,645 1,297 (136) 2.959) 12,995 27,842,
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Concessdes Rodovia do Ago, S.A.) where the impairment amounts to EUR 40 million
because of the delay accumulated on the infrastructure works schedule and has a negative
impact on the 2014 tariffs and on other project costs. In addition, the impairment of the
country’s macro-economic estimates meant an increase in the discount rate used. The discount
rate used incorporates the sovereign risk (Brazil ten-year bonds plus a market spread) and the
average gearing during the life of the concession, thus placing the cost of own capital

at 13.4%.

At 31 December 2013, an amount of EUR 88,373 thousand (EUR 85,737 thousand at 31
December 2012) belonging to this item on the balance sheet is classified under the heading
“Non-current assets classified as held for sale” and corresponds to Infrastructure division
concessions in the amount of EUR 80,958 thousand as well as two wind farms located in
Germany in the amount of EUR 7,415 [thousand] that are changed to this consideration as per

Note 24.

At 31 December 2013, Group companies held undertakings to acquire intangible assets in the
amount of EUR 124 million for concession projects in the Infrastructure division (motorways)
and in the Urban Services division (water). At 31 December 2012, the amount committed

came to EUR 132 million.

Fully amortiscd intangible assets in use at 31 December 2013 and 2012 amounted to EUR 72
and EUR 73 million, respectively.

8. Investments in associates

The changes in “Investments in Companies Accounted for Using the Equity Method” on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet during 2012 were as follows (in thousands of

euros):
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. Indireét mvestments of the Parent.

Tranvia Metropolita del Besds $.A
Acciona fiastineture 3uhg|:;_mp
Acciona Inmobiliaria subgroup
Tingmediiertanea subgtinyg
Acciona Energy subgroup

Aepioma Facifity Scrvives subzioup
Acciona Water subgroup
Céasalas subgronp

Other

Total mdireet investments "

Total investments accoumted for using the

equity method

2225

41230

2 266
7420
6111
&t

3
3240
2,199
gsso

82,229

- Share-ot

1 :-Bn‘l'w.:lce-.a; prafit fhoss)
31U hefore tax - .

1.259
6.966)
(214)
2687
1,568
12
T
57
{517y

780

>

Dividends

(1.481)

(2243

25)

a5

4,724y

‘Taxeftect and
pilier changes
(580

12171

(115)
(29)
(363)
(72)
(3,549)

« (6.508) .

{81y

58,833
- 203

63953

76,943

. Bglanse ag
- 3122012

1.423
36,985
2,052
w833
7,485
58 819
2626
2,159
120883

148,725

The changes in 2013 in “Investments in Companies Accounted for Using the Equity Method”
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet were as follows (in thousands of euros):

Direct xﬁv’estmgnl:s of the Parent
Tranvia Metropolita Group
Consorery Tranvia de Zatagoza
Gran Hospital Can Misses
Novo _IIospital devVigo .. o
Acciona Nouvelle Autoroute 30 INC
Total direct mvestments

- Indirect-inyestments of the Parent
Tranvia Metropolitd del Besds, S.A.
Adgiona [nﬂasu_uptule Sabmounp
Acciona Inmebiliaria subgroup
Tiasmedrteryanea subuirp
Acciona Energy subgroup
Accigna Faulity Services sabgionp
Acciona Water subgroup
Ceatesalas .mfbgroaxp' -

Other
Total indiﬁrect mves_ﬁnmt_u

Total mvestments accounted for using the
eguity ntethod s L

The Acciona Group’s interests in associates are detailed in Appendix III to these notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Balance at
3171212
3,297
8,364
3412

12,769

27,842
Balaﬁc.e at
3122

1423
36,984
2.052
9334
7485
58819
2626
2159
120883

148,728

Shareof -
profit tlossy
betme tax

1,077
(1.253)
(638)
1840
3,785
4,811

Share of
profit {loss)
hetore tax

1,507
(2,196
(339)
1142
283
@10y
5530
1253
o7
7.067

1878

Dl\’lﬂﬂid&
(683)

(683)

Dividends
(1.069)

£z}
(25)

o049
42)

(2.562)

(3.245)

. Tax effect and
. other changes

(3.691)
i LT
2,098
(1.354)
39,395

37320

Tavetfectand =

other chanpes
(1,861)
(359
@n
'(368)
(228)
B
(7163)
(435)
(957)

(11,93)

25,357
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420

Changes e
the vear

(25 476)

{81

p 2

12.072
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@2401)
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The most significant change in 2013 was the improvement in the measurement of the
derivatives from the Acciona Nouvelle Autoroute, INC concession operator, which had an
equity deficit in 2012 and was recognised on the liabilities side of the attached consolidated
balance sheet (see accounting method in Note 2.2.f) and is now accounted for in this heading.
The most significant change in 2012 was the inclusion of the subsidiary ATLL
Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A. (part of the Acciona Water subgroup), in
which the Group has a 39% ownership interest and which was awarded a 50-year concession
to manage Aigiies Ter Llobregat (ATLL), thereby providing a capture point network water

supply service to the city of Barcelona, its metropolitan arca and the nine surrounding
districts.

When the Group’s investments in associates (mainly certain toll road concession operators),
accounted for using the equity method, are reduced to zero, or may include constructive
obligations exceeding the contributions made, the losses or equity decreases are recognised
under “Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions” in the consolidated balance sheet (see Note 17).
In these cases, the losses are recognised under “Impairment and Gains or Losses on Disposals

of Non-Current Assets” instead of “Result of Companies Accounted for Using the Equity
Method”.

The detail of the assets, liabilities, revenue and profit or loss for 2013 of the associates
included under “Investments in Companies Accounted for Using the Equity Method”, in
proportion to the Group’s ownership interest therein, is as follows: (the figures relating to

associates with an equity deficit, recognised on the liability side of the consolidated balance
sheet, are detailed in Note 17):

Infrashucture
CONCESRION Other °
operatars - associates Total 2013
Assets
Non-getreni-assets 198 38 583,347 1,082:285
Current assets 67,406 67,267 134,673
“Total assets 566,344 650,614 1216958
Equity and liabilities
Equty . 75284 86231 161513
Non-current liabilities 455.074 443 017 898,091
Current fabtites " 335986 121 366 157,352
Total equity and liabilities 566,344 650,614 1,216,958
Profit or toss .
Revenue 55.965 92,657 148,622
Profit (.ose) befere tax frum contrm operations 2 050 1.82% 11878
Profit (Loss) before tax 7.050 4,828 11878
9. Interests in joint ventures

The Acciona Group’s interests in joint ventures are presented in Appendix II to these Notes to
the consolidated financial statements. The most significant amounts included in the

consolidated financial statements in relation to these interests at 31 December 2013 are
summarised as follows:
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S Unincopistd

— ('omgames' temg::::;gmm

= s oo (UIEs)

Revenue 487 872 753,462
irow, piofit fiom aperaona 49t el
Profit from operations 67,663 90,208
Tomsoument asets, * 1215053 96540
Current assets 428110 769301
Now-cuirent habrlities 816458 | #6.549
Current liabilities 409,218 644,053

As indicated in Note 3.1, IFRS 11 on Joint Arrangements comes into force in 2014 to replace 1AS 31 currently in
force. According to the preliminary analysis carried out, the impacts are mentioned in Note 3.1.

10. Current and non-current financial assets

The detail of “Other Current Financial Assets” and “Non-Current Financial Assets” in the
consolidated balance sheets is as follows:

2013 o 2012
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Lvalable-for-ale finanein] assets 73379 h7 KEEEN .69
Financial derivatives at fair value (Note 20) 3,460 -- 31 279
Held-mmatiiity mvestmenty  ~ - 129,133 - 344,386
Deposits and guarantees 45,528 27,590 14,367 17,124
Allovanes = (28 154) (7.273) e
Subtotal: 94,203 356,840 51,765 351,858
CHhet loans - 92,125 12,414 76906 18174
Impairment losses (2,616) (601) (1,470) (118)
‘Subtotal: - 89,509 11813 78,520 - 18,056
Total, net 183,712 368,653 130,285 369,914

Available-for-sale financial assets:

The changes in “Available-for-Sale Financial Assets” in the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012 were as follows:

Non-current Carvent
Balance at 31/12/11 50,829 59
Addifions, 2481 1
Sales (6,938)
Changes 1n fair value (1.703)
Transfers -
Other chargcs o
Changes iu the scope of consolidation -
Closing balance at 31,712/12 44,640 69
Agditiong 5,743
Sales (3,741)
Changes 1n fair value 7,898
Transfers ., (L,13%)
Other changes (73) 2y
Changes m the scope of consolidatitn (5)
_ Balanceat31/12/13 73,379 61
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Impairment lisses . .
Balance at 31/12/11 (7,760) =

Addtons . i21432) - e
Sales 799 -
Tronsfers.. Il -
Other changes - -
Closing balance 2t 5171292 7,273y e
Additions (21432}
Sales 224
Transfers 313
“Other changes . -
Changes m the scope of consclidation
_ Balance at 31/12/13 _ o (28,164) o
| Totaf,met - - . X A

Held-to-maturity investments:

No significant changes occurred in 2012 for the “Held-to-maturity investments™ heading. This
caption relates basically to the funds allocated to the debt service reserve accounts by the
Energy division for the projects under way as required by Project Finance clauses in force, as
well as one-off increases in short-term deposits.

(Other financial assets:

Deposits and guarantees

“Deposits and Guarantees” includes a deposit made by the Compafiia Trasmediterranea
subgroup to secure its lease payments under the charter contract for the “Millenium Tres”
vessel for a total amount of EUR 4 million at 31 December 2013 (EUR 7 million at 31
December 2012).

The changes in 2013 in the current and non-current deposits associated with the vessels of
the Compaiiia Trasmediterrdnea subgroup described in earlier paragraphs were as follows:

e Balance at 1 oA | K ' * Balance at
_“Thonsands of emros 3111212 Ioterest - : . Charges Tansfers . 3112/13
g’[egfs’;t"“m S VeSSl 1,378 440 - (3.818)

:2:::;:: ROR-EU |e|vu 3,'373 410 - 6'.818]. =
deponie e vessl 3,857 (3.857) 3818 3,818
e 3,857 (3.857) 3,818 3,818

Total 7235 40 13.857) = 3418

Furthermore, it should be noted that, at 31 December 2013, the increase in this account arises
mainly from the 35 million euros in guarantees given for the investment undertaking assumed
by the Energy division for a wind farm and a photovoltaic project in South Africa.

11. Biological assets

The breakdown of the non-current and current biological assets at 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows (in thousands of euros):
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2013 2012

Non-current 6,830 6,825
Chuprent - =
Balance at 31 December 6,830 6,825

The non-current biological assets relate mainly to the vineyards belonging to the Hijos de
Antonio Barcelé subgroup, which in accordance with TAS 41 must be measured at fair value.
The year-on-year changes in the value of these assets were not material.

12. Non-current receivables and other non-current assets

The detail of “Non-Current Receivables and Other Non-Current Assets” at 31 December 2013
and 2012 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

213 2012 -
Non-current operating recervables 80,663 113,102
Non-turent prepavments and acoried meonic T 6368 © 4237
Concessions under the non-current financial asset model 427,424 313,557
Total non-current receteables and other pon—current 514455 430,896

dssety

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, “Non-Current Operating Receivables” included mainly
customer balances and other trade receivables generated by operating activities maturing at
over one year and also the retentions that are customary in the construction business.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, “Concessions under the Non-Current Financial Asset
Model” included the balances receivable at over one year in concessions which, in accordance
with IFRIC 12, were treated as financial assets, since there was an unconditional collection
right on the investment made until that date. The current portion of this unconditional
collection right was recognised under “Trade and Other Receivables” based on the collections
expected to be made by the grantors of the concessions under the various economic and
financial plans. At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balance reclassified to short term
amounted to EUR 23,420 thousand and EUR 66,200 thousand, respectively (see Note 14).

The breakdown, by division, of “Concessions under the Non-Current Financial Asset Model”
is as follows:

2013 2012 - -
Inftastructure division 383813 269,392
Water dvision 43611 44,185
Total 427424 313,557

The main concession projects included in the Infrastructure division relate to hospitals and toll
roads, and those in the Water division relate to the integral water cycle.

The change in 2013 relates to the net effect, on the one hand, of the increase in the balance of
the concessions in accordance with the stage of completion of the work basically relating to
the concessions under construction in Canada and Chile, and on the other hand, the transfer
and classification to “Trade and Other Receivables - Concessions under the Current Financial
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Asset Model” of the amount expected to be collected from the grantors in the coming twelve
months.

At 31 December 2013, EUR 41,400 thousand (31 December 2012: EUR 94,603 thousand) of
concessions under the financial asset model were classified under “Non-Current Assets
Classified as Held for Sale” and related to the mature concessions that, as indicated in
Note 24, were classified as such.

At 31 December 2013, the Group companies had commitments to acquire concession assets
under the financial asset model amounting to EUR 47 million, most of which related to
concession arrangements recently granted to the Infrastructure division (31 December 2012:

EUR 85 million).
13. Inventories

The detail of the Group’s inventories at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows (in
thousands of curos):

2013 2012
Raw materials, other procurements and goods held for resale 309 0635 334457
Wk m progress and sem-fimshed gnods 29351 29522
Finished goods 4,305 3,336
Assets 1eceived m pavment of loans 24,708 25,323
Land 849,181 861,121
Pioperty developinents if: progigss S 6A0S 10 487
Completed property developments 212,606 223,741
Advances pair Coq 125 343 - 9935%
Write-downs (513,481) {404,205)
Total inventories - 1047,145 1,183,045

In 2013, as a result of the appraisals performed by Savills Consultores Inmobiliarios, S.A. ¢
Instituto de Valoraciones, S.A., the Group recognised impairment losses of EUR 96,465
thousand on the inventories of the Real Estate division, which were recognised under
“variation in provisions” in the accompanying consolidated income statement.

Also, the Acciona Group maintains the additional provisions for impairment losses amounting
to EUR 215 million created in prior years based on the analysis undertaken by independent
experts of the potential impacts that could arise taking into consideration the distorting factors
existing in Spain, i.e. an across-the-board fall in prices and a delay in bringing into production
land-related assets, both completed and incomplete. Since the pace of stock liquidation at
current prices, which already include a discount on the initial price, continues to be slower
than forecast, it is felt that it would be necessary to increase the discounts in order to shed
these inventories at a more normal outflow pace. This same effect applies to the assets
included for land as, at the current rate of home sales in the sector, the development or
production phase of this land portfolio continues to be unfeasible in the medium term. For
both these reasons, the Group Directors are of the opinion that, at 31 December 2013, this
amount continues to be the best estimate in the sensitivity analysis performed to reflect that a
conservative assessment of the future progress in the Property division implies the acceptance
of the prevailing market conditions, strongly marked by the distortions mentioned above for
both the maintenance of its competitive position and for the scenario of asset sales for finance

purposes.

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 60 of 169 April 5th, 2014



EDWARD EWING - INTERPRETE MIRADC
Calle Francisco Madariaga, 2 - 4°C / 28017 MADRII

% B:918514 253 - @ edward@sande.es

Certified Translation

The fair value at 31 December 2013 and 2012 of the Group’s property inventories, including
inventories relating to the companies accounted for using the equity method, calculated based
on the appraisals carried out at those dates by SAVILLS and Instituto de Valoracién
(independent valuers not related to the Group) amounted to EUR 954,374 thousand and EUR

1,053,512 thousand, respectively.

The impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income statement are sufficient to
reduce the carrying amounts of the property inventories to the market values obtained in the
appraisals made at year-end.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the carrying amounts of mortgaged inventories were EUR
158,803 thousand and EUR 194,124 thousand, respectively, and related mostly to property
developments in progress or completed in 2013 and to property developments in progress or
completed in 2012.

At 31 December 2013, as in 2013, there were no firm land purchase commitments.

Property development sales commitments to customers at 31 December 2013 and 2012
amounted to EUR 75,398 thousand and EUR 49,994 thousand. Of the amount at 31 December
2013, EUR 32,554 thousand had been collected or was instrumented in notes and bills
receivable, the balancing entry of which is recorded under “Current Liabilities - Trade and
Other Payables” on the liability side of the accompanying consolidated balance sheet until the
date of delivery (31 December 2012: EUR 19,425 thousand).

14. Trade and other receivables

The detail of “Trade and Other Receivables” at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

2003 - 2012

Trade receivables 1.410,513 1,484,510

Doubtfil ads 1ecervables 45,683 R )

Amounts to be billed for work performed 472,004 661,229
Total trade teceivables for sales and services 1,948,200 .2,203.251
Receivable from associates 16.074 17.038
Sundry scoounts reeaivable - " 18035 - 276885
Current concessions under the financial asset model (Note 12) 23 420 66 200
Aowanees -~ - (367579 {102.773)
Total trade and other receivables 1,859,052 2,370,601
Custorner advanees {010,873) 1372,342)
Total net balance at 31 December 1,248,179 1,798,259

During 2013, the main variation in the balances making up this heading occurred in the
provisions accounts. The increase basically corresponded to the extraordinary impairment of
the accounts receivable from a Brazilian client in the amount of EUR 74 million with regard
to a contract for the construction of a shipyard in S#o Jofio da Barra (State of Rio de Janeiro,
Brazil), recognised as a result of the initiation of insolvency proceedings against the client and
its business group (creditors’ meeting) in November 2013, as well as the provisions
recognised in the amount of EUR 80 million in the Polish construction subsidiary, Mostostal
Warszawa, as a consequence of the negative evolution in 2013 of the negotiations under way
with the Roads Department in connection with certain claims for surcharges that have been
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taken to the courts as well as other losses related to ongoing works that have seen a negative
progress in their finalisation process.

The breakdown, by business activity, of the balance of trade receivables for sales and
services, net of customer advances, 1s as follows:

- 2013 002 0
Infrastructure 650.696 1,120.994
Energy 553,310 763,117
Water' 161 392 . 107 514
Services 195,640 197,503
‘Other Activitiés 276.071 258 684
Intra-Group transactions (576,654) (7v9,553)
Yotal net balanee at 31 December 1,260,655 1,798,259

The breakdown relating to the construction business is as follows:

: EPC 2013 2012
Progress billings receivable 710,776 747718
Aztiognts to be billed far work perfurmed © O ADL94% 597 1l
Sundry accounts receivable 210,440 255,869
Alfowancss - {255 289) (93 854)
Total construction trade receivables 1,067,875 1,506,834
Cugtumes advances. - . e (418 434) (430,532
Total net balance at 31 December 649,439 1,076,302

The breakdown, by type of customer, of the net balance of construction trade receivables is as
follows:

2013 202
State 34,784 119,226
Autonemeu: Community Goveinments 18,613 31814
Municipal councils 9881 23,358
Cithes 16.28¢ 331 082
Public-sector subtotal 139.572 506,182
‘Prvate-sectol subtotal 207 %07 141,168
Total Spanish customers 347379 647,330
1otal foreign costomeérs 302,060 428,952

15. Cash and cash equivalents
The detail of “Cash and Cash Equivalents” at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

2013 . - 2012
Cash 966,966 935,613
Deposits aud other 250978 20492,
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,247,944 1,196,105

“Cash and Cash Equivalents” includes mainly the Group’s cash, bank deposits and risk-free
deposits with initial maturity of three months or less.

In 2013 and 2012 the cash and cash equivalent balances earned interest at market rates.
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16. Equity

a) Subscribed and registered share capital

The Parent’s share capital consists of 57,259,550 fully paid ordinary shares of EUR 1 par
value each, represented by book entries. All the Parent’s shares carry the same rights, are
listed and there are no bylaw restrictions as to their transferability.

Effective from 6 June 2012, the Board of Directors of Acciona, S.A. resolved to reduce
capital by EUR 6,290,450 through the retirement of 6,290,450 treasury shares. This resolution
to reduce capital was approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 24
May 2012.

Following is a detail, based on the notifications received by the Company, of the owners of
significant direct and indirect equity interests at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

- 314213 C 311212
Tussen de Giachten, BY 27.803% 27.803%
Eniucazea BV - ‘ 27 4309 27 430%
Jelico Netherlands, BY @ 3.503%

(*) On 23 April 2013, the Jelico Netherlands, BV company notified the Spanish Securities
Commission (CNMYV) of a decline in its equity stake in Acciona, S.A., declaring that the
current percentage of it stake comes to 0.986%.

b) Share premium and reserves

The balance of the “Share Premium” account, which at 31 December 2013 and 2012
amounted to EUR 170,110 thousand, arose as a result of the capital increases with share
premiums carried out on various dates. The Consolidated Spanish Limited Liability
Companies Act expressly permits the use of the share premium account balance to increase
capital and does not establish any specific restrictions as to its use.

The detail of the share premium, reserves and valuation adjustments in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity is as follows:

2613 . 2012
Share premium 170,110 170,110
Revaluation reserves - -
Legal msenve . - 11452 11452
Reserve for retired capital 10,453 19,453
Voluntary 1eserves . 373211 3,693 269
Comsolidated reserves (note 16 d) 1.29292 1077056
Subtotal reserves 5,045,028 4,794,230
Translation diﬂ‘ere“nces (note 16.d) (63,628)- 22,828
Total reserves 4,981,400 4,817,058

The legal reserve, to which transfers must be made until it reaches 20% of the share capital,
can be used to increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below
10% of the increased share capital amount. Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of
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share capital, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves are
not available for this purpose.

¢} Treasury shares

The changes in 2013 and 2012 in treasury shares were as follows:

,-2.:0'13- i -/ = _ 2012
N“ﬁﬂ:’é"f Cost N‘:;ﬂ’ff:’f “Cest
Opening balance 108,781 4,107 5,598,867 411,129
Addiens - 145,588, 7704 911587 A
Reductions due to refirement of shares - - (6,290.450) (446,548)
Other disposals {113,929 {33503 {111225) 18,466)
Closing balance 140,440 6,461 108,781 4,107

In 2013, there was a reduction of 113,929 shares, with a EUR 5 thousand loss recognised in
reserves in the financial year, due mainly to the delivery of shares to senior management
under the Share Grant Plan approved by the sharcholders at the Annual General Meeting (see
Note 35). This same concept in 2012 saw the retirement of 111,223 shares, with a EUR 2,256

thousand loss recognised in reserves for that financial year.

In addition, a total of 6,290,450 treasury shares were retired in 2012 with an impact on
reserves of EUR 440,258 thousand and a related EUR 6,290 thousand reduction in share

capital due to the capital reduction approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting held on 24 May 2012 (see Note 16.a)).

d) Reserves of consolidated companies and translation differences

The detail, by line of business, of the consolidation reserves contributed by subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates and of the related translation differences at 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2013 2012

Consolidated Translation Consolidated Translation

Line of business reserves differences reserves differences

Tnftastuciure 510274 026710) 373435 W2153]

Energy 713,350 (23,436) 509,897 29,263

Water 0,305 (510%) 9371 @9

Services (4,179 621 1,117 1,249

Cther Activities 51227 ©,001) 196,504 (4537
Consolidation

adjustments (47,063) - (45,868) -

Total . 1202912 63.628)  1,077.05 22,828
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A breakdown, by company, of the consolidation reserves at fully and proportionately
consolidated companies and at companies accounted for using the equity method and of the
related translation differences at 31 December 2013 is provided in Appendix V.

In addition to the Parent, at 31 December 2013, the Group company Mostostal Warszawa,
S.A. was a listed company. The average market price of this company in the last quarter was
PLN 4.69 and the market price at year-end was PLN 4.49.

¢) Valuation adjustments

= Available-for-sale financial assets

This heading under “Retained Earnings™ in the consolidated balance sheet includes the
amount, net of the related tax effect, of changes in the fair value of assets classified as
available for sale. These changes are recognised in the consolidated income statement when

the assets that give rise to them are sold.

The changes in the balance of “Valuation Adjustments - Available-for-Sale Financial Assets™
in 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

2013 2012
Balance at 1 January 10.931 12,123
Increases m value in the veat 5529 , =
Decreases 1n value m the year {1,192)
Tiansfer to sesults m the vear (14728} =
Transfer due to changes in the scope of consolidation - -
Balunce at 3] December - -, 15.432 10,931

The changes in 2013 and 2012 relate almost entirely to the change in value of the investment
in Bolsas y Mercados Espafioles.

=  (ash flow hedges

This heading under “Retained Earnings” in the consolidated balance sheet includes the
amount net of the tax effect of changes in the fair value of financial derivatives designated as

cash flow hedging instruments (see Note 20).

The changes in the balance of this item in 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

2013 2012
Balance at 1 January {533,427) (459,993)
Increases mt valne in the yea 116679 {148 568)
Decreases 1n value in the year
Teansfes ior mcome for the yea 93,511 75432
Transfer due to changes 1n the scope of consolidation . -
Balanve 4t 31 December (321,237 (533427
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f) Non-controlling interests

The balance of “Non-Controlling Interests™ in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
reflects the equity of non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries. Also, “Non-Controlling
Interests” in the accompanying consolidated income statement reflects the share of non-
controlling interests of the profit or loss for the year.

The changes in 2012 were as follows (in thousands of euros):

" Changesin ‘

e  stope and Vahuation Profit ¥ 17
G Bulanceat  * ownership adjustments (Lass) Balance at
Company IAXIE. interests " and other for 2012 3y
Hospital del Norte 545 —= (38 92 549
Mostostal Waiszawa subgroup 53,775 - 483 {11659 - 13950
Parque Reforma 4,863 == 200 9 5,072
Alciona Enegy subgtowp 161 662 {387 205 16.450 151,198

Ineuropa de Cogeneracion subgroup (1) -- - 5
Alabe subgtogp . - - 13 S i3
Acciona Intrastructure Subgroup 2759 - (442) 931 3,248
Avoiona Forearding subgioup 454 (12) 141 (95) 457
Trasmediterrdnea subgroup 69,079 - 121 (2 870) 66330
Ceatesalas subgroup - 7826 i 1745) g . Taa
Total non-controlling interests 300,662 (402) (16,493} (5,219) 278,548

The changes in 2013 were as follows (in thousands of euros):
¢ hanges n : ; ‘ i
4 - 0 scope and Vajluation Profic -
- " - Balanceat = ownership adjustments (T osy . Balance at
. .. Company " 3YI12 mterests and other for 2013 - 313

Hospital del Norte 549 94 74 717
Mosiosial Warsziws subgroup - 43950 1954 (34.487) © 7A09
Parque Reforma 5072 - (208) 131 4.995
Apaienes Biergy subgronp - - 151.19% 5230 {15979) (8,709 132248
Ineuropa de Cogeneracion subgroup 4 - - 6 10
Alabe subgrowp - - 13 - N 79) - {65)
Acciona Infrastructure Subgroup 3,248 5 (1,300) 1,319 3272
Acetona Forwarding subaroup 457 ) (436) 157 2312
Trasmediterranea subgroup 66,330 (38,581) (342) (13,166) 14,261
Ceatesalas subgroup . = 2T {328) i148) - 41318 £933
Total non-controlling interests 278,548 (33,059) (20,273 (56,071) 169,145

g) Capital management

The main objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard its capacity to
continue operating as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to
shareholders and to benefit other stakeholders, and also to maintain an optimal financial and
equity structure to reduce the cost of capital. As a result of this policy, creating value for the
shareholder is compatible with access to financial markets at a competitive cost in order to
cover both debt refinancing and investment plan financing needs not covered by funds
generated by the business,

In order to maintain and adjust the capital structure, the Group may vary the amounts of the
dividends payable to the shareholders, return capital, issue shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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In line with other groups in the industries in which the Acciona Group operates, the capital
structure is controlled on the basis of the leverage ratio. This ratio is calculated as the result of
dividing net debt by equity. Net debt is calculated as the sum of current and non-current bank
borrowings, excluding those relating to held-for-sale assets, less current financial assets and
cash and cash equivalents.

The directors of the Acciona Group consider that the leverage ratio at 31 December 2013 and
2012 was adequate, the detail being as follows:

Leverage
" MEllions of curoy
2013 B b

Net financial debt: 6,715 7,481

Note-cument bank bonownigs 8,240 6,538

Current bank borrowings 2,092 2109

Current financial asset.and vash snd cash equivalents t1617) (1.566)
CEquity: 3,399 5509

Of the Parent 3,230 5230
~ Of non-coutrollmg intstests 160 amg
Leverage 198% o 130%.

Despite the reduction in debt achieved over the year, the leverage ratio has increased because
of the reduction in total equity due to losses in the year.

h) Restriction on the distribution of funds by subsidiaries

Certain Group companies have clauses in their financing contracts that have to be met in order
to be able to distribute profits to shareholders.

17. Provisions

The changes in the long-term provisions on the liability side of the consolidated balance
sheets at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were as follows (in thousands of euros):;

AV 32412

Opening balance 550,034 609,782
Additeps /nd pertod provisions 39315 3%.611
Reductions (70.233) (91275
Teapifers - 2134 (5.268)
Other changes (3.721) 1184
Closing balance 517529 55034

The Acciona Group operates in various businesses and numerous countries with very specific
industry regulations. In the normal course of its business, the Group is exposed to litigation
related to these business activities, including most notably: tax claims, claims relating to
defects in construction projects performed and claims relating to discrepancies regarding
services rendered. Certain of these risks are covered by insurance policies (third-party
liability, construction defects, etc.) and for the other risks identified, the required provisions
are recognised. The detail of the nature and amount of the main provisions is as follows:
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a) Provisions are recognised for the constructive obligations of subsidiaries accounted for
using the equity method when the Group’s investments in associates have been reduced to
zero. At 31 December 2013, the provision in this connection amounted to EUR 33 million
(EUR 61 million at 31 December 2012). The detail of the assets, liabilities, revenue and profit
or loss for 2013 of the associates for which a provision is recognised, in proportion to the
Group’s ownership interest therein, is as follows:

Infrastructure
concession
-operaiols
Assets
Hon-cursent assel 193,345
Current assets 220.359
Tt assets 413744
Equity and liabilities
" Equaty 132 643}
Non-current liabilities 151.493
Cuasent Habilities 294,895
Total equity and liabilities 413,744
o _Profit o1 Losg
Revenue 17,856
Profit befote tax from contmnng aperaticns 1,660
Profit {Loss) before tax 1,660

b) At 31 December 2013, the Group had recognised a provision of EUR 44 million (EUR 46
million at 31 December 2012} for certain liabilities relating to the Logistics division, mainly

arising from three penalties imposed by the Spanish National Competition Commission and
currently under appeal.

¢) Provisions for autonomous community, State or international levies, taxes and loca) taxes
arising from construction work and infrastructure development and taxes in general which, in
view of the varying interpretations that can be made of the tax legislation, could give rise to
contingent tax liabilities in the various countries in which the Acciona Group operates. At 31

December 2013, the provision in this connection amounted to EUR 61 million (the same
amount as at 31 December 2012).

d) Provisions for the amounts estimated in relation to warranty and maintenance obligations
for facilities and machinery sold, mainly WTGS in the Energy division. At 31 December

2013, the provision in this connection amounted to EUR 10 million (EUR 12 million at 31
December 2011).

¢) Provisions for pensions and similar obligations arising mainly from the acquisition of
assets from Endesa in 2009, which are detailed and quantified below. At 31 December 2013,

the provision in this connection amounted to EUR 8 million (EUR 7 million at 31 December
2011).

f) The remaining amount recognised under “Provisions™ relates to various types of provisions,
including those related to obligations acquired in the devclopment and construction of
drinking water plants and water cycle service infrastructure, those recognised to cover the
possible risks arising from litigation in progress since claims have been filed against the
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Group in relation to its construction activities (mainly in relation to residential work), those
relating to construction contracts and the provision of onerous services in which losses are
incurred and provisions for non-core businesses. These provisions were recognised on the
basis of the best estimates of the risks and uncertainties which, inevitably, surround most of
the events and circumstances related thereto. In this respect, the negative performance of the
general market situation in the last few years, as well as the economic and financial conditions
of many of the countries in which the Group operates, has given rise to great instability in
general with a widespread impact and severe uncertainty, which has not only continued but in
fact worsened in the recent years. In light of this situation, the measurement of uncertainty
was carried out with prudence and a certain degree of precaution was taken in the making of
necessary judgements, while preserving the fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

Group management considers that no additional liabilities not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements at 31 December 2013 and 2012 will arise.

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

The long-term provisions in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet include the
provisions for pensions and similar obligations that arose due to the acquisition of assets
and/or companies from the Endesa Group in 2009,

In 2013, the number of employees considered in this connection was 115 (the same as in
2012), of whom 17 had already taken early retirement (11 employees at 2012 year-end).

The changes in these provisions in 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
Balance at 1 January 7,460 7.819
Adartions and pertod piovisions 369 . 13
Reductions (600) (375)
Transfers.. - % 98) oo
Other changes (8) )
Balance at 31 December 7123 7460

The main features of the plans assumed are as follows:

i) Defined benefit pension plan with salary increase rate tied to the increase in the CPL
This plan is treated in exactly the same way as a defined benefit system. The
assumptions used in calculating the actuarial liability in respect of the uninsured
defined benefit obligations at 31 December 2013 and 2012 wetre as follows:

13 2012 .
Interest rate 3.86% 3.97%
Matalty tavles GRM/E9S © GRMF 95
Expected rate of return on plan assets 0.7% 0.7%
Salary mncrease B % _ 20% 0 24%

Information is provided below on the changes in the actuarial liabilities for the defined
benefit obligations at 31 December 2013 and 2012:
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iii)

e e i 2013 ©2M2
Initial acearial hability 2575 2.468
Cost mcurred in the year 80 113
Timcecoste U 92 o e
Benefits pad in the year - -
Actuaral geras and losses 43 [122)
Final actuarial liability 2,800 2,575

Information is provided below on the changes in the actuarial assets for the defined
benefit obligations at 31 December 2013 and 2012:

o . 2013 . 2012
Tostial actuarial lability 2,085 2188
Rate of return in the year 80 99
Contibuitons mdde in-the, year 111, 117
Actuarial gains and losses 22 (319
Yinal actuarial asset - 2,298 2.085.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the total amount of the final actuarial assets and
liabilities related in full to defined benefit obligations in Spain.

At 2013 year-end, the amount recognised in the consolidated income statement for
defined benefit pension obligations amounted to EUR 102 thousand (2012 year-end:
EUR 130 thousand) and related to the cost incurred during the year and the return and
finance cost of the assets and liabilities associated with these employee welfare

benefits.

Defined contribution plan. The contributions made are recognised under “Staff Costs”
in the accompanying consolidated income statement. No such contributions were
recognised for Pensions Plans in 2013. The amounts recognised for this concept in

2012 were EUR 224 thousand.

Obligations to provide certain employee welfare benefits during the retirement period,
relating mainly to electricity supplies. These obligations were not externalised and are
covered by the related in-house provisions totalling EUR 2,534 thousand at 31
December 2013 (31 December 2012: EUR 2,177 thousand).

The actuarial changes arising in this connection gave tise to a loss of EUR 311
thousand in 2013 (2012: EUR 41 thousand).

The Group’s obligation to supplement the public social security system benefits in the
event of termination of the employment relationship as a result of an agreement

between the parties.

The changes in the provision for these obligations, recognised under “Provisions” in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets in 2013 and 2012, were as follows:
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Provision for- ofher long-

. term emplayee benefit
. obhgations
Balance at 31/12/11 4,91
Addrions and petiod provisions M
Reductions (691)
Tramfers 59 o Cior
Other changes -
Balanee at 31/12/12 4,254
Additions and period provisicns (141)
Reduetions e 7405,
Transfers -
Other changes - -
Balance at 31/12/13 3,373

These liabilities relate in full to the collective redundancy procedures of the Group
companies in Spain.

The Plan affects employees with at least ten years of acknowledged service.
Employees aged 50 or more at 31 December 2005 are entitled to adhere to a pre-
retirement plan at the age of 60, of which they may avail themselves between the ages
of 50 and 60, provided that there is an agreement between the employee and the
company concerned. For the Plan to apply to employees younger than 50 at 31
December 2003, a written request from the employee and the acceptance thereof by
the Group were required.

The conditions applicable to employees who have not yet reached 50 years of age
affected by the voluntary redundancy plan consist of a termination benefit of 45 days’
salary per year of service plus an additional amount of 1 or 2 months’ salary based on
the employee’s age at 31 December 2005.

The impact of these plans on the consolidated income statement is not material.

18. Bank borrowings

The detail of “Bank Borrowings” at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows (in thousands
of euros):

. 2013 02 .
Carrent  © Non-current Current Noa-current

Mortgage loans for non-current asset financing 38 1% 131,165 99514 114,555
Montgage loans for property developments 123,558, = 149474 =
Project finance 372,304 4.410,129 311068 4 901,585
Unmatwed disconnted notes and balls 28.847 -~ 30 4do R
Obligations under finance leases 8,460 9,828 12,088 15,948
Usiher bank loans and ctedit facifities 1352151 1242924 1.494.640 LA444,187
Other limited recourse debt 0,276 194 866 13,030 193,202
Total bank botrowingy - °. 1929792 5,988,012 1102269 6.669.477

In 2013 and 2012, the Group’s euro loans and credit facilities mostly bore interest tied to
Euribor, although a portion of the Group’s borrowings were also tied to other indices such as
Libor for borrowings in the US dollars, the CDOR for borrowings in Canadian dollars, the
TIIE for financing in Mexican pesos, the WIBOR for financing in Polish zloty and the BBSY
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for financing in Australian dollars; these are the most important indices for the Group outside
of the eurozone.

A significant portion of the Group’s borrowings is hedged by financial derivatives which seek
to reduce the volatility in the interest rates which the Acciona Group pays. Specifically, the
percentage of borrowings not subject to interest rate volatility remained virtually constant,
falling slightly from 59.8% in 2012 to 59.3% in 2013.

At 31 December 2013, the mean interest rate on borrowings, considering borrowing from
credit entities and debt contracted in the form of bonds and other negotiable instruments, has
been 5.59%.

Through its subsidiaries or associated companies, Acciona Group undertakes investments
mainly in transport infrastructure, energy, hospitals and the supply of drinking water, and
these are then operated by subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates funded
through “Project finance”,

These finance structures are applied to projects capable of providing by themselves sufficient
support for the participating financial entities with regard to the borrowings taken out to
implement them. Thus, each one is normally executed through specific vehicles in which the
project’s assets are financed on the one hand by a contribution of funds by the project’s
sponsors, limited to a certain predefined amount, and, on the other hand, generally a larger
sum through third party funds in the form of long-term borrowing. The debt service on these
loans or credits is fundamentally backed by the cash flows generate in future by the project
itself, as well as by in rem guarantees on the project’s assets.

During 2013, the main reduction in this heading, over and above the scheduled amortisations
planed in line with the calendar for each project, corresponded to the lower valuation of the
financial derivatives contracted basically in the Infrastructure and Energy divisions due to the
variations in the interest rate curves and with an impact amounting to EUR 205 miilion.

Furthermore, the EUR 47 million increase in this heading during 2013 is noteworthy as the
Energy division in Spain concluded the finance arrangements for a wind farm in Lérida.

In the International energy division, there are increases of EUR 62 million and EUR 38
million through the conclusion of finance arrangements for wind farms in Costa Rica and
Croatia, as well as the partial drawdown of EUR 35 million and EUR 23 million for projects
under way for both a wind farm and a photovoltaic plant in South Africa.

As indicated in Note 3.1) and Note 3.2 T), the adoption of IFRS 13 has required an adjustment
in the valuation techniques applied by the Acciona Group to obtain the fair value of its
derivatives in order to incorporate the bilateral credit risk adjustment to reflect both own risk
and counterparty risk in the fair value of the derivatives. '

At 31 December 2013, this modification represented a lower valuation of liability derivatives
in the amount of EUR 23,542 thousand, recognised on the one hand as a smaller debt with
credit entities in the amount of EUR 23 million by subsidiaries and joint ventures and, on the
other band, as a higher valuation of the investment by the equity method in the arnount of
EUR 380 thousand, net of tax, by those companies incorporated in accordance with this
method. The external and after-tax effects that this modification has had on the heading for
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“Adjustments in equity for valuation of cash flow hedges” were positive in the amount of
EUR 15,501 thousand.

At 31 December 2013, Group companies had been granted additional financing not drawn
down in the amount of EUR 1,292,434 thousand, of which EUR 1,033,207 thousand
correspond to credit lines for the financing of working capital. The Group’s Directors are of
the opinion that the amount of these credit lines, the ordinary gencration of cash, together with
the realisation of current assets will sufficiently cover the short-term payment obligations.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, neither Acciona, S.A. nor any of its significant subsidiaries
were in breach of any of their financial or other obligations in such a way as might give rise to
the early maturity of their financial obligations. Also, no breaches are foreseen for 2014.

Furthermore, in 2013 and 2012 there were no defaults or other non-payments of principal,
interest or repayments of bank borrowings. The Real Estate division classifies its borrowings
as current liabilities based on the production cycle of the assets they finance, namely
inventories, even though some of these liabilities mature at more than twelve months.

The detail, by maturity, of non-current bank borrowings and non-current debt instruments and
other marketable securities (see Note 21} for the five years following the reporting date is as

follows:

2014 2015 2016 2017 Subsequent years Total

2,092,198 1,026,678 874 832 347,196 3991159 8,332,063

Obligations under finance leases

The detail of the Group’s finance leases at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Minimem lease payments

Obligations under finance leases 2013 2012
Within one yem 8473 13313
Betvizen one and two vears 5,639 8,398
Brtwetn twe and five veas 3387 8605
After five years 501 533
Total lease payments pavihle 18,900 - 0,849
Less. future finance chaiges 1.512 2,813
Present value of lease obligatigns 17,388 28,036
Less: amount due foi settlement within twelve months (current liability) 8 460 12,088
Amount due fot settlement atter twelve months ‘ 8928 15948

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases. The
average lease term is three to five years. In the year ended 31 December 2013, the average
effective interest rate was the market rate. Interest rates are set at the lease date. All lcases
have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental

payments.

The decrease in 2013 with respect to 2012 was due mainly to the payments made as
established in the leases.
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19. Risk management policy

The Acciona Group’s geographical and business diversification exposes it to certain risks,
which are managed appropriately through the application of a risk management system. This
System is designed to identify potential events that might affect the organisation; to manage
its risks through the establishment of internal treatment and control systems that ensure the
probability and impact of these events occurring are kept within the established tolerance
levels; and to provide reasonable assurance in relation to the achievement of strategic business

objectives.

This policy seeks to integrate risk management within ACCIONA s strategy and to establish
the framework and principles of the risk management system.

This policy covers all the risks relating to the activities carried on by ACCIONA’s business
lines throughout the geographical areas in which it carries on its activity.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fluctuations change the future flows from assets and liabilities that bear floating-
rate interest.

Interest rate risk is particularly important in relation to the financing of infrastructure projects,
concession arrangements, the construction of wind farms or solar facilities and other projects
in which project profitability is affected by possible changes in interest rates, since it is
directly linked to project cash flows.

Based on the Acciona Group’s projections of the trend in interest rates and of debt structure
targets, hedging transactions are carried out by arranging derivatives that mitigate these risks.
The level of debt hedged in each project depends on the type of project in question and the
country in which the investment is made.

The reference interest rate for the borrowings arranged by the Acciona Group companies is
mainly Euribor for transactions denominated in euros and Libor for transactions denominated
in US dollars. The borrowings arranged for projects in Latin America are normally tied to the
local indices customarily used in the local banking industry.

Sensitivity test on derivatives and debt

The financial instruments that are exposed to interest rate risk are basically borrowings
arranged at floating interest rates and derivative financial instruments.

In order to be able to analyse the effect that a possible fluctuation in interest rates might have on
the Group’s financial statements, a simulation was performed which assumed a 50-basis point
increase and decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2013.

The analysis of sensitivity to upward or downward changes of 0.50% in floating Euribor interest
rates gave risc to a sensitivity in the Group’s consolidated income statement arising from an
increase or decrease in financial results due to interest payments of EUR 13,611 thousand at 31

December 2013.
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The analysis of the sensitivity to upward or downward changes in the long-term interest rate
curve in relation to the fair value of interest rate derivatives included in cash flow hedges
arranged by the Group at 31 December 2013 and irrespective of the consolidation method used,
would give rise -based on the Acciona Group’s percentage of ownership in each company- to a
decrease in liabilities for financial derivative of EUR 128,792 thousand vis-a-vis a 0.5%
increase in the interest rate curve. Similarly, a 0.1% decrease in the interest rate curve would
lead to an increase of EUR 41,653 thousand in liabilities for financial derivatives.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is immersed in a process of growing internationalisation which gives rise to
exposure to foreign currency risk involving transactions in the currencies of the countries in
which it invests and operates.

Management of this risk is the responsibility of the Group’s Economic and Financial
Department, which follows a policy of non-speculative hedging.

Foreign currency risk relates basically to the following transactions:

- Debt denominated in foreign currencies arranged by Group companies and associates.

- Payments to be made in international markets for procurements, mainly fuel.
Receivables tied mainly to the performance of currencies other than the euro.

- Investments made in foreign companies.

In order to mitigate foreign currency risk, the Acciona Group uses currency derivatives and
foreign currency hedges to cover significant future transactions and cash flows, in keeping
with acceptable risk limits. At other times, non-current assets in currencies other than the euro
are financed in the same currency as that in which the asset is denominated.

Also, the net assets relating to net investments in foreign operations whose functional
currency is not the euro are exposed to foreign currency risk in the translation of the financial
statements of these foreign operations on consolidation.

The composition of current and non-current assets and liabilities and the net equity at 31
December 2013 is shown below in the main currencies in which the Acciona Group operates.

Currency - Nom-current Current ' Nom-current  Current - Equity
asset asset Hability = Liability

Australian dollar 429334 111,007 261,554 81,856 196,931
Canadian dollar 0237209 112446 - 120,016 120326 109,313
US dollar 1,637,682 190,084 1,109,767 238,788 479,211
Polish zloty . 258,893 417.584 99.677 261,766 315.034
Chilean Peso 221,337 140,824 210,202 154,488  (2,529)
Mexican Peso 32351 2532 24,648 203968  58.156

From the analysis of the preceding table, it can be seen that the Acciona Group concentrates
its exposure, in terms of sharcholders’ equity, particularly around the US dollar and the Polish
zloty. On this basis, it has been estimated that a 10% re-valuation in the quotation of the euro
with respect to these six main currencies in which the Group operates and holds investments
would produce a negative impact of EUR 116 million on the Group’s net equity.
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Procurement price risk

The Acciona Group is exposed to fluctuations in the price of procurements, mainly fuel in its
sea transportation business and, to a lesser degree, raw materials in its biofuel production
business, when such fluctuations cannot be passed on to its customers.

Most fuel purchase transactions are carried out in international markets.

Fluctuations in procurement prices are managed through short-term measures, i.e. within one
year, which is considered to be the normal period for the implementation of the appropriate
commercial policies. The risk is managed by arranging specific hedges, generally in the form
of derivatives, to maintain the economic balance of the procurements.

Fluctuations in procurement prices are managed at short and medium term through specific
hedging transactions, generally using derivatives.

The Group performed a sensitivity analysis in relation to the possible changes in fuel prices.
Based on this analysis it was estimated that a 5% change in prices would have an effect on
2014 profit of approximately EUR 4 million.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a contract does not meet its obligations, giving
rise to a financial loss for the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only trading with
solvent third parties and obtaining sufficient guarantees to mitigate the risk of financial loss
in the event of non-compliance. The Group only trades with entities rated at the same or
higher investment level as the Group and obtains information on its counterparties through
independent company valuation agencies, other public sources of financial information or the
information it obtains from its own relationships with customers.

Notes receivable and trade receivables relate to a large number of customers spread over
different industries and geographical areas. Credit relationships with customers and their
solvency are assessed on an ongoing basis and credit guarantee insurance is arranged when it
is considered necessary.

The Group assesses non-payment risk prior to entering into contracts with public and private
customers (basically in the infrastructure business). This assessment includes both a solvency
study and supervision of contractual requirements from a financial and legal guarantee
viewpoint. During the course of the projects, the correct performance of the debt is monitored
constantly, and the related value adjustments are made using accounting criteria.

The Group does not have significant exposure to credit risk with any of its customers or
groups of customers with similar characteristics. Similarly, credit risk concentration is not
significant.

The credit and liquidity risk of derivative instruments with a positive fair value is limited by
the Acciona Group, since both cash placements and the arrangement of derivatives are made
with highly solvent counterparties with high credit ratings and no counterparty has
significant levels of total credit risk.
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On the other hand, the new definition given for the fair value of a liability in IFRS 13, based
on the concept of transferring the liability in question to a market player, confirms that own
credit risk must be taken into account in the fair value of liabilities. Thus, since 1 January
2013, ACCIONA incorporates a bilateral credit risk adjustment in order to reflect both its
own risk and the counterparty risk in the fair value of derivatives.

The Acciona Group manages liquidity risk prudently by ensuring that it has sufficient cash
and marketable securities and by arranging committed credit facilities for amounts sufficient
to cater for its projected requirements.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management lies with Economic and Financial
Department, which prepares the appropriate framework to control the Group’s liquidity
requirements at short, medium and long term. The Group manages liquidity risk by holding
adequate reserves, providing appropriate banking services, having available loans and credit
facilities, monitoring projected and actual cash flows on an ongoing basis and pairing them
against financial asset and liability maturity profiles. Finally, attention should be drawn, in
this regard, to the fact that the ACCIONA Group has recognised, as part of its quest to
diversify its funding sources, a European Commercial Paper programme for the maximum
amount of 500 million euros to issu¢ commercial paper with maturities of not more than one
year (see Note 21).

Economigc risk vs. budget variances

The Group has an overall system of economic and budget control for each business, adapted
to each activity, which provides those responsible for each business with the necessary
information and allows them to control potential risks and make the most appropriate
management decisions. The economic and financial information generated within each
division is periodically compared with the projected data and indicators, variances regarding
business volume, profitability, cash flows and other relevant and reliable parameters are
assessed and, where necessary, the appropriate corrective measures are taken,

Price risk

With regard to the price risk on the Spanish electricity market, Royal Decree 661/2007
established upper limits (“caps”) and lower limits (“floors™) for the aggregate price (the
market or “pool” price plus the premium) applicable to the sale of electricity on the market, or
else a fixed regulated tariff. In a deficit control setting, however, the domestic market has
been suffering a series of regulatory adjustments that have significantly altered the
remuneration for renewable assets in recent years as indicated in Note 2.1.

Royal Decree Law 2/2013 of 1 February on urgent measures in the electricity sector was
approved in 2013. This RDL, in force from 1 January 2013, sct the premiums for all
technologies at zero value and eliminated the caps and floors for the market sale option,
leaving the option for tariff-based sales, meaning that facilities could only receive the
regulated tariff or else sell their electricity freely on the market (without any premium).

Royal Decree-Law 9/2013 adopting urgent measures to gnarantee the financial stability of the
electricity system was published on 12 July. This Royal Decree, which came into force on 13

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 77 of 169 April 5th, 2014



EDWARD EWING - INTERPRETE JURADO
Calle Francisco Madariaga, 2 - 4°C / 28017 MADRID

—=z @:918514 253 - @: edward@sande.es

Certified Translation

July 2013, repealed, among others, Royal Decree 661/2007, of 25 May, the decree governing,
as described in the preceding paragraphs the remuneration framework supporting renewable
energies for most of the Acciona Group’s power generation facilities located in Spain. This
new regulation foresees that, in addition to the remuneration for the sale of electricity
generated valued at market prices, facilitics will be able to receive a specific remuneration
comprising a term per unit of power installed, covering, where appropriate the investment
costs for a standard installation that cannot be recovered through electricity sales and an
operating term that covers, where applicable, the difference between operating costs and the
revenue from that standard installation’s participation on the market.

The regulatory framework approved by the said RDL regulating the generation of electricity
from renewable energy sources, co-generation and waste and its subsequent development in
accordance with the drafi version of the Ministerial Order dated February 2014 seiting the
remuneration parameters for standard facilities applicable to facilities generating electricity
from renewable sources, co-generation and waste show that a large part of the Group’s
renewable assets, especially wind power commissioned prior to 2005, as well as many of tis
mini-hydroelectric power stations, will cease to receive any additional remuneration other
than the market price and will thus be fully exposed to price variations on the electricity

market.

Finally, with regard to the price risk on the power market of the various countries where
ACCIONA operales, it should be noted that approximately 70% of production is governed by
a long-term price contract (PPA) established with a third party, 16% under a regulatory feed-

in tariff and the remainder through its unrestricted sale on the market.

20. Derivative financial instruments

Interest rate hedges

The Acciona Group regularly arranges interest rate derivatives, which are designated as
hedges. These instruments are used to hedge possible changes in cash flows due to interest
payments on long-term floating rate financial liabilities.

The detail of the derivative financial instruments arranged and outstanding at 31 December
2013 and 2012, which are recognised at market value in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet as assets or liabilities, depending on this value and the method of inclusion in the

Acciona Group, is as follows:
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- iterest rate N S
{thiusands of T, 2013 i U Es
Notional Held-for- Investment Notional Held-for-
amount Financial sale Financi in amount Financial sale Fmanci Investment
arranged liabilities  lLabilities &l assets  associates(*) arranged Habilities liabilities  al assets  in associates
" Cash flow hidges ' o
ﬁ:;csﬂ rate 3,867.822 351,095 15,780 3,460 (72,016) 4.156.184 547.717 36,322 0 (135,778)
Collats 3274 33 = - 1114 LY = - (7.738)
Caps 34,517 289 - - - 41,517 259 - - -
Total 305613 35L417 ISTS0 3460 (72010 4254815 S5 36322 0 (143516)

(*) The amount of the investment in associates indicated is net of tax.

The most commonly used interest rate derivatives are interest rate swaps, the purpose of
which is to fix or limit fluctuations in the floating interest rates of hedged borrowings. The
Group arranges these financial derivatives mainly to hedge the cash flows on the debt
arranged to finance wind farms or solar facilities, in the case of the Energy division, and to
finance the infrastructure concessions operated mainly through jointly controlled entities and
associates.

At 31 December 2013, the fixed interest rates on these financial derivative instruments ranged
from 6.00% to 1.51% (from 6.00% to 1.62% in 2012).

The amounts recognised by the Group are based on the market values of equivalent
instruments at the balance sheet date. Substantially all the interest rate swaps are designated
and effective as cash flow hedges and changes in the fair value thereof are deferred in equity.

Changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognised directly in cquity (see
Note 16 €)). The net deferred tax asset arising on recognition of these instruments amounted
to EUR 101,550 thousand and 31 December 2013 EUR 159,005 thousand at 31 December
2012 and was recognised in equity (see Note 23).

The methods and criteria applied by the Group to measure the fair value of these financial
instruments are described in Note 3.2.1.

The notional amounts of the liabilities hedged by interest rate hedges were as follows:

2013 2012
Group companies o1 jointly controlled entities 3.083.635 3,370,311
Associates ; 02,630 760455
Companies classified as held for sale 119,348 124,049
Total nofional amount arranged 3.905.613 4251314

The contractual notional amounts of the contracts entered into do not reflect the risk assumed
by the Group, since these amounts merely represent the basis on which the derivative
seftlement calculations are made. The changes in the notional amounts of the financial
instruments arranged for the coming years are as follows:

Chapge in nutional amounts
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2020
3500007 3436090 2979537 2751623 A58 1922184
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Fuel hedges

The Group uses financial derivatives to manage the risk of fuel purchase price fluctuations on
international markets. The Group manages this risk by arranging financial instruments to
mitigate fuel price fluctuations.

In 2013, through its subsidiary Compafifa Trasmediterranea, the Group hedged fuel oil and
diesel price fluctuations by arranging several derivatives which ensure a fixed purchase price
for these fuel purchases amounting to USD 70.8 million. In addition, the derivatives necessary
to ensure the exchange rate between the euro and the US dollar were arranged in the financial
year. The Group designated the related hedging relationships at the start of the hedge and they
were fully effective. In these hedging relationships the changes in the price in euros of the fuel
constitute the hedged risk.

The settlements of these derivatives in 2013 were unfavourable to the Group and a cost of
EUR 2,125 thousand relating to the contracts that matured during the year was recognised in
the consolidated income statement as an addition to the cost of procurements. These
derivatives expired on 31 December 2013.

In 2012, diesel and fuel oil purchases were also hedged. The settlements of these derivatives
in 2012 were favourable to the Group and revenue of EUR 1,600 thousand relating to the
contracts that matured during the year was recognised in the consolidated income statement as
a reduction in the cost of procurements. These derivatives expired on 31 December 2012.

Also, at 31 December 2013, no hedges had been arranged for gas oil and fuel oil purchases in
2014,

Foreign currency hedges

The Group uses currency derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows.
In 2013 and 2012 the Group hedged a portion of its US dollar purchases and payments to
creditors through tunnel options and foreign currency hedges, and a portion of its sales
denominated in US dollars and Polish zlotys through foreign currency hedges.

The Group is a party to a variety of forward foreign currency contracts and options in the
management of its foreign currency risks. The instruments purchased are denominated mainly
in US dollars.

The detail of the transactions outstanding at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows (in
thousands of euros):

2013 2012
Effect of Effect of
Expiry Amount measurement at Amount measurement at
Currency _ date arranged  market value arranged market value

Foreign omrenicy purchase L 71 30/8/13 ot - = 2463 »
Foreign currency purchase PIN 16/01/13 - = 399 5
Toreign Gauroney puichase LISDH 31/03i14 457 13 2463 32
Total 657 13 2,862 32

At 31 December 2013, changes in the market values of foreign currency hedges were
recognised under “Current borrowing with credit institutions - Financial Derivatives at Fair
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Value” for an amount of EUR 13 thousand. The amounts recognised by the Group are based
on the market values of equivalent instruments at the reporting date. Substantially all the

currency purchase transactions are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and changes
in the fair value thereof are deferred in equity.

The scttlement of the derivatives outstanding in 2013 gave rise to a loss of EUR 101
thousand, which was recognised as an addition in the cost of procurements.

The settlement of the derivatives outstanding in 2012 gave rise to a gain of EUR 1,743
thousand, which was recognised as a reduction in the cost of procurements.

Other derivative financial instruments

At 31 December 2013, there were other derivative financial instruments in force recognised at

fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet, which had been arranged by the
Acciona Group, with the following breakdown:

Thowsands of enrgs
31112113 311212
Notional amount Fimancial Notional amount - Financial
arranged | liability arranged 2 fimbiliry
i‘:::;?‘ s 172,854 20291 183,874 28,833
172,854 20,291 183,874 28,833

In 2009, the Acciona Group prospectively discontinued the accounting of this instrument as,
following the novation of the underlying loan, it no longer qualified for hedge accounting.
The portion of the fair value that had been recognised as valuation adjustments in equity until
the time hedge accounting was discontinued, and which amounted to EUR 12,114 thousand
net of the tax effect, is being transferred to profit or loss over the period to maturity of the
transaction, based on the foreseeable reduction of the notional amount. At 31 December 2013,
the balance yet to be transferred to profit or loss amounted to EUR 4,236 thousand.

The effect of this interest rate swap transaction on the 2013 consolidated income statement
was EUR 5,541 thousand (an expense of EUR 3,254 thousand in 2012) and is recognised
under “Gains or Losses due to Changes in Value of Financial Instruments at Fair Value”.

Lastly, it should be mentioned that the three Australian energy subsidiaries have entered into
contracts which enable them to set the future electricity sale price for a specific volume
of MW. These contracts are measured at market value and the changes in value are recognised
in equity as valuation adjustments. At 31 December 2013, there was a balance payable in
“Reserves” net of the tax effect amounting to EUR 1,325 thousand, with balancing entries in

accounts receivable and accounts payable of EUR 7,989 thousand and EUR 6,096 thousand,
respectively.

The summary of the impacts on equity of the re-measurement of derivative financial
instruments at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is given below:
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o .. . (Thomsandsefewcs) - .. 1A243 0 3y
Financial liability due to interest rate derivatives 371,721 577,058
Lzablity due 1o dispontuiued denvative not qualifime i hedpr ErL S
s I W : 20284 {28 833)
Financial liability due to interest rate hedge (Note 20) 351430 543225

- Hel-foi-sale habdity dui (o yaterest rafo hedge (Nt 200 - 15780 3
Financial asset due to interest 1ate hedge (Note 20) (3.460) -
Tnvestrent m associales due to mtgrest 1ate hedge. net o tax A ey
et 3 . T g : ‘ f_z_g)lg - }43:{&_
Net deferred tax asset due to interest rate hedge (Note 20) (101,550) (159.005)

et doferred tax asset due to mnterest rate by ;}g‘é-ﬁ_?’m held-fon sale

habihties (Mot 20) LA "-'3'+.'" (10,885)
Ineffectiveness of hedging derivatives (Note 29) 5 (4,642)
Qthicr, mamiy dug to nen omtrolling interssts i inteiest rate i P
hedgmg wamsactions© . 1 o H2.135 “1_,1-1“”
Balance adjusted due to changes in value of interest rate hedging
transactions 37342 538415
Balance adjusied due-to changes I valug of fuel hedgmg transactions X N 0

(net of non-controlling mterists and tex) Ryl
Balance adjusted due to changes n value of foreign currency hedging P 45)
transactions (net of non-controlling interests and tax) s

Balanee adjusied duc by changes in value uf ensigy confraet inat of

non-controllifg tcrests and tax) _ . (1325 (X339
Balance adjusted due to changes in value of transactions with 4236 5656
discontinued hedgmg (net of tax) > =
Other, mamndy due 1o tianslation differences on dervatives . 12,260}
Total asset balance receivable for valuation adjustments at 31

December (Note 16) 321,238 533427

21. Debt instruments, bonds and other marketable securities

The changes in the balances of these current and non-current liability items in the
consolidated balance sheets in 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

' ‘Thousands of euros

2013 2012
Opening balance 275846 o 56498
Net inclusion of companies in the Group - —
Ispes . 234414 219 422
Accrued interest pasable 303 —
Relemptions - (80/922) ©L658)
Other changes (15,382) 583
Closing balance. . 414,359 275 846

The main change in the “issues” and “redemptions” line items under “Debt Instruments,
Bonds and Other Marketable Securities” for 2013 corresponds to the formalisation by
Acciona, S.A. of the European Commercial Paper (ECP) programme for a maximum amount
of 500 million euros with the details described at the end of this note and with an outstanding
balance of 159,903 thousand euros. The “other variations” line corresponds mainly to the
translation differences arising in the three issues of bonds in currencies other than the euro.

The main change in this heading in 2012, related to a private bond issue by the Mexican
subsidiaries Ce Oaxaca Cuatro, S. de R.L. de C.V. and Ce Oaxaca Dos, S. de R.L. de C.V.
amounting to EUR 219,423 thousand as detailed at the end of this note.

The distribuiion of the maturities for these debt instruments for 2014 and the next four
financial years and thereafter is as follows:
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2014 2015 2016. 2017 2018  Subsequent years - - Total .
162,406 2,940 3,968 5,085 6,358 233,502 414,259

At 31 December 2013, the details of the issues composing the balance under “Debt
Instruments, Bonds and Other Marketable Securities” were as follows:

- Private bond issue placed by the Canadian subsidiary Chinook Roads Partnership and rated
“A” by the Standard and Poor’s credit rating agency. The amount of the issue, EUR 54,441
thousand, is to be used as part of the financing required to undertake the construction,
operation and maintenance of the Southeast Stoney Trail toll road in the city of Calgary
(Canada). This issue was launched on 31 March 2010 and bears annual interest of 7.134%
payable monthly on the last working day of each month during the construction phase and
quarterly during the operation phase. The debt will be repaid in quarterly instalments
beginning on 31 December 2013 and ending on 31 March 2043.

- Issuance of a private placement bond rated “BBB” by the Standard and Poor’s and Fitch
credit rating agencies and performed by the Mexican subsidiaries CE Qaxaca Dos, S. de R.L.
de C.V. and CE Oaxaca Cuatro, S. de R.L. de C.V. for a total amount of USD 298.7 million.
The purpose of this financing is to develop, build and operate two, 102 MW wind energy
projects for the end client, the Mexican Federal Electricity Commission (CFE). This issue,
which was launched on 10 August 2012, bears annual interest of 7.25% payable every six
months on 30 June and 31 December each year until 31 December 2031, Debt repayment
began on 31 December 2012 and will continue in six-monthly instalments until repaid in full
on 31 December 2031.

- The European Commercial Paper (ECP) programme, formalized by Acciona, S.A. on
January 17th, 2013, for a maximum amount of 500 million euros and entered on the Irish
Stock Exchange. Through this programme, notes are issued on the euro market with
maturities of between 15 and 364 days. This programme was renewed for another year on 29
November 2013, maintaining the same terms and conditions.

In addition, the details of the debt instrument issue launched by Autovia de los Vifiedos, S.A.
and outstanding at 31 December 2012, but which was classified as “Non-Current Liabilities —
Liabilities Associated with Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale”, is as follows:

- The issue by this subsidiary amounted to EUR 64,100 thousand, with respect to which the
Group accounted for the 50% corresponding to it. This issue, launched on 28 October
2004 and accruing annual interest at 4.79% payable on 15 December each year throughout
the term of the issue. Redemption of the bonds commenced on 15 December 2009 and
they will be fully redeemed on 15 December 2027. At 31 December 2013, the amount
transferred from the current and non-current balances under “Debt Instruments and Other
Marketable Securities” to “Liabilities Associated with Non-Current Assets Classified as
Held for Sale” amounted to EUR 27,274 thousand (EUR 28,489 thousand at 31 December

2012).

22,  Other non-current and current liabilities

The detail of “Other Non-Current Liabilities” and “Other Current Liabilities” in the
consolidated balance sheet is as follows (in thousands of euros):
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> Other labilifies | - - Non-cuzrent Current
2013 2012 2013 2012
" C5ligations urder fingnce leases - o= S S T i, o 1.665.
COa enussion aliowances - = -
s T o L IEATR 11T 544 = ;s
Other deferred income 91209 104,848 - £
Remunezatron‘pavable S eS| - 004632 78144
Other payables 257956 225877 376.690 405,743
Closing bulaies - . 532439 #1132 168092 . aRa80z

“Other Deferred Income” relates mainly to certain incentives, established to promote the
development of renewable energies in the US, which are similar in nature to grants for
accounting purposes and which apply to two wind farms developed by the Energy division in
the US.

Under “Other Non-Current Payables”, attention is drawn to liabilities for long-term business
transactions relating to the construction business for 67 million euros as well as a loan from
the administration for 59 million euros as part of the finance for the concession company “A-2
Tramos 2, S.A.U.”

“Other Current Payables” relates mainly to balances with public authorities for various items:
VAT, personal income tax, other local taxes and the balance payable at year-end to the social
security system. These balances are detailed in Note 23.

“Obligations under Finance Leases”, which relates mainly to outstanding lease payments,
includes the purchase option on certain facilities of the Energy division in Australia. The
detail is as follows:

Minrmum lease payments
Amounts payable under leases 2013 2012
Withm ore year B . 278 3508
Between one and two years 3427 3,440
Between two and five veing - 78T 0,995
After five years 35652 46483
Total lease pay ments payable - 49,164 63516
Less: future finance charges 25,592 33,510
Present value of ledss ebligations 2357 30,005
Less: amount due for settlement within twelve months (current liability) 770 1,005
Amount due for settlement after twelve months —_ = 22,082 29,001

The main change in the financial year is related, on the one hand, to the payments made and
also to the depreciation of the Australian dollar against the euro during this period.

“Grants” corresponds mostly to amounts awarded for the construction of wind farms in
United States. The changes in “Grants™” in 2013 and 2012 were as follows:
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Grants
Balance at 31/12/11 118,495
Additions . . SRR Bk
“Other Income™ taken to profitor loss  (8,666)
Other 0 L e T 2472
Balance at 31/12/12 111,594
Addinns Sy B M T
“Other Income™ taken to profit or loss  (17,262)
Ohers ; o RELTE
Balance at 31/12/13 160,472

The main change in the 2013 financial year is related to the award of a total of 68 million
euros for two wind farms in United States.

23.- Tax matters
Consolidated taxation

Pursuant to current legislation, consolidated tax groups include the parent together with
certain subsidiaries that meet the requirements provided for in Spanish tax legislation. Since
2009 there has been a single tax group in Spain that avails itself of this special taxation
system, the parent of which is Acciona, S.A.

The other Acciona Group entities file separate tax returns in accordance with the tax
legislation applicable in the Basque Country, Navarre, the rest of Spain or that in force in each
country.

Effective from 1 January 2008, the Company availed itself of the special consolidated tax
regime for VAT purposes envisaged in Chapter IX of Title IX of VAT Law 37/1992, of 28
December. The parent of the VAT group is Acciona, S.A.

Years open for review by the tax authorities:

On 19 June 2009, the tax audits in relation to Group Income Tax for 2003 to 2005 were
completed. The tax assessments issued for 2003 and 2004 were signed on an uncontested
basis and that for 2005 was signed on a partially contested basis. The overall result in favour
of the group was EUR 14,344 thousand as a result of the reduction of the taxable basis for the
profits of the Unincorporated Temporary Joint Ventures.

With respect to the partially contested tax assessments issued for 2005 in the total amount of
EUR 5,737 thousand (including tax due, late-payment interest and penalty), an economic-
administrative appeal was filed at the TEAC on 20 August 2009.

On 19 May 2011, the TEAC notified the Group of its decision dismissing the claims filed,
upholding the tax assessment and the penalty that had been appealed. On 15 July 2011, the
Company filed an appeal for judicial review at the National Appellate Court against the
decision handed down by the TEAC.

On 11 July 2012, the Company filed a formal statement of claim and the related pleadings at
the National Appellate Court.
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The tax audits also included the review of other taxes of the companies belonging to the tax
group, which concluded with the corresponding tax assessments being signed on an
uncontested basis.

On 10 March 2012, tax audits were initiated in relation to income tax for 2007-2009 by the
inspection services of the Central Large Taxpayers Office against both the parent, Acciona,
S.A., and other subsidiaries. In addition to the review of the Tax Group’s income tax for those
yeats, the Group’s entities were reviewed in relation to VAT for 2008 and 2009 and to other
taxes for 2008 and 2009 of the Group companies included in the review.

During these actions and on the occasion of the review of the withholdings effected on
payment of dividends, this partial review was extended to the 2010, 2011 and 2012 financial
years and also included the reverse merger operation involving Grupo Entrecanales, S.A. and
its subsidiaries taken over by Acciona, S.A. on 11 July 2011. The auditors have accepted the
existence of valid economic grounds for the merger operation and its inclusion within the
special tax regime for mergers, spin-offs, contributions of assets and securities swaps. The
inspectors, for their part, have queried the fulfilment of the requirements for application of the
exemption in the payment of dividends for one of the shareholders, in particular, the
requirements of holding the status of effective beneficiary, and this has led to the signing of
the corresponding contested tax assessment for this concept with an amount up to the 2012
financial year of EUR 7,235 thousand (EUR 6,143 thousand of tax duc plus late-payment
interest),

The tax audit actions are expected to conclude during the first half of 2014 (on 26 December
2012 the inspectors notified their proposal to extend the term of the audit for a further twelve
months) and no further tax liabilities with a material impact are expected to emerge in the
final outcome.

On 10 January 2013, the “Guadalaviar Consorcio Eélico, S.A.” received a notification
regarding the start of tax inspection actions relating to Corporation Tax and Value Added Tax
for the 2008 and 2009 financial years, in which the valuation of the wind-power rights
transferred in 2009 was revised. These actions concluded with the signing of a contested
assessment for the valuation made by the tax auditors of the said wind-power rights increasing
the value declared by the parties. The company received the proposed settlement from the
technical services of the Central Large Taxpayers Office on 23 December 2013 and an
economic-administrative appeal was filed at the TEAC on 13 January 2014. The amount of
the adjustment, including late-payment interest, for which the company would be liable would
come to EUR 9,159 thousand and it is estimated that the possibility of these liabilities
materialising is remote,

The directors of Acciona, S.A. consider that the liabilities that might arise from these open
audits would not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements for 2013
taken as a whole.

At 31 December 2013, the non-statute-barred years which had not been reviewed were being
reviewed by the tax authorities for income tax and for the other main taxes applicable to the
companies in the consolidated tax group. In general, the other Spanish consolidated
companies have the last four years open for review by the tax authorities for the main taxes
applicable to them.
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In view of the varying interpretations that can be made of the applicable tax legislation, the
outcome of the tax audits of the open years that could be conducted by the tax authorities in
the future could give rise to tax liabilities which cannot be objectively quantified at the
present time. However, the possibility of material liabilities arising in this connection
additional to those already recognised is remote.

Receivables and pavables with the Public Administrations

The breakdown of the receivables and payables at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

203 S | - B ;
Non-curien, Cuerent “on-ciryent Current-
Tax receivables
VAT - i - 134, ]ﬁ@‘ < i 1%.-376
Tax refunds - 96,999 - 62.572
Tan 1cervabfes for uncollected grants = 184 - s
Deferred tax assets 1,053.581 928,421 -
Other . - T 46 895 - 35933
Total 1,053,581 272,538 928,421 295,468
Tax payables
Tncomic tax - 25614 . oL 3D7ss
Personal income tax withholdings - 16,597 = 17.014
VAT = o 102 103 - 127 338
Deferred tax labilities 833,478 910,416 -
Accinad social sechity taxes - 25,835 - 20,621
Other local tax = 44,908 13,936
Cther * -, - - 14156 35,154
Total 833,478 229,816 910,416 244,798

In the 2013 financial year, the main variation in the current payables correspond to the
reduction in the amount payable for VAT accounts and the increase in the tax credit held
against the Tax Administration of the Common Territory and the Regional Authorities.
Among the accounts receivable, the increase in the heading for Other local taxes is notable,
mainly due to the balance pending payment for the new Electricity Generation Value Tax, and
the levy for the use of surface water for the generation of electricity pending settlement in the
total amount of EUR 28 million. These encumbrances were introduced by Law 15/2012 of 27
December and came into force with effect from 2013.

The VAT refundable and VAT payable accounts include the balances relating to the special
consolidated VAT regime.

Reconciliation of the accounting profit to the taxable profit

The reconciliation of the income tax expense for 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Thousands of earos:
5 — 2013 2012

Consolidated profit before tax (2,174.221) 245,513
Profit/T oss before tax from discontinued operations

Permancnt dilfercnnes . ‘ 1278905 15462

Temporary differences 755176 (8,774)
. Dtfset of ax fogses- 236,556, (50069
Texable profit 296417 202132
Adjusted secountme profit (442 4091 299,737
Tax rate 30% 30%
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* Thounsands.of ewros .-
b8 fh o e o 0 CMAS - My
"Adjusted expense ab the tax tafe - PP & .0 - SRR T '}
Tax credits 25,028) (32173)
Lifect of diflerent tax ras and adjustoasnts - Cole9e T ises
Tax expense per the income statement (145,781) 61,331

Tax expense of discontinued operations

As has been indicated above (see Note 3.2.E, Notes 4 to 7, Note 13), a considerable amount of
goodwill and asset impairment has been recognised but in many cases this is not considered to
be deductible for tax purposes, including mainly the impairment of goodwill in the amount of
EUR 950 million, and so has been classified as positive permanent differences. In addition to
this non-deductible impairment amounts, this line item also reflects consolidation adjustments
that basically affect subsidiaries not belonging to the Tax Group.

With regard to the heading for temporary differences, at 31 December 2013, this mainly
comprised the impairment of national assets in the Energy division which will become tax
deductible in subsequent periods. In addition, positive adjustments have been recognised in
connection with the limitation of tax deductibility of the additions for amortisation, affecting
the subsidiaries established in Spain, in effect for the 2013 and 2014 financial years, as well
as negative adjustments through application of the accelerated depreciation, as described later
in this Note.

“Offset of Tax Losses” includes, on the one hand, a negative component due to the offset of
tax losses incurred in prior years amounting to EUR 20,917 thousand, of which EUR 4,648
thousand had not been recognised for accounting purposes and, on the other, a positive
component of EUR 357,473 thousand relating mainly to the tax losses incurred in the year by
subsidiaries which do not belong to the tax group and in relation to which no deferred tax
assets were recognised.

The consolidated companies abroad calculate their income tax expense in accordance with the
applicable legislation. The Spanish companies governed by tax regulations in the Basque
Country or Navarre take into account the particular features of these regulations when
calculating their income tax expense.

Tax recognised in equity

In addition to the income tax recognised in the consolidated income statement, in 2013 and
2012 the Group recognised the following amounts in consolidated equity:

“Fhousands of euros

2013 2082
Translation differences 40,228 {599)
[Farr value ol fmangial instruments {501 236) 60,287
Financial assets at fair value through equity (2,369) 511
Avtyanal losses and gains on penson plans C ted) i3
Total (12,440) 66,269

Deferred tax

In conformity with the tax legislation in force in the countries in which the consolidated
companies are located, in 2013 and 2012 certain temporary differences arose that must be
taken into account when quantifying the related income tax expense.
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The deferred taxes arose in 2013 and 2012 as a result of the following;

<7 'I'oussnds of euros .

Deferred tax assets: 2013 2012

“Tax loss canyforwards 170352 70 3L
Tax credit carrvforwards 171,072 177343
Denivative finurcial tstrupaezts 103 520 165212
Transiation differences 41,473 14,603
Impanpent lovses reungmised i assets and equity mtetests 171,584 13,49
Relating to taxation under the pass-through vegime (U'TEs) 35,326 45,847
Dthey -l 359,454 760G
Total deferred tax assets 1,053,581 928,421

T'bousands of Furos

Deferred tax liabilities: 2013 2012
Rurneasurernent of financial assets 6,814 - 6183
Reversal of merger goodwill 184 489
hanstation diffeiepces | - . 15738 19244
Allocation of first-time conselidation differences to assets 201,450 306,697
Retusasmernent of properts. prant and cquspment and tvestment property 29.889 0,71
Derivative financial instruments 1.086 7375
Relating to taxaton under the pass-thiough regmme (UFE). ~12368 20,852
Other 566,152 512,180
Total deferred tax lisbilites = . . - . - 833478 510,416

At 31 December 2013, the tax loss carryforwards, whether recognised or not, generated by the
subsidiaries before their inclusion in the tax group of which Acciona, S.A. is the parent
amounted to EUR 152.4 million. In 2012, this amount was EUR 172.7 million. The
subsidiaries of the Compafifa Trasmediterrdnea Subgroup, which were included in the tax
group in 2010, contributed most of this balance.

The Energy division subsidiaries in the US, Australia and Mexico, as well as Mostostal
Warszawa and the Infrastructures subsidiary in Chile also recognised tax loss carryforwards.

At 2013 year-end, the period for offset of the tax loss carryforwards were as follows (in
thousands of euros):

Amount Period for offset
Acciona, % A tax gioup o AA29 2019-2027
Spamish companies outside tax group ‘ 5,824 2023-2030
Internationa] - Hoated 158,276 T 2015-2031
Int.ernati'onal - unlimited 22,623 No lapsing iJate
Total 171,152

Also, at 2013 year-end the last years for offsetting tax loss carryforwards not recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet due to the lack of assurance on the future generation of
sufficient profits and relating to the tax group of which Acciona, S.A. is the Parent were as
follows (in thousands of euros):

Last vear for offset Amount
M8 1321

2019 2,735

2620 3

2021 1,053
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202 1089
2023 950
oz e
2025 25,356
2026 #4645
2027 10.031
Tl s

The unused tax credits, totalling EUR 166,274 thousand, relate mainly to those camed by the
tax Group of which Acciona, S.A. is the parent. At 31 December 2013, the most significant
unused tax credits were as follows: R&DHT tax credits amounting to EUR 72,015 thousand;
tax credits for the reinvestment of extraordinary income amounting to EUR 64,079 thousand;
and environmental tax credits amounting to EUR 11,400 thousand.

At 2013 year-end, the last year for deduction of the unused tax credits recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet of the Acciona Group were as follows (in thousands of euros):

wo Lot
-Acciona, SA L gioup 166274 2523- 2031
Spamsh companies outside tax group and other 4,798
Total 171072

At year-end there were no material unused tax credits that had not been recognised.

The Acciona Group expects to recover the tax loss and tax credit carryforwards recognised
through the companies’ ordinary activities without any risk of losses.

Most of the deferred tax assets included in the section for “Provisions on assets” correspond
to impairment recognised in the financial year (see Note4 and 13) for [non-Jresident
companies such as the foreign subsidiaries, mainly in the United States. The balance for
“Other concepts™ reflects the adjustment for the 30% cap on non-deductible accounting
depreciation for Spanish companies introduced temporarily for the 2013 and 2014 financial
years, the unification adjustments made as part of the consolidation process, such as
eliminations of internal margins, and through the application of other countries’ specific
regulations whereby certain expenses are not deductible until they are paid, as is the case in
Mexico and United States, or else a cash-based criterion is applied instead of accounting
accrual by degree of progress, as happens in Chile.

The variation in the account for deferred tax liabilities included as “capitalisation of initial
consolidation differences” corresponds to the tax effect of the goodwill impairment
recognised in 2013, and mentioned in previous notes. The “Other concepts” item includes the
tax adjustments due to accelerated depreciation provided for in Additional Provision Eleven
introduced in Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004 (Consolidated Spanish Corporation Tax Law
“TRLIS”) by Law 4/2008, of 23 December. The total amounts arising from this incentive
applied by the tax group companies were EUR 110,724 thousand in 2013 and EUR 128,966
thousand in 2012. This heading also includes the effect of accelerated depreciation in United
States, Australia and Mexico, the tax-deductible portfolio provisions for Spanish companies
applicable until 31 December 2012 (the former art. 12.3 of the TRLIS repealed with effect
from 1 January 2013) and the application of the specific regulations of other countries like
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Mexico and Chile where accounting revenue is not recognised for tax purposes until the
invoice is issued or the collection made, instead of the criterion of accounting accrual or
degree of advance.

Reporting obligations

Current income tax legislation provides tax incentives to encourage certain investments, The
companies have availed themselves of the tax benefits envisaged under this legislation.

The Group, through its Parent and certain of its subsidiaries, is required to fulfil the
obligations assumed in connection with these tax incentives. Consequently, it must hold, for
the stipulated period, the assets for which the investment or reinvestment tax credits were
taken.

In the 2010, 2011, 2012 and 2013 financial years, the Parent and certain companies in the Tax
Group availed themselves of the tax credit for reinvestment of extraordinary income provided
for by Article 42 of Royal Decree-Law 4/2004 (TRLIS). The income qualifying for this tax
credit in these years amounted to EUR 86,550 thousand, EUR 160,251 thousand, EUR 8,640
thousand and EUR 8,555 thousand, respectively. The income relating to 2010 was reinvested
in 2009 and 2010, the income relating to 2011 was reinvested in 2011, the income relating to
2012 was reinvested in 2012, and the income relating to the present financial year was
reinvested in 2012 and 2013. The assets in which the income was reinvested are those listed
in Article 42 of Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004, i.e. property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, investment property and securities representing holdings of 5% or more in
the share capital or equity of all manner of entities. The income was reinvested by the
companies belonging to tax group 30/96.

Pursuant to Article 42.10 of the TRLIS, this information must be disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements during the period for which the respective assets must be
held as stipulated in Article 42.8 of this Law.

In 2013, the Group companies did not carry out transactions which qualified for taxation
under the special regime for mergers, spin-offs, asset contributions and share exchanges.
Accordingly, no disclosures are made in this connection as would be required pursuant to
Article 93 of Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004 (TRLIS) and paragraph 3, relating to the
separate financial statements approved after such transactions were executed.

In 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, various companies in the tax group deducted the tax
credit for impairment losses on ownership interests in Group companies, jointly controlled
entities and associates provided for in Article 12.3 of Legislative Royal Decree 4/2004
(TRLIS).

Law 16/2013, of 29 October repealed, with effect from 1 January 2013, article 12.3 of the
TRLIS corresponding to the deduction of impairment losses on such equity interests and
established a transitional regime for the inclusion in the taxable amount of losses pending
incorporation at 31 December 2012,

The notes to these companies’ separate financial statements include the disclosures required
by tax legislation concerning the amounts deducted, the change in the year in the investees’
equity, the amounts included in the taxable profit (tax loss) and the amounts yet to be
included.
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24.  Non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

The detail of “Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale” in
consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

) ~ Balance at

31213
Other Activities division assets (vessels and investment property) 145,821
Eneigy fvmion assefs iwmd fams) o 144137
Infrastructure division assets (concession assets) 166.161
* "Tutal non-current assefs elassifled as held for ssle - 456,119

the accompanying

Halanee at
3HI312
196.289

232,036
28,325

At 31 December 2013, the detail, by division, of the main asset headings prior to their

classification as “Assets Held for Sale” is as follows:

Other
Achvities Energy Infrastructure

diviston division division
Propetty, plant and equipment 83414 117,557 173
Tovestmont property 62,507 S - 0
Other intangible assets - 7414 80,958
Investments jecogniscd by the equily . -
method, . - N 547
Deterred 1ax agsets - - 593 12,260
Non-current recetrvables and other non-
current assets -~ 41,400
‘Itads and cthericcervables s JABTT 13421
Cash and cash equivalents - 12,977 9,268
Other asset: - . - = &1y 2204
Assets classified as held for sale 145,821 144,137 166,161

TOTAL

201,144
62407
88,372

5478
1852

41,460
18397
22245
.ou 2833
456,119

Also, the detail at 31 December 2013 and 2012 of “Liabilities Associated with Non-Current
Assets Classified as Held for Sale” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet is as

follows:
Balance at .
311213
Other Activities division assets (vessels and mvestment property) 44.394
Energy division assets (wind farms) =0 104 468
Infrastructure division liabilities (concession assets) 132,892
Total non-current liabilities associated with non-carrent assets 281,754

classified as heéld for sgle .

Balance at
11212
90.718

216,957

307,675

At 31 December 2013, the detail, by division, of the main items under “Liabilities Associated

with Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for Sale” is as follows:

Other
activities Energy Infrastructuse
division division division TOTAL
e o _ 44,394 100,343 113513 238050
Cuqunt and non-cyrient bank: botrowings | G i : L
Other liabilities - 4,125 19 576 23.704
i inbikities associated with non-carrent 3% 104,365 13282 281,754
assets classified ay held for vale . :
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The detail of the cumulative income and expenses recognised directly in equity at 31
December 2013 in relation to assets classified as held for sale is as follows:

.1 Cash flow = Tl
| hedges . - Translation b
L (Nete20y. . differences Total
Other Activities division assets (vessels and investment property) - -
Foeigy 'd:,yisfon assete {vind tarmc’.i == : -’:1,'3‘30} = (! 380)
Infrastructure division (concession assets) (9.665) (938) (12447)
Total recogaised meame/(expense) - T (1049 ©3) . (3827

The main changes in 2013 were as follows:

Within the Energy division, Acciona, S.A. and the Swisspower Renewables AG Group
entered into an agreement on 18 December 2013 for the transfer of the equity interests held in
the following companies hecadquartered in Germany: Acciona Energie Windparks
Deutschland Gmbh, EHN Deutschland Gmbh and Volkmarsdorfer. These companies were the
owners of 18 wind farms located in Lower Saxony and Brandenburg (Germany), with a total
attributable capacity of 150.3 MW. The price agreed in the transaction is EUR 157 million
and the net bank borrowing is EUR 85 million. At 31 December 2013, these companies are
reflected in the headings for “non-current assets and liabilities held for sale”. The sale by
Acciona Group was finally completed on 23 January 2014 and the capital gain obtained was
EUR 27 million (see Note 33).

Within the Infrastructure division, as part of the plan for rotating concession assets, the
Tranvia Metropolitd, S.A. and Tranvia Metropolitd del Besos, S.A. companies have been
classified under the headings “Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale”. They were
previously included under the equity method and the reason for this change is because the
value of these concession assets is expected to be recovered through a sales transaction and
not through ongoing use.

Furthermore, also within the Infrastructure division, the equity interest that the Acciona
Group held in Acciona ISL Health Victoria Holdco, Ltd. was sold last August to the DIF
infrastructure fund. The company in question was the registered holder of 40% of the Royal
Jubilee Hospital in Vancouver, Canada and the total amount of the sale came to EUR 7
million. This amount included borrowing in the amount of EUR 4.5 million, giving a capital
gain of EUR 1 million. At 31 December 2012, the Company was already classified under this
heading.

Finally, in the Property division, the sale of an office building to Schindler, S.A. was
formalised on 18 December 2013 for EUR 31.5 million. This financial liability had associated
borrowing in the amount of EUR 25 million.

With respect to the two vessels from the Trasmediterrdnea subgroup held in this heading, as
indicated in Note 4, an appraisal has been requested from Tradex Shipbrokers, S.A. for them
and also for the rest of the fleet. As a result of the appraisal report, it has been detected that
the carrying value of the vessels was higher than their fair value, for which reason they have
been impaired in the amount of EUR 15 million.

In relation to the assets which at 31 December 2013 were still classified under this heading,
Group management remains committed to the sales plans and all of the assets are actively
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being marketed at a fair price, higher than their carrying amounts. Accordingly, it is
considered highly probable that they will be sold within the coming twelve months.

25.- Guarantee commitments to third parties

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the companies had provided guarantees to third parties of
EUR 2,340,280 thousand and EUR 2,676,858 thousand, respectively, for customers, public
agencies and financial institutions.,

Most of the guarantees provided were construction project performance bonds arranged by the
Infrastructure division. The companies consider that the liabilities, if any, that might arise
from the guarantees provided would not be material.

26.- Income

The detail of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

‘Thousands of curos

2013 2012
Infiastiactuie TATR9T . 3326369
Energy 2,116,713 2,106,629
Watey 585157 L 300,245
Services 640,566 591,647
Orther Activities’ © 641334 © 651066
Consolidation adjustments (112,737) (145,896)
Total revenue .. : 6,607.009 715,960

The breakdown, by geographical area, of the Group companies’ total production is as follows
{(in thousands of euros):

Emopean . OECD Other -
Spain Union' - countriss countries. . Total ¢

2013

Infiastuctuie 1.058.295 431 404 682,608 560.582 2732076
Energy 1,549,118 155,351 331,478 43,766 2,119,713
Water ; 259207 31355 162 034 132471 583,187
Services 517,356 100,221 12,144 10,845 640,566
Other Astivities 603,450 11,293 15 638 10953 €41 334
Intra-Group transactions (93,328) (66) (15,435) (3,908) (112,737)
Total 2013 preduction 3,894,188 729558 1188554 794.709 6,607,609
2012

‘Infrastincture 1. 418,020 759 068 804 104 45067 3326360
Energy 1,472,582 143,573 461,672 28,302 2,106,629
Wate - 209,528 L2763 210855 53,089 500 245
Services 478,105 97,046 8,798 7,698 591,647
- Othes Activities 596,270 9400 15561 Q826 631,066
Tntra-Group transactions (123,967) 262) {20,621} (1,087) (145,897)
Yotal 2012 production 4050,597 L041,358 1,480,369 H3H05 7,015,959

Concession assets with no demand risk

As indicated in Note 3.2 g), following its adoption of IFRIC 12, the Acciona Group recognises
under “Non-Current Receivables and Other Non-Current Assets” concession business assets
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whose recovery is guaranteed in the concession contract by the grantor through the payment
of a fixed or determinable amount and, accordingly, no demand risk is borne by the operator.

In relation to these concession assets, even during the construction phase the Group
recognises interest income earned on the financial asset, based on its effective interest rate.
This interest income is recognised under “Revenue”, which at 31 December 2013 and 2012
amounted to EUR 29,809 thousand and EUR 34,044 thousand, respectively.

Construction revenue

The Group obtains substantially all its construction revenue in its capacity as prime
contractor.

The detail of construction revenue by type of project is as follows:

Thousands.of euroy
2003 . 2013

Civil engineering 1,825,135 2,194203

Restdental building conshuction” - 74,284 119312
'&: Non-residential bulding construction 445,986 551570
2 o Othet business axtivdtivs . © 260467 361.826.
= g Total construction revenue 2,605,874 3,217,811
~
- &
% g\ The detail of construction revenue by customer type is as follows:
© & .
&= = 2013 2012
A State 257,404 260,309
%’ ® Autonumous Cummunity Gevanments. . 124,786 138399
Z Municipal councils 26,279 38,199
= § \irtonomous  Conumunity agoncies ond Govsrmmeni-owned: “3.,, 1o = 530 066
% - cuporations . . - B ok
o 10 Public sector 765,715 976,973
& © Prrvate sector 241,852 | 396138
g o Total Spanish customers 1,007,567 1373,111
E ] Total customers abioad - 1.595 304 -1.844.700
% \b) Total construction revenue 2,605,873 3,217,811
o

The breakdown, by geographical area, of the construction backlog at the end of 2013 and

2012 is as follows:

2013 Spam - Abroad .
Civil engineering 1,851.190 2,553,540
Residcntial bulding consitnetion - 23904 B V73
Non-residential building construction 532.829 277609
Other business aotivies 237832 226 867
Total construction backlog 2,645,755 3,077,641
2012 Spain Abroad
Civil engineciing 2,405,408 2,909,173
Residential building nonstruction 57488 71962
Non-residential building construction 534 635 434,048
Othier busmess activities 23R 70073
Total construction backlog 3,271,459 3,494,256
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27.- Expenses

The detail of the Group’s expenses is as follows:

Procurements
. StafF ooty
Wages and salaries
“Social secunty costs -
Other staff costs
Oither evteinal cxpenses
Taxes other than income tax
- Gither cunient operating expensgs
Subtotal
Change i provisions and alloweness
Depreciation and amortisation charge

Total

Employees:
The average number of employees in 2013 and 2012, by professional
follows:

Management and supervisors

Qualified lmne perzonnel -

Clerical and support staff

Other smiplovees

Total average number of employees

B3

1.531,817
224360
1,087,631

228024

17,705

2.594 357,

225,674
61082
5,747,290

389162

763,545

6,508,027

2013

280
5506
3,729

21,593
34,108

2012
1,656,283

1325 48]

1,083 042
228 448
13,771
2,220 399
117582
58,690
6,078.415
L3530
715,852
6,819 568

212
3,382
<148
2612
21,7463
32,905

category, was as

" Change
(102)
- 358
1.117
(178,
1,203

The average number of employees, in 2013 and 2012, by line of business and gender, was as

follows:
2013
) Men Women
Management and supeivisols 2785 495
Qualified line personnel 3,651 1,855
Clersoal and suppurt stzff 1540 2189
Other employees 17,502 4,001
Total aver age number of employees | 25478 8.630

The breakdown of the Group’s employees by line of business is as follows:

Infrastructure

Fucrgy

Water

Urban Servicas

Other Activities

Total average number of employecs

Total
2280
3,506
3,720

21,593
34,108

2013,

15.088
2367
2716

1181
2,126

34,108

2012
Men Women Total
2867 315 3382
3641 1507 5,148
1021 158t 2612
17,117 4,646 21,763
24,656 8249 32,905
2012 Change
15,190 (n
2331 -
2,545 171
H 451 1.360
2,379 (253)
32,905 1203

The average number of employees, in 2013 and 2012, by line of business and gender, was as

follows:

2013

2012
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Men Women Total Men Women Total
Latrastiywiure _ 112887 2,201 13058 12865 2334 15199
Energy 1,784 583 2,367 171 560 2,331
Waig 303 e 3716 2087 Rt 2545
Urban Services 7.160 4711 11,811 6.242 1,209 10.451
LT L4 2 21 1690 89 - 250
Tata) average number of employees 25,478 8,630 34,108 24,655 8,250 32,905

In 2013 and 2012, respectively, 265 and 263 of the total headcount were employees of the
Parent and the remainder were personnel Group subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2013, the consolidated companies have raised the average number of
employees with a disability level of 33% or over to 650 (direct or indirect employees). Law
13/1982, of 7 April, on the Social Integration of Persons with Disabilities (LISMI) establishes
a minimum quota of 2% for the recruitment of disabled persons in companies with more than
50 employees and the Group’s headcount included 3.08% of disabled persons.

Operating leases:

“Other External Expenses - Leases” in the accompanying consolidated income statement
includes notably the costs incurred by the Compaifiia Trasmediterranea Subgroup for the
charter of other shipping companies’ vessels and cargo decks totalling EUR 36 million and

YT T

EUR 27 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the lease terms and conditions and minimum payments
(without taking into account inflation or possible revisions) under the main vessel charter
contracts entered into by the Compafifa Trasmediterranea Subgroup were as follows:

2013 (thousands of enros)
Arrangement Expiry date Type 2014 2015-2016
Vessel date
Millensum 101 30711406 311214 Bare beat - 4788 -
Wisteria/Vronskiy 29/02/12 3011714 Time charter 4,608 .
Afbavzin © - 220210 310315 I'ime chaiter ... 3807 1503
Tenacia 07/12/11 071215 Time charter 6,059 5.544
Oleandet/Sheibatskay 01711712 0111414 Tume charter 3431 -
Miranda 06/0113 01/03/14 Time charter 480 -
Soandofla . 21 020314 Time chater TI3 -
Voleéan de Teneguia 0470213 04/08/14 Time charter 1,966
2012 (thousands of euros)
Yessel Arrangement Expiry date Type 2013 2014-2015
date
Milenmum T¥ 30110 31/12/14 Baie boat 4 560 4788
Wisteria 29/02/12 22/08/13 Time charter 3253 .
Albayrmn 22KG219. 03714 Lime chaster 5,293 " 98y
Tenacia 0712111 07/12/13 Time charter 5475 -
Oleander oL1/2 a1 Time charter 4106 E k]
Miranda 06/01/13 31/12/13 Time charter 2914 -

Change in provisions and allowances:

The detail of the balance of “Change in Provisions and Allowances” in the consolidated
income statement is as follows (in thousands of euros):
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B o o B, 2013 2012
Change 1n allowance for uncollectible receivables 182 355 10.957
Change ity tevantery witie=dowrs 121301 18417
Other provisions 85536 (4.073)
Towd - 389,192 25301

The heading for “Variation due to uncollectibles™ basically reflects, as explained in Note 14,
EUR 74 million of the receivables from a Brazilian client as a result of the initiation of
insolvency proceedings in November, as well as EUR 80 million for work executed and
pending certification and also the referral to the courts of law of certain claims by the Polish
subsidiary in the Infrastructure division regarding road works.

The “Provisions for inventory” heading mainly includes the impairment in inventory held by
the Property division in the amount of EUR 96.6 million (see Note 13).

The “Other provisions” heading corresponds mainly to addition made for burdensome
contracts and the provision for lawsuits.

Impairment and results from the disposal of plant, property and equipment

The breakdown for this heading on the operating statement for the 2013 and 2012 financial
years is as follows:

Impairment and results from the 2013 2012
disposal of plant, property and equipment
Results from plant, property and equipment 22,789 10,694
Interests in the losses of companies held by the equity method 5,087 2,553
Impairment of goodwill (Note 6) (949,734) --
Impairment of other assets (Notes 4 and 7) (918,996) | (58.946)
Total (1,840,854) | (45.699)

At 31 December 2013, the heading “Impairment of goodwill” mainly includes the impairment
in the amount of EUR 870 million for the Energy division. The heading “Impairment of other
assets” mainly includes the impairment of generation assets in the Energy division in the
amount of EUR 562 million as well as the impairment of capitalised costs in generation assets
and projects discarded on the grounds of a lack of feasibility in view of the new reguiatory
framework facing the Energy division. It also includes the impairment of vessels in the
amount of EUR 100 million euros, the impairment in the amount of EUR 62 millicna for
biofuels and the impairment of EUR 40 million suffered by the concession asset “Acciona
Concessdes Rodovia do Ago, S.A.”

In the 2012 financial year, this heading mainly reflected the capital gains obtained througl the
sale of a concession-operating company in Mexico, as well as the sale of two vessels
belonging to Acciona Trasmediterranea. The impairments in value corresponded mostly 1o the
Energy division.
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28. Segment reporting

Basis of segmentation:

Segment reporting, described below, is structured on a primary basis by business segment and
on a secondary basis by geographical segment. This structure is in line with the information
used internally by Acciona Group management to assess the performance of the segments and
to allocate resources among them.

The business lines described below were established by the Board of Directors on the basis of
the Acciona Group’s organisational structure, taking into account the nature of the goods and
services offered.

In 2013, the main business activities carried on by the Acciona Group were structured into the
divisions described in Note 1. In 2013, the Group has altered its internal organisational
structure, mainly through the grouping of several activities under the Services Division, and
incorporating Water as a separate division. In addition, the property and Trasmediterrdnea
activities have been classified under the Other activities division.

As indicated in IFRS 8 Operating Segment, the segment information for previous periods has
been modified as shown below to facilitate comparability with the figures corresponding to 31
December 2013.

The structure of the information presented in this Note has been designed as if each line of
business were a scparate busincss. Costs incurred by the Corporate Unit are distributed pro
rata, using an internal cost distribution system, among the different lines of business.
Inter-segment sales are made at market prices.

Segment information about these businesses for 2013 and 2012 is presented below:

- Infia- " Uther Intra-gronp - Eur;terd:- Total

Bahm:m at 31[12:":1} - samcte ‘If':uelg\r - Water Psenfee ol e S Ttems Uiy
ASSETS
Property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets 439,976 8,172,279 230197 35,718 670 642 (49,388) » 9,508 424
and investment property
Gagdwall K 365, = 33,604 50962 245 y 40 = - g An
Non-current financial assets 15,491 47,570 2,203 5461 90,960 22,027 = 183,712
Tnvesiments accounted for a = -l e =_-
using fhe squty method 66,129 10.450 A9.258 (187 . i | 5 - 15} 515
Othet assets 615,608 587340 90,589 1431 277367 2,601 B 1,574.866
" Non-cunrent assefs 1,181,642 8,817,639 425,87 93380 1,062,138 24.760) - 11,5259%4
nventones . - <308 650 184,394 14481 C A4 ARE2EY (140857, = 1047145
Trade and other receix ables 1,067,569 639,966 214,932 197725 313,516 (576,656) - 1,859,052
Other cunat, fnancid 1234 5T 5350 1413 .74 L - s
ety . ] . - 3 i
Other assets 335,583 1,548,984 10,883 41,868 280,13 - (1,938 857 278,798
Cash and usah aquivalenty HB30,229  12276%%) A JI3ESE) 1619185 2 o o 1245944
Non-current assets classified
as held for sale L Sy - T 145,821 = - 456,119
Current asiets 2,820,526 - 1,524,628 319,328 120999 302883 (6177661 (LO3REST)  A2STTN
Total assets 397,168 10.342,267 745,204 214,388 4,090,991 (642,526) (1,938,857) 1:6;7835635"
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Consohdated profitfoss
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Profit from operations 102,544 494,441 29,976 6,184 30,867 (1,330) (16,482) 646,200
. Finumeemoome. o ALTTE, 1987 S22 naes . 26A73 2R 19,664 716
Finance costs {69,900 (342,239 (9,542) (6,874 (74,235; 28,256 (1.65%) {476,183)
Resiftof companies .~ S O A BT s T T — T
acconnted Tor wsais the * SIS L TRedt O im0 o gme ey ST R
Profit/Loss before tax 70,066 165828 22,688 1,675 (14,421) (1,186} 863 245,513
Ingomg tavoxperise 235 aeE 3R (%133 15346 s . @2y 1331
Consolidated profitloss

from the period 48,832 116,589 19,315 702 1,925 (830) (2,351) 184,182
“ PrfitLoss after tex Hom . Ty i sl b L4 =

discontinued aotiiitiss. - - & ¥ . : . o : = =
Profit/Loss for the year 48,832 116,589 19,315 702 1,925 (830) (2351) 184,182
Nan-confioliing mieests 13,595 U0 7. T - 9% 2862 (359Y - 5219
Profit/Loss attributable to

the parent 62,827 105,214 19,315 798 4,787 (1,189) (2,351) 189,401

The Extraordinary Items section provides a pre-tax result of EUR 2,203 million. The main
effects and their impact on each of the divisions in the Acciona Group are as follows:

- Positive effects: EUR 19 million for capital gains derived from the sales of the company
owning a wind farm in Korea and the concession for the Royal Jubilee hospital in Canada
(EUR 18 million and EUR 1 million, respectively).

- Negative effects: EUR 2,223 million affecting the following divisions:

- Energy: EUR 1,675 million, caused mainly by the impairment of goodwill (in the amount of
EUR 870 million) and asscts as a consequence of the successive regulatory changes in Spain
(in the amount of EUR 563 million)

- Infrastructure: EUR 288 million, mostly originating in the declaration of insolvency
proceedings against a client in Brazil, work executed pending certification and claims for
surcharges on road works in Poland, as well as the impairment of several assets, mainly a
concession in Brazil

- Property: EUR 100 million, as a result of the loss of value in property assets

-Rest: EUR 160 million, mainly as a consequence of the impairment in value of the
Trasmediterranea fleet

The detail of certain of the Group’s consolidated balances based on the geographical location
of the companies that gave rise to them is as follows:

Income Total assets - ‘ - Non-curirent assets . " Currentassets
: 2013 2612 - 2013 012 2013 2012 2013 2082

Spain 3894189 4050597 13075986 15289416 7760366 9823810  S3I5620 5465605
ﬁi‘l‘éﬁ‘-” 21651 1036805 T 087483 136525 878347 %0973 108607 175 551
OECD '
= 1,188,555 1309497 2,170,637 2404766 2418956  2614.357 (248,319) (209,591)
Oth . o] ] A e 3
- m‘;}m 302614 61587} | 599550 988890 467 755 571 982 81803 - 416510
Total 6607009 7015960 16,783,635 19819297 11525924  13971,122 5257711 5848175

29.  Finance income and costs and other income and expenses for the vear

The detail of the Group’s finance income and costs is as follows:
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A3 20i2
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. mgome foim equity uivestments - . ST AN S heh?
Income from other securities 1,867 4,386
- Ot Tinence ihéomz - SY oy iRy Toegin
Finaneecosts - . o J o WIs0sd) - (S0L5EY)
(On payables to third parties (486.430) (525.250)
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Other finance income and costs:

The Group had capitalised borrowing costs amounting to EUR 13.3 million at 31 December
2013 and EUR 13.9 million at 31 December 2012, of which EUR 12.9 million and EUR 13.7
million, respectively, were capitalised to property, plant and equipment (see Note 4) and EUR
0.6 million and EUR 0.2 million, respectively, were capitalised to inventories (see Note 3.2 j).

Finance costs:

In 2013 payables to third parties subtracted from equity and included in “Finance Costs”
relating to the periodic settlements of hedging derivatives and corresponding to fully or
proportionately consolidated Group companies amounted to EUR 119,458 thousand (2012:
EUR 96,299 thousand). Also, an amount of EUR 18,026 thousand (2012: EUR 17,205
thousand) relating to these periodic settlements was recognised as a decrease in the results of

companies accounted for using the equity method, since it related to associates.

30. Proposed distribution of profit

The distribution of Acciona, S.A.’s profit for 2013 and 2012, which, in the case of 2012, was
approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and, in the case of 2013, will be
proposed by the Board of Directors for approval by the sharcholders at the Annual General

Meeting, is as follows (in euros):

M3 2
Distribution basis:
Acviona, § A profit {10715, 508 685 06) 178,096,628 %7
Distribution:
To legal 1evelne = - -
To bylaw reserve - 17,800 962,88
To volontary tegerves - - 8,351,338 30
To losses fam provious yeals (1.075.506 68500} a0 :
Dividends -- 151,737,807 50
Total (1,075.506,685.00) 178099,628.57%

Under its bylaws, Acciona, S.A. must in any case allocate 10% of net profit to the legal and
bylaw reserves. Once the balance of the legal reserve has reached 20% of the share capital,
any remaining portion of the 10% of net profit must be transferred to the bylaw reserve. This

reserve is unrestricted.
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31. Environmental matters

ACCIONA backs the development of environmentally sustainable businesses: it generates
electricity from renewable sources; it desalinates water and makes it drinkable and also cleans
it; and it builds infrastructures and services where the environment variable is relevant in the
taking of decisions. In 2013, 42% of the Group’s global sales and 85% of the EBITDA is
based on businesses included in what the UNEP (United Nations Environment Programme)
defines as the Green Economy and over EUR 518 million are devoted to environmental
activities. This figure includes the construction, operation and maintenance of waste water
treatment plants. At 31 December 2013, environmental expenses represented EUR 80 million
and environmental investments EUR 204 million. The figure for construction, operation and
maintenance of waste water treatment plants amounted to EUR 234.5 million.

The breakdown by category of this economic figure for environment-related activities is as
follows:

- Measures to minimise environmental impact: Expenditure amounts to EUR 57 million.

- Environmental research, development and innovation: the figure for this concept
corresponding to environment-related activities was EUR 10.5 million.

- Environmental prevention: The investments for this concept came to EUR 200 million.
These investments for environmental prevention include investments in new renewable
energy and hydroelectric facilities because of the savings in primary energy implied by
generation with these technologies and consequently lower emissions.

- Personnel; The expenses related to the personnel making up the organisational structure for
environmental matters were EUR 7.1 million.

- Investments in plant, property and equipment to prevent environmental impacts and protect
the environment: The investments in this concept came to EUR 4.2 million.

- Environmental consultancy and advisory services: the expenditure for this concept was EUR
2.6 million.

- Waste water treatment: The figure came to EUR 234.5 million.

- Others: This category includes other environmental expenses, of which the most significant
are insurance and charges, training, environmental management system and environmental
awareness and communication. In total, these come to EUR 2.6 million.

In 2013, ACCIONA obtained bonuses for carrying out actions encouraging respect for the
environment and its protection. On the one hand, ACCIONA Water obtained grants from the
Basque Energy Agency (EVE) for the replacement of equipment and plant at facilities by
others using highly efficient emission-abating technologies. On the other hand, the Port
Authorities have rewarded Acciona Trasmediterranea for the application of good
environmental practices certified by accredited independent entities. These bonuses totalled
EUR 0.3 million.

32. Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share coincide with basic earnings per share, the detail being as follows:
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s e S N e 2013 . 1]
Net profit for the vear (thousands of euros) (1,972,371} 189,401
Weighted average numnber of shares-outstanding O RTINS S BTIBLEED
Basic earnings pe1 share (ewos) (34.55) 330

33.- Events after the reporting period

- During the month of January 2014, Acciona S.A. issued bonds in the amount of EUR 342
million maturing on 30 January 2019 (5 years) and convertible into shares in Acciona S.A.
The reference price for the share was EUR 47.563 and the conversion premium is 32.5% of
the reference price. The bond issue pays a coupon of 3% per annum every six months. The
purpose of the issue was to increase the mean life of the debt and the overall reduction of the
Group’s financial costs.

- On 23 January 2014, the Acciona Group finalised the sale of a group of companies owning
18 wind farms operating in Lower Saxony and Brandenburg (Germany), with a total
attributable capacity of 150.3 MW and a mean life of 8 years. The amount of the sale and the
capital gain obtained came to EUR 157 million and EUR 27 million, respectively. The net
bank borrowing is EUR 85 million.

- In addition, during the month of February, Acciona, S.A. signed a long-term finance
arrangement with the European Investment Bank in the amount of EUR 120 million for the
purpose of funding the Acciona Group’s multi-year programme (for the period from 2013 to
2015) with regard to its research, development and innovation activities.

- Following the enactment of RDL 9/2013 on 12 July for the adoption of urgent measures to
guarantee the financial stability of the electricity system and subsequently the Electricity
Industry Act (Law 24/2013, of 26 December) determining the new remuneration framework
applicable to facilities generating electricity from renewable sources on the basis of the
principle of a reasonable return for standard installations (establishing, among other aspects,
the calculation criteria, the review mechanisms, as well as the duration of the regulatory
periods), The Draft Ministerial Order approving the remuneration parameters for standard
facilities applicable to certain facilities generating electricity from renewable energy sources,
co-generation and waste was published in February 2014.

This Ministerial Order as proposed defines all the standard facilities by technology, the
remuneration parameters applied to each standard installation for the first regulatory semi-
period (regulatory life of the facility, remuneration for the investment, remuneration for
operation, the annual caps and floors on the mean annual market price), as well as the
standard values used to calculate the specific remuneration in each case.

Awaiting the publication of the definitive Ministerial Order, the parameters reflected in the

February Draft have been taken to cvaluate the impact of RDL 9/2013 on renewable
generation assets whose remuneration have been affected.

34.- Related party transactions
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As indicated in these notes to the consolidated financial statements, transactions performed by
the Company with its subsidiaries (related parties) as part of its normal business activities (as
regards their purpose and terms and conditions) have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this Note. Transactions between the Group and its associates are disclosed
below.

Transactions with associates

The detail of the balances receivable from and payable to associates at 31 December 2013 and
2012 is as follows (in thousands of euros):

* "Receivahies / Fxpenses Payables/ Ingoine. -

_ = 13- 0 2012 083 2012
Trade and other receivables 16,074 17,038 - =
“Trade and other payables - S - 1,764 Fo23
Loans to associates 51L7TH 46,517 7.042 -
eosue aml expenises 136 2973 13.128.. IR

The balances with Group associates relate mainly to services rendered by Acciona
Infrastructure to various associates and to loans provided to associates.

These transactions were performed on an arm’s length basis.

Transactions with shareholders

In 2013 there were no significant transactions involving a transfer of resources or obligations
between the Parent or its Group companies and the Company’s main shareholders.

Transactions with directors and executives

The Group’s “related parties” are deemed to be, in addition to the subsidiaries, associates and
jointly-controlled entities, Company management’s “key personnel” (its directors and senior
executives, and their close relatives) and the entities over which key management personnel
may exercise control or significant influence. The transactions performed by the Group in
2013 and 2012 with its related parties are listed below, differentiating between the Company’s
significant shareholders, directors and managers, and other related parties. Related party
transactions are made on terms equivalent to those in the arm’s length transactions that
usually take place in a normal business relationship with Acciona, S.A. or the Group
companies within the scope of these entities’ ordinary business activities. These transactions
consisted basically of:
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Thousands of euros

311213
Group
Directors employ ees, Other
Significant and companies related
Expenses and income shareholders  executives or entities parties Total
Expenses:

3 l'maﬂﬁimm ' - - S - -
Management or cooperation agreements - - = -
R&T fransfers and liocniing agrecments = -
Leases - - - -
Servicesrecered 0 - - = 50 250
Purchase of goods (finished goods and work in progress) - -- - - o
Vahation adjustrments due iy lmnollemhle o1 dopbtfid A

debts - I i =5 =
Losses on disposal of assets - = = =
Other expenses = = = - =

" Income: - = = = - -
Finance income - - - -
Maragcment or coopetation agicements . = = = =
R&D transfers and licensing agreements -- - - -
Dividends vecaived : - - = -

Leases - - = -
Rendenng of sevies - - - = TIm 7,100
Sale of good: (finished goods or work 1n progress) - - - =
Gamy on disposal of asvets - - = — =
Other income - — -
Thousands of enros
31/12/13
, Group
g - -F Directors . cmployees, Other
g i L Significant ~and -+ companies related
Other transactions .- shareholders  exccutives Or entities parties - Towml,
Puichase: of ptoneriy, plant.md eqmpmem mtvmglble T ;
assets or other assels - - il i
Financing agreements. loans and capua] contnbutlons )
(lender) . -
Finance leases {lessor } - - - ol = -
Repayment or cancellation of loans and lcascs (iessor) - -- - -
Sales of propaits plant aovd eqmpment ntangsble asseis - i
other assefs . i » " -t
Financmg agreements loans and capital contnbutions _ _
(borrower) - o -
Finances keases (lessee) = - -- o= = =
Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases (lcssee) - = - =
Ginneaniess provided - = o - =
Guarantees received - = iz a:
Oblipations acquied - - - = -
Obligations/guarantees discharged - - - -
Dividends and other profits distibuted =3 o = ~ =
Othel transactions - - - . .
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Thousands of euros
B 1] pj b3

Expenses and income

Expenses:
Finance cests
Management or cooperation agreements

. R&D transfers and rcnsmg agcements”

Leases

%l VIDES: IECEVed |

Purchase of goods (finished goods and work in proglcss)
Va.-uamm adustmenis due touncollectibls o doubtfal |
Losses on disposal of assets

Other expenses

Income: .
Finance income

. Management i S00pEIation 81 mesTty

R&D transfers and licensing agreements
Dividends tecaived -

Leases

Pendermg of s ek

Sale of goods (finished goods or
Gains on Jrspeosal of assels.
Other income

or work in hfogrcss\

Other tiansaviions

Puichases-of propaty, plant and equ:pmcnt tntangthic
aysets or other assefs

Financing agreements: loans and capital contributions
(lender)

tmance leases (lessor)y

Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases (lessor)

Sales of pioperty. pI.mI and- r.qulpmcnt intanyzibie asysts or
other asseis

Financing agreements: ]oans and capital contnbutmns
{borrower)

Fuyencz Jeazes (lessee)
Repayment or cancellation of loans and leases (lessee)

Cnarantees provided

Guarantees received

Obligations acquired
Obligations/guarantees discharged
Drvidends and oiher profits dists itrimed
Other transactions

_ Significant

Directors

Significant and

shareholders

-

and
sharehylders

executives

Thousands of curos

Directors

exscutives

Group

employees,
companies

or entities

31/12/12

Group
emplovess,
companies
o1 enfities

_parties . -

Other

related

parties Total

-

5767

Othex
related

L -
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35.- Remuneration and other benefits

A. Directors

The detail of the remuneration received in 2013 by the Parent’s Board members from all the
Group companies of which they are directors is included in this Note (in euros).

During the 2013 financial year, the remuneration accrued by the members of the Company’s
Board of Directors, and taking into account that this remuneration is taken from the
perspective of the Parent and its subsidiaries, totalled, in euros, the sum indicated in this Note.

Pursuant to art. 31 of the Bylaws, the remuneration for Directors will consist in a fixed annual
allocation determined for their membership of the Board of Directors and any Committees on
which each Director may sit. The amount of the remuneration to be paid by the Company to
the Directors as a whole for belonging to the Board of Directors and its Committees will be
that determined for this purpose by the General Meeting of Shareholders. Once established,
this amount shall remain in force until such time as it may be amended although the Board of
Directors may reduce its amount in those financial years where this is considered appropriate.

The establishment of the exact amount to be paid within this limit and its distribution among
the different Directors shall correspond to the Board of Directors.

Regardless of the provisions contained in in the preceding section, the remuneration deriving
from membership of the Board of Directors shall be compatible with any other remuneration
(fixed salary; variable bonuses depending on the achievement of business, corporate and/or
personal development goals; compensation for removal of the Director for reasons other than
the failure to comply with his or her duties; welfare systems; deferred remuneration concepts)
that, by means of a Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors following a proposal by the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee, may correspond to the Director for the
performance of other functions in the Company, be they senior management executive
functions or any other kind, apart from those of collegiate oversight and decision-taking
carried out as mere members of the Board.

Following a resolution adopted by the General Meeting of Sharcholders with the legally
required scope, Executive Directors may also be remunerated through the delivery of shares
or share option rights, or by means of any other remuneration referenced to the value of the

shares.

Furthermore, art, 55 of the Regulations for the Board of Directors provides that the Board
shall establish the regime for distributing the remuneration for Directors within the framework

established in the Bylaws.

The decision shall take into account the report drafted for the purpose by the Appointments
and Remuneration Committee.

The Board of Directors shall strive to ensure the Directors’ remuneration is moderate and in
line with that paid on the market in companies of a similar size and business area, with
preference for those formats relating a significant portion of the remuneration to their
dedication to Acciona.

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 109 of 169 April 5th, 2014



EDWARD EWING - INTERPRETE JURADO

Calle Francisco M

=

adariaga, 2 - 4°C / 28017 MADRID

=918 514 253 - @: edward@sande.es

Certified Translation

In addition, the Board of Directors shall strive to ensure that the remuneration policies in
force from time to time incorporate the necessary technical provisos for any variable
remuneration to ensure that such bonuses are in line with the professional performance of the
persons benefiting from them and are not merely derived from the general advance of the
markets or the Company’s business sector or other similar circumstances. The remuneration
regime will attribute analogous remuneration for comparable functions and dedication.

The regime for the remuneration of independent directors will strive to serve as a sufficient
incentive for their dedication without compromising their independence.

The remuneration for external directors representing substantial shareholders for their
performance as Directors must be proportional to that of other Directors and shall not
represent any favoured treatment in the form of remuneration of the shareholder(s)
designating them.

For Executive Directors, the remuneration deriving from their membership of the Board of
Directors shall be compatible with any other professional or employment-related earnings
received for their executive or consultative functions rendered to Acciona, S.A. or to its
Group.

Remuneration for directors shall be transparent.

At its meeting on 28 February 2013, the Board of Directors resolved, at the proposal of the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee, to reduce the amounts for membership of the
Board of Directors and its Committees by 10%, and these were therefore set as follows for
2013:

a) For each director belonging to the Board of Directors EUR 67,500.

b) For each director belonging to the Executive Committee EUR 45,000.

¢) For each director belonging to the Audit Committee EUR 45,000.

d) For each director belonging to the Appoiniments Committee EUR 36,000.
e) For each director belonging to the Sustainability Committee EUR 36,000.

Executive directors who are members of the Executive Committee shall not receive any
remuneration specifically for belonging to that committee,

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee, after a detailed analysis of the
remuneration received at international companies and those included on the IBEX 35 index,
deemed the remuneration to be in line with what was paid on the market at companies of a
similar size in the same business area, that analogous remuneration was paid for comparable
functions and dedication and, without compromising independence, is an adequate incentive
to achieve, if possible, a greater engagement by directors in the different committees.

Furthermore, the General Meeting of Sharcholders resolved on 6 June 2013 to set, for the
purposes foreseen in the new section2 of article 31 of the Bylaws, the amount of the
remuneration that may be paid by the Company to its Directors for their membership of the
Board of Directors and its Committees at EUR 1,503,000. This amount shall remain in force
until such time as the General Meeting of Sharcholders may decide to change it, although it
may be reduced by the Board of Directors on the terms foreseen in the aforesaid section.
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The total remuneration paid to the members of the Board for discharging their duties as
Company directors in 2013 amounted to EUR 1,497,000. The detail of this amount, by

director, is as follows:

; !'nwd ::.‘I';x'eimm‘e_n‘tion.ih:‘. “-\Tt)ﬁl - S i I‘ulu"‘!
remuneraion | TSMPEOHPOL un i
—e i _Bnljr‘d:c?gmr.mm:s-
Mr. Damel Entrecanales Domecq ~ 68 36 104 11%
M3 Sot Daea Ccradrin : - 68 2 o 25 -
I.v[r. Tuen Mamhje.[ Ul:goit.i Lopez-Ocafia (*) 34 .50 104 230
M Carlos Eqp’m,oaﬂe los Mon_rms & R 67 133 175
Mr. .Jainie-Ca;itelléx;os Borr‘e;gko‘ 7 68 103 : 171 165
M Fernando Rodes Vila a6 2 140 =5
Mr. José Manuel Entrecanales Domecq 68 68 75
Mr Iu.m Teracio Fntegeanalis Franco 68 ¥ 48 73
Ms.l\‘/I.iriam é;nialcz buléntcz 68 | 45 113 125
Mt Tean Catlos Gasay Thargatay (" 34 18 - G
Mr Valentin Montova Moya‘ o 68 126 194‘ 215
il Eden_\;'a]lalungamf)mes - 68 53 .75
Ms. Consuelo Crespo Bc;ﬁll m— 68 36 104 115
‘M Javier Lutiecarialss I‘ijbo S 68 : 18 84, 75
TotaL, 884 613 47 167

(*) Directors leaving the Board during 2013
(**) Directors joining the Board during 2013

The remuneration paid to Directors for the performance of senior management executive
functions was EUR 5,845 thousand and EUR 6,233 thousand in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Those Directors who carried out executive functions in 2013 received a total of 4,002 shares
and 10,138 share options in Acciona, S.A. as part of their variable remuneration, in
accordance with the terms and conditions established in the regulations for the “2009-2013
Plan for the Delivery of Shares and Share Options to the Senior Management of Acciona and
its Group”. The options granted entitle them to acquire an equal number of shares at a price of

EUR 56.21 per share.

No obligations have been entered into in connection with pensions or the payment of life
assurance premiums with respect to former and current members of the Board of Directors.
Nor have any advances, credits or guarantees been given in favour of the members of the
Board of Directors, except as indicated in this Note.
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During the 2013 and 2012 financial years, the Directors of the Parent Company did not
receive any remuneration whatsoever for their membership of other Boards of Directors
and/or the senior management of Group companies.

The overall remuneration of the ACCIONA, S.A. Board of Directors during the financial year
has been, in thousands of euros, as follows: EUR 7,206 and EUR 7,753 respectively in the

2013 and 2012 financial years.

B. Senior executives

Senior Executives include those persons forming the top two levels of the Acciona group’s
management and the Corporate Internal Audit Director. This classification is for information
purposes only and without prejudice to their specific employment relationship.

The remuneration of the Company’s General Managers and persons discharging similar
duties, excluding those who are simultaneously members of the Board of Directors (whose
remuneration is disclosed above), and bearing in mind that this remuneration is taken from the
perspective of Parent and subsidiaries, in 2013 and 2012 is summarised as follows:

‘Type of remuneration 2013 2012
Number of persons 36 38
“Remunsration (thousands of eueas) 25121 22677

(*) Taking into account Parent and subsidiaries

At the Annual General Meeting held on 4 June 2009, the shareholders of Acciona, S.A.
approved the 2009-2011 Share and Option Plan for the senior executives of Acciona and its

Group.

Also, at the Annual General Meeting held on 9 June 2011, 12 May 2012, and June 6th, 2013,
the shareholders approved the extension of the period of the aforementioned Plan’s duration,
including the Executive Directors, for its application in 2012, 2013 and 2014, increasing the
maximum number of shares deliverable under the Plan from the 200,000 shares initially
established to 265,000, 300,000 and 335,000 shares, respectively.

Similarly, the General Meeting of Shareholders held on 6 June 2013 resolved to amend the
reference value, setting the value of the shares to be delivered to participants at the price listed
at the close of business on the last trading day in the month of March in the corresponding
financial year and this price shall also be the acquisition price for the exercise of any options
granted and maintaining the other terms and conditions of the Plan approved in 2009.

Therefore, the main characteristics of the “2009-2014 Plan for the Delivery of Shares and
Share Options to the Senior Management of Acciona and its Group” are as follows:

Plan duration and basic structure: Three years, with annual delivery of ordinary shares in
Acciona, S.A. (the Company) during these three years (2009 to 2011). The term for its
application has been extended to 2012, 2013 and 2014. The beneficiaries may elect to
exchange some of the shares assigned to them for purchase option rights on the Company’s

ordinary shares.
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Beneficiaries: those persons who, at the time the shares are allocated, hold the position of
Managing Director, General Manager or Area Manager of the Acciona Group.

Annual share-based bonus. The number of shares composing the share-based bonus for each
beneficiary will be determined by the Company’s Board of Directors at the proposal of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in March of each year. The share-based bonus of
each beneficiary cannot exceed (a) EUR 150,000 or (b) 50% of the beneficiary’s annual
variable cash remuneration. The highest share-based bonus in a given year cannot exceed
three times the value of the lowest bonus for that year.

Share/option exchange ratio and partial substitution of shares by options and vice versa. Once
the annual share-based bonus is established, the Company’s Board of Directors will establish
a fixed share/option exchange ratio. The beneficiary may decide to substitute a portion of the
shares assigned, not exceeding fifty per cent (50%), by options.

Shares available for the Plan: the maximum number of shares that can be delivered under the
Plan over the three-year period (2009, 2010, and 2011) will be 200,000 including those
assigned but exchanged for options at the beneficiaries’ discretion. For the 2012, 2013 and
2014 financial years, the maximum number of shares available is increased to 265,000,
300,000 and 335,000 shares, respectively.

Annual delivery date: the share-based bonus will be delivered to the beneficiaries within thirty
(30) calendar days following the date of the Annual General Meeting, at the date established
by the Board of Directors or its delegated bodies. For beneficiarics who are Company
directors delivery of the corresponding shares (and, if applicable, options) will be subject to
the approval of the sharcholders at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with that
provided in article 219 of the Consolidated Spanish Public Limited Liability Companies Act.

Rights on shares: the shares will entitle the beneficiary to the dividend and voting rights
corresponding thereto as from the date of delivery.

Restricted use of the shares: the beneficiaries cannot dispose of, encumber or grant any option
on the shares prior to 31 March of the third year following the year in which the
corresponding shares were delivered to the beneficiary as payment of the bonus in the form of
shares.

Grant of a purchase option to the Company: the beneficiary grants the Company a purchase
option on the shares delivered to him until 31 March of the third year following the year of
delivery, at a price of EUR 0.01 per share. This option can only be exercised by the Company
if the employment, civil or independent contractor relationship is interrupted or extinguished
under certain conditions,

Option regime: each option will entitle the beneficiary to receive one of the Company’s
ordinary shares in exchange for payment of the share price established for the exercise of the
option or in exchange for payment of the price arising from monetary settlement due to
differences between the option value and the share value at the date the option is exercised. If
the employment, civil or independent contractor relationship has not been interrupted or
extinguished under certain conditions, all or some of the options granted in a given year under
the Plan may be excrcised on one or more occasions within a three-year period elapsing either
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on (a) 31 March of the third calendar year following that in which they were assigned, or
(b) 31 March of the third year subsequent to the beginning of the strike period.

Reference value of the Shares and Options: The value of the shares and share options to be
delivered to participants each year shall be set in terms of the price listed at the close of
business on the last trading day in the month of March in the calendar year in which the same
are delivered and this price shall also be the acquisition price for the exercise of any options
granted.

Under this Plan, 54,355 shares and 16,773 purchase option rights on Acciona, S.A. shares
were granted in 2013 to the Group’s senior executives, including the executive directors.

The breakdown of the persons who held senior management positions (taking the Parent and
subsidiaries into account as Senior Management) in 2013 is as follows:

Full name o corporate stvle
Ig}la;cib Aguilera Carmona
leshs Alciza Viela
Joaquin Ancin Viguinsh
Isabsl Antiez i

Carlos Maria Arilla de Tuana

(armen Beceirit Mantinz |

Raiil Beltrin Nificz

Jout Lufs Blanco Dxezuez

Pio Cabamllas Alonso

Alfonso Callejo Martines
Macarena Carrién bope‘zxde la Garma
Luis Castilla Cimara - - v
Ada]bérto Claudio Vézquez-

Juan Manm:} s Palacios
Arantza Ezpeleta Puras

José MigriaFarto Paz

RoBcrto Femﬁndez Lépei

Inan Crallardo Cuces

Marek Jozefiak

( atlos Lépez Rerndndaz

Pedro Martinez Martinez

Rafael Mateo Alcala-

Eduardo Medina Sanchez

Ricado Lans Molina Oltia

Joaquin Mollinedo Chocano
Tyan Antonto Muro-Lara Gitod
Carlos Navas Garcfa .

Javier Péres-Villaams Moteno

Félix Rivas Anoro

| tmn.,ml L

Poaltmm 53 held

General Manage: - Acclona Trasmediterranca

Genezal Manager — A....lc-na Infrastegture - Tatin Amen g

General Manager — Acciona Energ - Engineering, Constmctlon and Innovation

{roncial Mgmgcl ~ Asciona Pmpgatv '_

General Manager - E;:onornic and Financial Aréa B

Getreral Manage: - Intnational .~ -

Director of Internal Audit

1 - Aceiuna Windpower

General Managcr C orporatc Image and Global Marketmg
Ceneral Manager - Coaporate Resontces

General Manager - Office of the President

President - Acciona Waisi [
Genera] .Manager - Acciona Infrastructure - Internatioﬁal and Concessions
€seneral Manager - Thuman Resources Adramistration

(General Manager - Global Business Development

General Manage: - Acciona Infrastiuctuie - Atea 2

(ieneral Manager E Acclona InIralstrucmre. - Corporate Resources

j '(Jenelall\dmagm Leonoms and Hilansial Auga

General Manager - Poland President of Mostostal Warszawa

\eneral Manages - Acciona Engmeeung and Facilities

Preéident - Acciona Infrastructure |

CFO -~ Aceiona [nargv

(General Manager - Acclona Fncrg Business Dey: elopment

Ciznecal Manager - Accigna Servics

General Manager - Instxtunonal Relations

Grenetal Manager. - Composate Development dnd Relations with avestors
General Ma.naéen - Acciona Alrport Servives 7 '
General Manager = Acciona fofrastiuchoe ‘\reu] = R

General Manager - Procurement Innovation. Quaht} and the Environment
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.:?Pasatwn(s? held . ; d
- Umﬁm M_,m,ggu Iegal Semces -
A551stant General Manager - Corporate Resources
- Creneral Man.gel Summuﬁmv .
Gcneral Manager - Rtsk:. and Fmance

 Full name or cotputate sivle -
Vicerte Santamatia -dé meea Castitlo 3 5
Dolores Sarrién Martinez

Tidi Rawon Siiva Fettada

José Anéél Tejero Sanios

Ty Manucl Futeetto Mateos . i ueueml Mamgat Acemna Inﬂastm;tugt Emmum:. dng Frdamicral . Auel
Jorgc Vega-fcnichet Lopez Secretaxy General
Juste Vicctite Pelegrmit fenesal Managen - Accicna Infrastrycture Aiea 1

The breakdown of the persons who held senior management positions in 2012 is as follows:

Name Position
Agnrlera Caunona Jgnacio | General Manager - Acciona Trasmediteranes Atea
Alcazar Viela, Jesus General Manager — Acciona Latin America Infrastructure Area
Andueza. Fidel ' Gnnmal Mauagc: Intsinational Area

Antinez Cid, Isabel General Manager — Acciona Real Fstate Aiea
Begaril Martinez Catmen
Belirdn Nifiez Rail
Blanoo Miégaer, fosd Lins
Cabanillas Alonso. Pio

Calteo Maitinez, Alfénsu

- Chinwoman - Acuiona Ereigy
Director of Internal Audit
General Manager - Acciona Wmdﬁau ot
General NManager of Corporate Image and Global Marketing
Greneral Managei - C hlpmdx. Resourcey .
Carrién Lopcz de la Gaima, Macarena Genelal Manager — Chairman’s Oﬂ' ice Area
Castilla Carara Lis

Claudio Vazquez. Adalberto

Lhamnm %uona Wates
Gieneral Manager — Acciona Internatlonaj Infrastructures and Concessnons Area

Crnz Palﬁcms‘_ Juan M@iel Lreuel al Managet ~ Human Resonices Admimstiation .q.rra of
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Ezpeleta Puras, Arantza
Farks P, josé hiata.
Gallardo Cruces, Juan
Cuarvalos Esteban, Aatonio
Jozefiak, Marek

Lépez Fetnndez, Catlos
Martinez Martinez Pedro
Mateo Alals Rafael -
Miguel Ichaso. Alberto De

' NIC.-Im& Olfra, Kicarda Luis

Mollinedo Chocano, Joaquin
Muto-Lasa Guod. Tuan Antomo
Navas Garcm, Carlos

Park, Robeti

Pérez-Villaamil Morene, Javier
Fopiolek . Joraslaw

Rivas Anoro, Félix

Ruiz Osta, Pedro Sanhisgo
Santamarta-Paredes Castillo, Vicente
Saition Martmez, Dolotes

Silva Ferrada, Juan Ramén

General Manager — International Business Development Area

Genetal Wianage: - Acciona Jtftastructie Atea3 -

General Manager - Economy and Finance

General Managex - Acciona Trasmedtizsarinea S1ea
General Manager — Poland Area, Chairman - Mostostal Warszawa

General Manigel - Aceiona Engificerng, and Facthitics Atea

Chairman - Acciona Infrastructure
General Manager - Acciona Fnetgy

General Manager Acciona Energy Strategy and New Busmesses

G:mmal Mzmag‘l - Accions Setvice Area
General Manager - Institutional Relations

Gencial Managet - Cﬂ'rpmate'l';évelopmem and Invt:stoiARc;lraﬁnm

General Manager - Acciona Awrport vau,es Arca

(General Maxagsr (.amda Arca

General Manager - Acciona Infrastructure Area 1

Ciencral Manager — Polani} Atea

General Manager - Purchases, Innovanun Envitonment and Quality Area

uenml Maaagel iec.mna W mdpon &t
General Manager — [ egal Services Area

uuncu al Managsrw C mponate Resomo:& Atea

General Manager — Sustainabilitv Area
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Name Position
Tesito Mateos José Mamiel Gooeral Manager ~ Acy:oaa Jnfiastructue Loonomic and Fisance Atea .
Tejero Santos, José Angel General Manager - Fiance and Risks Area
“Voga-Penchet Lopez, Jorge i¥enordl Seovetaty’ - _
Vicente Pelegrini, Justo General Manage: - Acciona Infrastiucture Area 2

C. Fees paid to auditors

In 2013, the fees for financial audit and other services provided by the auditor of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, Deloitte, S.L., or by firms in the Deloitte organisation, and
the fees billed by the auditors of the financial statements of the consolidated companies, and
by companies related to these auditors as a result of a relationship of control, common
ownership or common management, were as follows:

Services provided by Services provided by

the main anditor ather apdht firms
203 1 2012 2013 212 ..
Audit services 3,504 2,899 1,642 1,605
Othiet aitest services 608 486 1V 393
Total audit and related services 4,112 3,385 1,959 2,000
Tax advisory serviies 517 « L) 0] 8 908
Other services 2 637 3,033 2269 757
Fotal professinnal serviees 3154 3,960 3870 1,068

36. Other disclosures concerning the Board of Directors

Pursuant to Articles 229.2 and 229.3 of Legislative Royal Decree 1/2010, of 2 July, approving
the Consolidated Spanish Limited Liability Companies Act, in order to reinforce the
transparency of limited liability companies and disclose any conflicts of interest, the
following information is set forth below.

At 31 December 2012, per the information available to the Company, and except as stated
below, the members of the Board of Directors and persons related thereto, in accordance with
the definition of related persons contained in Article 231 of the Spanish Limited Liability
Companies Act:

- Did not own any holdings in the share capital of companies engaging in an activity that is
identical, similar or complementary to the activity that constitutes the company object of
the Group companies, and did not hold any positions or discharge any duties thereat.

- Had not carried on, and do not carry on at present, as employees or as independent
professionals, any activities that are identical, similar or complementary to the activity
that constitutes the company object of the Group companies.

With respect to the aforementioned holdings, positions, duties and activities, the following
information was furnished to the Company:

Holdings and positions in companies not belonging to the Acciona Group:
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Direstor - Gomﬁam‘_' :
Entrocansles Domesq. gy 1 yhbock S.1.,
José NManuel

Entrecanales Franco, Nexotel Adeje, S A.

Juan Ignacio Global Buridan S.1.
- - Inverswnes Tnimobilaatsas Polo e 1 Tsnefla + ©
Entiecanales Domeeq, ‘Larnx Creaciones, S L i
‘ Iractalia Remoto System, S
EptecanalssiErmca: Nexotel Adeje, S.A.
Javier
Acacia ISP, S.L.

yRodés Vila, Femando

37. Late pavments

Obligations” of Law 15/2010, of 5 July.

@ 918 514 253 - @ edward@sande.e

-

-Pay:ﬁénti made and payments outstanding -
at the balanice sheet date -~ , .

Within the maximum paynent pstiod

Other
- Foial payments for the vedr e

Maximum payment period exceeded by (days)
Pavinents at 31 Deceniber 2011 which exceeit the
maximum pavment period S -

. No, of sharest ~
" % of ewnership

55.56%

130%

100%

2053

Amount
2,152 669
604,962
2757633
63
112,749

Position Line of business

Sole Director Industrnial Projects

Joint Managing Director Hotel Industry

Industrial Projects

Real Esiate

. Atchitgture

Services

- Hotel Industry

- Industrial Projects

Disclosures on the payment periods to suppliers. Additional Provision Three. “Disclosure

Law 15/2010, of 5 July, amending Law 3/2004, of 29 December, on combating late
payment in commercial transactions indicates that “Companies shall expressly disclose
payment periods to suppliers in the Notes to their financial statements”. The Spanish
Accounting and Audit Institute (ICAC) Resolution of 29 December 2010 sets out the
information to be included in the notes to financial statements in order to comply with Law
15/2010, a detail of which is as follows (in thousands of euros):

2012

% Amount %
3% 2552607 R7%
27% 364 986 13%
100% 2917593 100%:
53
Ws255

Weighted average period of late payment was calculated as the quotient whose numerator is
the result of multiplying the payments made to suppliers outside the maximum payment
period by the number of days of late payment and whose denominator is the total amount of
the payments made in the year outside the maximum payment period.
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APPENDIX I
GROUP COMPANIES
The subsidiaries of ACCIONA, S.A. deemed to be Group companies were treated as such in

accordance with IFRS. The companies fully consolidated in 2013, and the information
thereon at 31 December 2013, are as follows (amounts in thousands of euros):

- Gremp - - - - B R it el S - ownership = ’ Carrymg
company” -, Auditer . Tocaton. . Main bwsinessline - (nonungly " Sharcholder -~ .  amount
. Subgroup: Acciona
3240934 Nova S.C.otia Comparny Canada Energy 100,00% Renewable Canada 4909
e — e : : Subgioup. Acciona
: S - i ; Waed Powe
- Acvieng - Victioelehtisge D OO Croati Enorgy 106.00% - Inlytnationaf s
» Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Wind Energy Canada Inc. (Canada Eneigy 100.00%  Energy International 93,074
NN LF e i E B L . - Subgioup Watet
Aqciona ~pua Adelade Pry Lid i Australia Water Tteatment 100 G0%. Amciraha, 6
(&) Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Agua Australia Proprietary, Ltd Australia ‘Water Treatment 100.00°% Water 5
Acctona Agua Brasl - Tratsmento De Agua © : _ ‘ A Subgroup: Acsiona
B 0 e s : i : " Brazi Watar Treatmeni 100.80% “Water | 730
(4 Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Agua India Private Limited : India Water Treatment 100.00% Water 570
Acctona Agua hiteinacional Australia Pty A - 7 o Suboup Acciona
" 14d " 5 0" : S susiaha Water Treatment 100 00%% Water Intetnatioral -
_ Subgroup' Acciona
Acciona Agua Internacional, S.L. Madrid Water Treatment 100.00% Water 4
_ : s (B)- _ e FTep Subgiopp Acciona -
Ageiona Agus Mexico SRL -Deil v ; Mexico ‘Waet Tieaiment 16000% Water .. 1865
B Subgroup. .Acciona
Acciona Agua Servicios S.L. Madid Water Treatment 100.00% Water 3
AccionaAgia SA . SEV Madtid Water lrcatmem.  100.00% Acgiona 124267
Acciona Airport Services Berlin, 5., (E) Germany Logistics Services 100.00% Acciona =
Acclona A0 port Seivices Frankfuti, Gmbh (A} Germany Logistics Services W%  © . Acciona 5637
Acciona Airport Services Hamburg Gmbh - (iermansy Logistics Services 100 00% Subgroup MDC 1244
A€riona Auport Services SA, . (A) " Madrid Logists Services 10000%  © ° Acciona - 3065 -
© Subgroup. Acciona
Acciona Biocombustibles. $.A. Navarre Energy 100.00% Energy 12,871
- T Subgioup Acviona
Accinna Blomasa e - Mavae Energy Looanes - Fneigy 3
©) Subgroup. Acciona
Acciona Blades, S.A. Navarre Energy 100.00% Windpower (13 428)
o Swbep Adciona
I , - ; Water Trcaiment _ Water / Subgp
Acriona Cerin Negio, 5 A Chle Constiuction 100 002% Arciona Infia. 4
®) Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Concesiones Chile, S.A. Chile Cnncession Operation  100.00% Infrastructure 8,032
Avziona Coscesiones, SL T4 Madtid Conteoson Operation 100 00% Acetona —
(A) Subgroup. Acciona
Acciona Concessions Canada 2008 Inc. Canada Concession Operation  100.00% Concessions 4905
- B T |- ' Subgroup Actiota
AcdionaCopaapo, $ A o Chike - Watcr Tieaiment § 00 (0w - Walsr 4
- Subgroup Finance
Acciona Corporacion, S.A Madrid Instrumental 100.00% and Cartera Dos 60
g - = " » o Subgloup Finarice
Aveiona Desanollo Caiporative: S A Madsid - Instrniréntal H000%  and{artera Des 60
Acciona Do Brasil, Ltda. (E) Brazil Concession Operation  100.00% Acviona 194
Accinna Eficiencia angaica_ SL = Mavare Thergy 10000%  Subgeup Binfuels 28 B
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(B) Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Energla Chlle Chlle Energy 1060.00%  Energv International
=4 - Subgioup Accions
f Ao Fnélgia Costa Kiea. Ea : (‘-md Rtoa . Energy i mu ﬂﬁ"u -+ Fmegy
A) Subgroup. Acciona
Acciona Energia Eolica Mexico j Mexico Energy 100.00% Energy Mextoo
—— = e S  — T8 BN Subigioup Aectond
‘Acctena Energas Internacional, $ A Navaie Energy . 160 00%y Fnergt
(A) Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Energfa Mexico, Srl g Mexico Energy 100.00%  Energy International
" Acciona Encrgta Serviclos Mé\u 5 De Bl a b el © ' -Subpicup. Acciona -
Delv ‘Mexico - Enecigy 10006%  Eneigy Interiational -
Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Energia Solar, 8.L. Navarre Energy 100 00% Energy
i 5, - . | Subzowy Acvione
Acciona Energia Sclaie Italia SRT - Italy Lhetgy k% Enagy Taternational
Subgroup: Acciona
) Corp. - Renewable
Acciona Fnergia S.A Navarre Energy 100 00% Energy
Acviona Energiaks, § A 4 (hegee Lnergx 8|0 00% " Submoup Cesa
Acciona Energie Windparks Deutschland () Subgroup Acciona
Gmbh i Germany Energy 100.00%  Energy Internaticnal
| N 7 _ A B = A Subgroup. Acviona
dccioua Fnstgye I O Croaliz . Enuigy 1W09%  Foegy Mateinational
- Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Energy North America Corp. Usa Energy 100.00%  Energy International
- + : - © - Subgroup Acciona
Acstona Frergy Dev elupment Clahada ]m, - Aanada l:nelg\. 106.00%  Wind Faeigy Canada
© Subgroup' Acciona
Accicna Energy India Private Limited India Energy 100.00%  Eneigy International
S i !L:\' L ST Sithgroup Acoiona
Acctona Fosigy Korea, Ine I South Koled Pnergy M0 0G%  Enecigy Internaticnial
Acciona Energy Oceania Construction Pty _ Subgroup: Acciona
Ltd Australia Energy 100.00% Energy C'ceamia
Acciona Enelgs Qcoeanta Financial Seivices - ; ' Subsrovp Acciona
Plv Lid ’ Australia ‘Enetgy 00 D%y Energy
(9)) : Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Energy Oceania Ply. Lid Melboume Energy 100.00%  Encigy International
Acoiond Encrgy Foland Mamtenance — ' " Subgroup: Acciona
Services Sp. L 0O : Toland Fnargy. 10000%.  Encigy Inteynanonal
Acciona Energy South Africa (Prupnetar)) (A) Subgroup: Acciona
Limited ¢ South Africa Energy 100 00% Energy
e SS s _- : . . Subgroup. Acciona
Ageions Engmeennig Canada Inc. - Canada Engneeting 106 600 Enginecimg
. Subgroup, Acciona
Accicna Engineering Qatar Qatar Engineering 100.00% Engineering
Anc.mi:a'Euhc_ja Bastheata S1l L= Jeaty . Energy 9800% ° Subiroup Cesa Italy
Acciona Eolica Calabria. Srl Ttaly Energy 100.00%  Subgroup: Cesa Italy
Acciona Eobca Cesaftaha SPL (4) " Raiy Enoigy 00 H0% Subgioup Cesa
Acciona Eélica Cesa SL. (A) Madnid Energy 100.00%  Subgroup. Ceatesalas
Acciona Folica De Castilla La bancha, $.1 LA} Madrid: Enersy: 10000% ° Subgioup Alabe
Subgroup: Acciona
(A) Corp. - Renewable
Accivna Folica De Galicia, S.A Lugo Energy 100 00% Energy
Acciona Edlical evante, & [ BV Yaleacia Etergy: 10000% ° Subgroup Alabe
Acciona Eolica Molise, Stl - Itals Energy 10000%  Subgroup: Cesa Italy
X ; d ' Subgroup. Aéciona
_ . T (A o © . Cop - Renewabl
Acciona Eclica Portugal brmpetsonal, 1.da ’ Portugat Eneigy S10000% - Encl 2
~ Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona EPC North America L L.C USA Energy 100.00% Wind Energy USA
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Ageiona Fatility Serviess Auwme 3ttt e = ; - < Subgroup. Acciona
Arigon, 51 : ' . Mariz‘ld - Usban Semeea 10060% - Tacisy Services
Acciona Facility Services Autornoclon - Subgroup: Acciona
Catalunya, S.L. Madnd Usban Services 100.00% Facility Services
“vena Faeility Services Au’k!muumi I | T W | ! - Subgionp Avciona
Conten, 8T Madinl Uirban-Ses vices T0000% - - - Facdity Seivices
Acciona Facllm qemces Automomon Este = Subgroup' Acciona
SL. Madnid Urban Services 100.00% Facility Services
AcCiopa Facylety Seriices Aummcmon : [ ® o Y B . Subgrowp Avciona
Levanie 5T o ndadied Thban Ssivices 10000%, . Fashiy Scnages
_ Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Facility Services Belgique Sprl Belgium Urban Services 100.00% Urban Services
i g, e ] " e A S T —— Subgioup Aceiona
Acciona Facdity Services Canada L 1d Canaca . Urban Serviced T0000% . Faetlitr Servives
_ Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Facility Services Holland B V., Holland Urban Services 100.00% Urban Services
o > B == = Submoup Acciona
Accioha Fastiy Services Itala Gl Jtaly Utan Services 100.06% - Tacihity Seivizes
(E) Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Facility Services Portugal b Portugal Urban Services 100.00% Factlity Services
. a Subgioup -
- Muliizervices
: ; —— Accrona Facty
Aceiona Fasiiry Services S, § A Tolado Tirban Services 100 00 Services
A Subgtoup. Acciona
Acciona Facility Services, S.A. Baicelona Urban Services 100.00% Urban Services
s D : (E) - ' L e Subgioup Aceiona
4eciona Forwarding Brasil ¥ © Braal Logistics S21viaes 98 714, Forwarding
€ Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Forwamding Canarias, S, Canary Islands Logistics Services 100.00% Forwarding
Accions Friwaiding, S A ) - Madnd Logistics Seivices 100 000 Accioia -
® Subgroup: Acciona
Accmna Forwardng Argentma, S.A Argentina Logistics Services 100.00% Forwarding
©) P T © 0 Subgroup Accwna
fs.ccmna Cnem Exmg‘, I)avelopmenls 3L o Navane Eneigy e, - Energy
Acciona Infraestructuras Residenciales Subgroup® Acciona
México S.A Mexico Construction 100.00% Infrastructure
Acciona Infiasstrugtuas. S A ®: Madrid Construction HOW%. . Acwona
Acciona Infraestructuras-Elecnor. Hospital Subgronp: Accrona
Dawd S.A Panama Construction 75 00% Inirastructure
B Poa © suhgionp Aooiona
Acclon Infi astmutl.uf. Austialia Pty 144 - — Anstralia Constriuciion 160 0% infrastipctire
. Subgroup. Acciona
Acciona Ingenieria Industrial S.A. De C.V. Mexico Engincering 100.00% Engmneering
"o Tk 1B) " e y Subgioup Acciona
Aesona Ingenierza, § A : Madrid ngmecrmg 1843-00% Infrastiucture
Acciona Property, S.L (4 Madrid Property 100.00% Acciond
] ] = j Subgroup Adciona
Aceiona Tnstalasiones Mexico S Ade C ¥ Mesaco onstruciion 100 GO%s Tnatallabions -
(B) Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Instalaciones, S A. Seville Construction 100.00%% Infrastructure
. i ; " . Bubgioap: Acciona
Acviona Inveisiones Cotea 5 L Navaue Ene1gy 1800 60% . Fneigy Internationat
Subgroup. Acciona
Acciona Las Tablas, S L Madrid Properts 100.00% Property
Acciona Logfstica, S A = Maduid - Holding Company - 100.08% Agcciona .-
Acviona Mantenimiento De Infiaestructuias ®) Subgroup: Acciona
Sa Madnd Construction 100.00% Infrastructure
— - o : ' Subgioup. Accioni
Acciond Medhoambients, S A = Valoncia Lithan Services © 100 909, Facihity Serviges
Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Multiservicios, S.A. Madnd Lrban Services 100.00% Facility Services
Acclona M-lemchmﬁp‘:ai Sp LD o] A) Poland Pivperty - bO0.0Y Suhgrcup: Avcrona
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Growp - - BN e ol B R -owpership- 0.
. LOn[pany .. Anditor Kocation | - Maw business hne’  [(nommsl} 0 | Shaveholder
®) Subgroup. Acciona
Acciona Producciones v Disefio. S A. Seville Other Businesses 100.00% Infrastructure
Acciona Ral Scrvices 5 A  Madrid . LogmstiegNerviges.  © R0008% - . §omitics
Acciona Renewable Ene1gy Canada Gp Subgroup' Acciona
Holdings Inc Canada Energy 100.00% Renewable Canada
' T = -~ Cee - Subgioup Acetona
‘Aceicna Kenewable Engy Canada ) I - Energy North
Holdmngs Llg. : TiHA Energy 100 0% . Mperica
4eciona Rinnovabili Calabria, Sl = Halv Energy 100.00%  Subgroup: Cesa Italy
AceIonia Rmnm'aﬁm,}i;_aha. sl = . Raly Fneigy 10000%  Suhgroup CosaHaly
Subgroup- Acciona
(A) Corp. - Renewable
Acciona Saltos De Agua, S.L.U. Madrid Energy 100.00% Energy
— T - . Subgloup Acviona
" Acclpna Serv Hospitalaues, S.1 Madnd Hospitals - 10006% . Uinban Serviees
Acciona Service, S.1.. - Madrid Urban Services 100.00% Acciona
=y R [ B YRR © Subgrenp Dalmay
Acedons Servicios A La Antomgcién, § 1 Valencia Uirhan Sereracs 100 60% Fnvitonment
- Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Servicios Ferrowviarios, S.L., Madrid Logistics Services 100 00% Logistics
Acciona Uiban Services, S L. €\  Madrid Utban farwices 100:06% Acciony
_ Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Sistemas De Segurnidad, S.A. Madrid Construction 100.00% Installations
T e i : = ‘ ... Subgowp Acciena
Acciona Solar Canatas, & A ) Canary Istands Energy 5.00% Sola
Subgtoup: Acciona
- Eneigy North
Acciona Snlar Energy Llc 1sA Energy 100 00% America
L < R o = B i T < .. Subgjoup Acwiona
Acciona Sokar Power Ing UisA Enaagy 100.00% Snla1 Bneigy
©) Subgroup: Acciona
Acciona Solar, S.A. Mavarre Energy 75 00% Energy
©) : — S il Subgioup: Acciona
Accuoma Teimosola 3 Navaie Eneigy 83.00% Enetgy .
©) Subgroup- Acciona
Acciona Wind Energy Pvt Ltd India Energy 100.00%  Energy International
, = = R Subgroup Acciona
F 1o d A - A ; Enetgy North
Agcinna Wind Enetgy Usa, LI . Us4a ~ Freigy “100.00% Amnetica
Subgroup® Acciona
- Wind Power
Acciona Windpower Brasil Ltda. Biazil Energy 100.00% International
' i : j Submoup Acciona
ol - " - (B} | Wind Powey
Acciona Windpawer Chiie, § A Chile Frergs 10030%  Intetnanonal
. Subgroup Acciona
Acciona Windpower Internacional, S.L. Navarre Energy 100.00% Windpowet
Subgioup Acciona
_ - g : ‘Wind Power
Agciong Windpowst Forea, Inc. South Rores: FEnagy 10 0% Internatiunal
Subgroup Acctona
(A) Wind Power
Acciona Windpower Mexico, Srlde C V Mexico Energy 100.00% International
' Subgroup. Acriona
. o E o _ Erergy Notth
Acoiona Windpower Nerth Amenca L L C 4 Energy 10000%  Amerca
Subgroup: Acciona
{8 Wind Power
Acciona Windpower Oceania, Pty, Ltd Melbourne Energy 100.00% International
‘ — S n : 0, L Subgioup Acciona
Aceimia Windpower South Afiica (Py) [id Nouth Afiica Energy 100 00% Wind Power
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. '. N L ] % of r—
Group T £ oa e ' ovmeulup i
‘company . - Anditer Aocation: . Man business ive (r;ojnman %areho!der =
© bubg'ruup
Acciona Windpower. S.A. Nas arre Energy 100.00% Corporation AWP
. TSR N ) oy 8 'B-lhg;nupmemnm
AcpuGabop, $.4 _Gabon . - Frpipeeiing W60 - - Pnginesung ¢
- Subgroup: Acciona
Aepo Polska S.P. Z 0.0 Poland Engineering 100.00% Engineering
P 0 Pa B Yo ™0 oo 2 N G = e o .. " Subgioup’ Acciona
1F5 Fmplen Soctal Bacylona, $1- Barcelipa - Liban Services 10000% . Facdsty Services -
_ Subgroup: Acciona
AFS Empleo Social, S L. Barcelona Urban Services 100.00% Facility Services
‘ - . e o e ~ Sebzronp
Agt.n :aMamma lrmshmpan:ca SA Madud- Logstics Sarvices _19008%, Trasuneditercanea
{4 Subgroup
Agencla S C hembn S. A Madrid Logistics Services 100.00% Tiasmediterrinea
: N . - _ Subgioup Acetom
Agnas Pilar De [ a Homdada 5 L ) whadyid Vrafer Lreatment, 10600% Water
_ Subgroup: Acciona
Aie Trafalgar Cadiz Energy 80 20% Energy
‘Alibo Mengibas, AT, = Madud . Erergy %625% - Suberoup IDC
Subgruvup. Acciona
() Corp - Renewable
Alabe Sociedad Dc Cogcneracmn S.A Madrid Energy 100.00% Energy
= i Subgonp Acciona
\euona Wind Comt.umon Lp Cavada Epegy 190 00%: Wind Faorgy Canada.
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy North
Anchor Wmd, Llc USA Energy 100.00% America
N ' -1 Sibgroup Acnona
r&mha.t.( Ohbres | aanegament L Matloica Water Teatment - 100.00% - 7 Waer .
Antigua Bodega De Don Cosme Palacio, _ Subgroup: Bodegas
SL. Alava Bodegas 100.00% Palacio
Apoderada Corporativi General 'S 4 - Madiid ‘Other Businesses ™ 100.00% © Aceiona -
n Subgroup. Acciona
Arsogaz 2003, S.L. Madrid Property 100.00% Property
= S - Az " Subgromp. -
Asgsores Turisticos Del Lstrecho S A Malaga - Logisticy Sérvices it Tiasmeditonanes
®) Subgroup. Acciona
Asimetra, S.A. C.V. Mexico Construction 100.00% Infrastructure
i f 3 Subgroup " Aceiong
Aulac Wind Powa Lp- Canada Energy 160:08%  Wind Enetgr Coneda
Subgroup:
Autopista Del Mai Atlantica S.L. Madrid Logistics Services 99.00% Trasmeditei14nea
e i , e Snbgtoup’ Gwh ~
Bear Creek US4 Energy L0Q e0%5 Acciona Enesgy
Bestinver Gestion S.C.LLC  S.A. (€} Madud Finance 100.00%  Subgroup: Bestinver
 Bestmve: Pensiones G FP. 5.4 () Madrid Tinance 10000%  Snbgroup Batirer
Bestinver Sociedad De Valores, § A, © Madnd Finance 100 00%  Subgroup: Bestmver
Bostinver, .4 ‘ () Madud Finatce 10000%  Acciona
_ Subgroup: Acciona
Bmcarburants De Catalunya, 8. A Barcelona Energy 90.00% Energy
Prodtesct Bifban - «l izvaya i 8000°% . Subgroup Bintuchs
© Subgroup Acciona
Biodiesel Caparroso. S.L. Navaire Energy 100 00% Energy
Biodiese! Del Fslz Campns = Navaue Energy 1D 00%  Subgroupy Biotoels
Biodiesel Sagunt, S.L - Navarre Energy 100 00% Subgroup- Biofuels
Brerasa Alcorat ‘.,L ‘ i Maind " Lnerngy 100.00%  Subgmoup Biomass
Biomasa Briviesca, S L. © Burgos Energy 85 00% Subgroup: Biomass
Biomasa Miajadas. S L () add Enotgy 10000%  Subgronp Biomass
Prepared by Edward EWING Page 122 of 169 April 5th, 2014

Carrying

. Amont

2,000

153
fird
4172

469

n
&

23,443

27

3.660

4

186

532

331
1205
3,267
6113

1947



EDWARD EWING - INTERPRETE JURADOC
Calle Francisco Madariaga, 2 - 4°C / 28017 MADRIC:

e 73918514 253 - @: edward@sande.es

Certified Translation

. Group e R T i e | (o, | e U
compuny S Anditei . Tocation. - Masinbudinessline . (mominal] - Shareholder .
©) Subgroup® Acciona
Biomasa Sangliesa. S.L. Navaire Energy 100.00% Energy
‘Bndegas Palacio § A~ LAY Aty Winener 10000%  Subgroup Sileno -
(E) Subgroup. Acciona
Capev Venezuela Venezuela Congiruction 100 00%0 Infiastructure
=T B G : 4-(-‘\\1 S e e o T.. Subgenp Aceions
Ce ClakacaCuatio. S deRL.de OV i “Mextso Epeigy 10004 . Emergy Mexico
(A) Subgroup. Acciona
CeQaxacaDos S.deR.L.deCV. Mexico Energy 160.00% Energy Mexico
e e {A) o ‘ -Submoup. Accjoua -
~CeOaxaca Ties, S deRL deCV - “Meior Frergy 106 0%+ Entigy Mexico
Subgroup Accicna
(A) Corp - Renewable
Ceatesalas. SL. Madngd Energy 100.00% Energy
fay (A i N _ " Subgroup Schemb
Cenatgo Espatia, 51 e hfadtni Logistics Setvices T986% - Agency
Ceoélica Hispania. S.L A Madnd Fnergy 98 00°% Subgroup. Cesa
Ceva Folo Sietha il Ttwha Eiicagy 10500%  Subgroup Cesaltaly
Cirtover. S.L. - Madrid Instrumental 100.00% Acciona
Coefisa, § A = Switseiland Finarice 100 69% Azototia
- Subgroup-
Combuslebor, S.L. Murcia Logistics Services 100.00%  Olloquiegui Haulage
Compania Liokica Granating S L, (G¢) [, Granada " Eneigy 4300%  Subgrosp Cedlica
Compania Eolica Puertollano. S.1., - Puertollano Energy 98.00% Subgroup: Cedlica
Compatiia Do Aguas Pagueia & L <= Mallctva Waser Treatment 10000%  Subgroup Gesha
Compafiia Internacional De Construcciones = Panama Finance 100.00% Acciona
ot ¢ o 0wl o) 0z (A) e . i . Subgioup Acnona
Agcwma Trasmedsterranea § A o7 Madnd - Logistics Seraces 92720, ‘Logistios
" Subgroup. Acciona
Consorcio Acciona Ossa,S. A Chile Construction 05.00% Infrastructure
%, Paimaiait — T o Subgioup sesiois:
Consorcy: Constructor Arancana 14 Chile Chnstigstion 60 00% . Inftastiucime
Subgroup Acciona
- Corp - Renewable
Consorcio Eolico Chiripa, S.A. Costa Rica Energy 65.00% Energy
‘. Baer ’ B) o o e Subgroup Acolona-
Consticerones Residenctales Mexioe, U B v Meano " Constsuction 100 00%, - Infrostiuctwe -
. Subgroup Acciona
Constructora El Paso S.P.A. Chile Construction 100.00% Infrastructute
T - Tt : = Subgraup scciona
Constructora La Fafana. Spa i Lhile Consttuction 0 0% Infrastinctuze
(B) Subgroup. Acciona
Constructora Ruta 160, 8.A Chile Construction 100.00% Infrastructure Chile
Copane Valoigs S L - e Madtid Holding Company Moo Acciona
Corporacion Acciona Encrgias Renovables, (4)
S.L. ] Madrid Energy 100.00% Acciona
S Subgroup Acciona
_ ‘ A _ Cotp - Renewable
Ceorporacion Acviona Eolica S A - Madnd Enetgy 100 00% - Emergy
Subgroup Acciona
GV Corp - Renewable
Corporacion Acciona Hidraulica, S.A Madnd Energy 100.00% Energy
C‘uiptu-éclim Asciona Windpowes, 3 L. = Kladrid Eneipy- 106 60% Acciona
Corporacion De Explotaciones y Servicios,
S.A Madrid Holding Company 100.00% Acciona
-Corpotavion Bolica Catalana S L ol Madisd. Enétgy 98.0("a n-‘subglbup Cedlwa
Corporacion Eolica De Barruelo. S.L. Madrid Energy 98.00% Subgroup: Ceolica
‘Corpatacion Foliea De Manzanedo S 1. =3 Madrid - Foagy 98.06%% Submoup Cedhoa
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cantpam Auditor . Loeation-  ‘Main busimessline . (nromipal) -~ Shareholder amount
Corporacion Eolica De Valdivia. S.L. (4) Madrid Energy 98.00% Subgroup: Cedlica 2.752
“Corpuracion Eolics De Zaniora S 1. 1A} - Madnd Poergs ug00% . Subemos Cedlica 1786
Corporacion Eolica La Canada. S.L - Madrid Energy 100 00%  Subgroup’ Ceatesalas 1,368
Cowporacion Folica Spra $A. - =y Fataposa Tuoegy 1830% Subgoup: Coolica~ .~ #T2
Deep River Wind Facility (Prcp}ﬂ’f.a." ) (4 Subgroup: Acciona
Limited South Aftica Energv 51 00% Energy -
HekE S i = . -, Subgmoup Acciona :
Bremisey Prdge Wind Fasm, Ll 2 -TISA Eneigy H009% - Vend Epecgy TISA 15,891
_ Subgroup. Acciona
Depurar 7B. S.A. Aragon Water Treatment 100.00% Water 1.8q2
7 S » P B o ¢+ Subjmoup Acoiona
Depmar3B. S A - ; Ardgon Water Treatment 16oMs . Waer 5939
Desarrolladora De Infraestructuras Hispano- _ Subgroup: Acciona
Mexinanas, S.A deC v, Mexico Construction 55.00% Infrastructure 3
- TN pi _ R Subgroun. Accrona
Desartollos Revolt Del Liobregat S L Madsid Propserty- H0000% . Property ! 5247
(B) Subgroup' Acciona
Desarrotlos Y Construcciones, S A De Cv Mexico Constiuction 100 00% Infrastructure 7828
Deutiche Neoso Entrecanaies Cubicitas = I R _ - Subgioupr. Actiona - | S
(smbh Geamany Constiuction 16000% - Infrastuctwme b
Dren, S.A. % Madrid Holding Company 100.00% Acclona 1115
LA SN . Subgroup. Accona = -
Feogrove 5 USA Enig T00:00% Wiad Enetgy USA - 26537 .
Ecm ista Wind Llc - USA Energy 100.00%  Subgroup: Ecoenergy 5
. ' - (':-) * 8 : « Subgtoup Aceiond L
‘Bhn Dem :clﬂm;d (mbh 5 Germang Eneigy 19000% . Encigy Infetnational 23
© Subgroup' Acciona
Ehn Poland Poland Energy 100.00%  Energ: Intermational 39,821
Emp thcﬁoLoawt.ensJazdmea ¥ Zona.. 3 FER . s © ' Subproup Acciona -
Verdes $A o0 : . Malaga. : Constuction 100.00% tnfrastructne -~ © 141
(© Subgroup: Acciona
Empordavent S.L.U. Barcelona Energy 100.00%% Energy 14 206
Empreendimientos Lélwuq ba »mdﬁ A N s wibgloup Accieni -
Horzonte S A . - " 4 Fottugal " Energy’ 100 00% Wind Portugal “1.%71
(A4 Subgroup’ Acciona
Empreendimientos Félicos Ribadelide S.A. ’ Portugal Energy 100.00% Wind Portugat 5,493
) : " Subgoup Acciond ¥
Empiesa Opatadma At & A i - Batcelona Water Treatment 10000% - - - Waer R0
(E) Subgroup: Hijos de
Enalia, Ltda (Colombia Wineries 100.00% Antonio Barcelo 2,136
Eneigea Servicios ¥ Manteramisnto $.1, (A} Rarcelond Enagy 98 00%  Subgroup Teiransva 3
. Subgroup: Ternel
Energia Renovable De Teruel ,S.L. Teruel Energy 51.00%  Alternative Energies 33
Eneigra Renovables De Barazar, S 1. = Madiid Eneigy 100002 Subgroup: Ceancsalas 17,836
. Subgrenp: Acclona
Energias Alternativas De Teruel, § A Teruel Energy 51.00% Eneigy -
e T oo g : ) o e Subgroup Asciony :
Encrgas Lolicas Do Catalunya. § A Bacelona Endigy 100 00%% o Emetgy - 6.000
Energias Renovables De Ricobayo. S.A. - Madiid Energy 45.00% Subgroup. Ceolica 149
Ereigias Renovabics £1 Ay S1 A Vircava Enetzy I8 00% Subgoup Ceolice 2005
Subgroup.
ey Multiservices
Energias Renovables Operacion Y ) Acciona Facility
Mantenimienio. S L Barcelona Urban Services 100 00% Services 3
Enetgias Renovahles Pena Mebima S 1. A} Madrid ‘Eneigy 9800% Subgroup Ceolica 2625
Entldad Efinen, S.A. - Madnd Instiumental 100.00% Acciona -
y ' - i - - Subgroupy Acefona
Frtizeanales Y Favora thmkax Il Giibraftar Constiaciion 100 0aPg Infrastructure -
Bolica De Rubio. S A () Barcelona Energy 100.00%  Subgroup’ Acciona 6,000
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: o o - C %ot - ‘
Greup - U i T o awegashipt - - -0 o5
COMPATLY. Anditor: Location - Mun buviness‘ime  “(ngminal} °  Shareholder:
Energy
Eolica e $edabria S AAY " Madud Epergy 98 60%  Subgroup. Cedhica
(©) Subgroup: Acciona
Eolxca De Z onaqum, SL. Madnd Energy 66 00% Energy
'Psmr.a f_rauega Dei Aﬂmf:o S‘3 i P CCoreana Fuagy : Qﬁ-ﬁf}%- o ‘hxhgl«mp Ceoﬁ»a
© Subgroup® Acciona
Eolica Villanueva, 8.1 Navarre Energy 66 06% Energy
Eobuas Del Monwavo. § 1 (G Soim . Eneigy 9800%  Subpioup Coslica
Eolicos Breogan. S.L. - Pontevedra Energy 98.00% Subgroup: Cedlica
Ny m _ o R ‘ - Spbgroup Cesa,
_Eofika Bxripoy Ceya Hellas Fpe reeoc bnoigy T 00% © Helfas
(4 Subgroup: Cesa
Eoliki Panachalkou Sa ’ Greece Energy 72.00% Hellas
_ I = . *“uhgromp Cesa
Ln]lkl Pm.ﬂnmus f.‘e“ia Helia" Lpe Giteece " Fiegy 72 0% Mol
EsLegarda, S L. Navarte Energy 100.00% Subgroup: Biofuels
B _ ! ’ * Subgicnp
Estibadota Puerto Bahia § A Cadiz Logrstics Services 19040%  Tesmediterraien
Estuchos Y Construcciones De Obras, S.A. B Subgreup: Acciona
De Cy Mexico Construction 50.00% Infrastructure
i = (A) ey .. Subgroap
Fuiopa Fotrys, S A atet Cadpr Logisfics Setvices 00 00% - Tismeddeinrdnea
(A) Subgroup; Acciona
Eurus S,A,P.I1De C.V. Mexico Energy 94.00% Energy Mexico
Fmanzas Dos, S A =. Madud Insiumental 100 0% | Aceoua
- Subgroup: Acciona
Finanzas Nec. 5.A. Madrid Finance 100.00% Property
Fimanzas ¥ CareraDos, 5 A = Madnd Other Businesser. 100 (i_ﬂ%-_ Acciona
Finanzas Y Cartera Uno, S.A. &V Madnid Other Busmcsse‘; 100.00% Acciona
- _ Sibgioup Acciona
Flughafendienst v ombk . Gretmeny Loglstms Services 100 0% Alipot Services .-
N Subgroup: Acciona
Frigoriferi Di Tavazzano SPa Italy Logistics Services 100.00%% Logistics
. o . = >- ) + c o ‘ . = s ubg;(;up
Pug(:ufl..us Latavace, $1 Murcia Logrstics Services VA% Olloquicgun Haulage
Generacion De Energia Renovable S.A. - Alava Energy 98.00% Subgroup: Cedlica
Generica De Construec ¥ Mto Industrsal, . > N | S = T DR
LA Zaagosa Constigehon 1060 0% ASCIona
n Subgroup: Acciona
Gestio Catalana D'Aiglies. S.A. Barcelona Watei Treatment 100 00% Water
Ciestinn De Recoisos Carpotativos, 5.1 i Mavarre - Ericigy 100 0% - Accuma'"
_ Subgroup: Acciona
Gestion De Urban Services Baleares, S.A Mallorca Water Treatment 100 00% Water
Cobal De Lﬂel,gms fmluas At-Andalus = .
S Yamoa Lneigy S 00% Subgoup: Ceblica
(A) Subgroup Acciona
Gouda Wind Fagility (Proprietary) Limited ' South Africa Energy 51.00% Fnergy
Grupo T1ansparies Prigonticos Murcianos. _ _ Subgioup.
‘ST Mutcia Logistice Servaass s Olequiesin 1anlage
(uadalaviar Consorcio Eolico \labe
Enerfin, $.A. Madrid Energy 100 00% Subgroup: Alabe
Gunmng Wind Encrg. Developments Pvf ) S Submenp Cunning
Titd Australia Energy 109 60% Wind Energy
o Subgioup. Acciona
Gurmmg Wind Encrgj Holdings Pty Ltd Australia Energy 100 00%% Energy Australasia
j i ‘ ‘ ‘  Subgioup Acewna
Gwhe *\mona B}mg} [lu - TEA Fngigy 400 00% Wind Enerey- USA
_ Subgroup- Acciona
Heartland Windpower, Llc UsSA Energy 100.00% Wind Energy USA
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.+ Cariying

amoumt
1644

2,334
L3718
2,960

83

116

250

27,394
(452)

3483

24,046

13n

20671

13302
1,500

(0

_ % of
. compsny - Auditor - ~ Location ~Mainbusinessline (pominal)  Shareholder
Hermes Loghfiva. 8 4 g ™ Bagelona . Tuigisties Sarvices 9262% | Thasmedsterraca
(A) Subgroup: Acciona
Hidroeléctrica Del Serradé, S.L. Barcelona Energy 100.00% Waterfalls
Hijos Fig: Antono Baraelo, § 4 Ay . Maitid Wirigies 100.00% . ‘Agsiona
Hospital De Leon Bajio. S.A De C.V. (E) Mexico Hospitals 100.00% Acciona
. : : v v\.:- ' = 7‘ ; ‘V . b s PRS- ,-Subgt(ﬂp =
Ibet Ragl Fiance. B.1° - France Logtstics Mervices 10000%  Trasmeditenianca
_ Subgroup’ Acciona
Iberica Arabian Co Lid Saudi Arabia Engineering 106,004 Engineering
SO L o g oW 5o i i "L . Subgrompy Accind
Ibeimsa Dc Brasit Engenhatia Lida ) - Brazl " Engineering 16000% . - -Fngmeenng -
Subgroup. Acciona
Inantic, S.A Madrid Instrumental 100 00% Infrastructure
Tndustita Toledans De Bnergas s ‘ Suhgrotp Acciona
‘Renovables. $ 1 ' Toledo Eneigy - 100 0% Wmdpewer -
Inctime, S A. £ Madrid Urban Services 100.00% Acciona
i Subzoup Acciona
; R b B - . AR © Corp - Remswable.
Inemopa De C egeneracion. 5 A, Mads:d Faeiey 100 v% - Enagy
3 Subgroup:
Infraestructuras Avora, S L Madnd Energy 84.72% Guadalaviar
I ‘A ar Subgioup: Accuma
Prapesty Pague Reforme, .4 de C v Meracn Prapesty 100 00% Properiy
_ Subgioup: Acciona
Inneo 21, S.L. Madnid Energy 100.00% Windpower
i ; = : o ! : -~ - Sobgromp Acciona
T Bolica, & A Seville Energy 119.00% Ensagy
(A Subgroup: Acciona
Interlogistica Del Frio, S A. ' Barcelona Logistics Services 100.00% Logistics
. = e (A} Sl N ’ ' Subgoup A'c}clt'ma_
Intenurbano D Prensa, A el Madint Logslics Services 100 DeCy Logisties
Kimberly Solar Facility (Propietary} (A Subgioup. Auciona
Limited ) South Africa Energy 51.00% Energy
=8 o5 . LRSS .0 - U Subgroup Acciona
) A S R Corp. - Renewable
Ew Tafa S A Madnd Energy - 100.000 - Fneigy
D) Subgroup. Acciona
Lambarene Necso Gabon Gabon Construction 100.00% Infrastructure
| T ddot) - P _ Subgtoup Acciona .
Lameque Wind Power Lp b - Canada Energy WE0Ps  Wind Dresgy Canada -
- Subgroup.
Logistica Det Transporte Slb S.A. Murcia Logstics Services 100.00%  Olloquiegui Haulage
o il B E = = ——i 3 Subgtoup Anciona
Lusonecso Potugal - - - Propaty 100.00% Propaity
Subgroup.
Maritime Global Operator, Ltd Malta Logistics Services 100.00% Trasmediterranea
Md: Anport Consult Gmbh = Germany Logisties Betvices 10000%  Acciona
©) Subgroup Acciona
Meltemi Sp Z.0.0. Poland Energy 100.00% Energy Poland
. i Subgroup Asctona
Mettologia ¥ Comunicaciones, § A Maidnd Coenstinction 100 60% Infrastictie
= Subgroup: Schembri
Millatres 2003 S.L. Tenerife Logistics Services 79 86% Agency
Mostostal Warszawa 5 A iR} Poland Constigettun 50 09% Acciona
(B) Subgroup Acciona
Moura Fabrica Solar Lda. Portl_lgal Energy 100.00°% Energy
N Is ‘ e ; Subgoup Acciona
 MtGelhbrand Wind Tarm Piy, Lid Aushaisa Tagigy 1004Ps  Enegy Aushalasie
n Subgioup® Acciona
Multiservicios Grupo Ramel S.A. Barcelona Utban Services 100.00% Facility Services
- o e e Subgioup.
Murfittans. S I ' Murcia Loguiie: Gervices - 100 00% . OHoguiegul Huultage
Prepared by Edward EWING Page 126 of 169 April 5th, 2014



EDWARD EWING - INTERPRETE JURADO
Calle Francisco Madariaga, 2 - 4°C / 28017 MADRID

/?» =918 514 253 - @: edward@sande.es

Certified Translation

UToBp
COMgRULY

Necso Canada, Inc

Necsn Fxtrecanaes Cubrertas Mexacn Sa
e Oy

Necso Hong Kong, Lid.

Necsu Triunfo Constricoes Lida

Nevada Solar One, Ll¢

Motos Pioduyao De Energia Lda

Nvsl Investment Group Ll

Operadors De Servicios Hospitatatios, 5 A
etV

P & S Logistica Integral Peru

Pacific Renewable Eneigy Geneiation Lic
Packtivity, S.A
Parco Eolico'Cuculle S 1 A

Paris Aquitaine Transports, S.A.
Parque £6lin Dia Cagta Vicentina, § 4
Parque Eolico Da Raia, S A.

Parque Eolico De Mannique, S A
Parque Eolico De Pracana, S.A.

Parque Eolico Do Matao, S A

Parque Eolico Do Outerro, 8.A

‘Paique Eolico Dos Fies, 5 A

Parque Edlico El Chapaiio

Parque Eolico Escepar, S A

Parque Eolico La Fspeianza S.L.
Parque Eolivo Perulejo, S A

Parque Eolico Topacios, S A.

Paque Folico Torfosa 8L

Parque Eblico Villamayor, S.L.

Paique Refoima SantaFe, 5 A DeCV
Parques Edlicos Celadas, S 1.

Parques Folicos De Unudad Real S L
Paiques Eolicos Del Cerrato. S.L.

Pat Cargo, 5 A

Pe Ingenio, S DeRL. De C.V

PialosSRL
Pitageia Srl
Press Cargo Colombia, S A

Auditor
(B)

(B)

(E)

(A)
B)

(B}

(E)

{Al

(A
Gy
{A)
(A
{A)
(4)

(A)

o (}‘a )
A
(A)

{A)
{A)
HA
(A)
(~)
A)
15}

A)

Location
Canada
Mexica

Hoqg Kong
ﬁi;znl
USA
Fortugal
USA
Mexico
Peru
US4
Madrid
Italy
France

Postugal
Portugal
Portugal
Portugal
Portugai
Portugat

Portugal
Navatie
Toledo
Madtd

laledo
Madnd

Baicelond

Maduid

Mexico
Madnd
Cudad Real
Maudnd

Chile

Mexico

Italy
[taly

Colomba

% of
gwnership
Main business fine (nominal}
Construction 100.60%
Conzhiuction FEM3 0%
Construction 100.00%
Tounstruction 50:00%
Energy 100.00%
Eneigy 70,0
Energy 100.00%%
Hospitals 160 00%
Logistics Services 85.64%
Cpergy 100 00%
Logistics Services 100.00%
Eneigy 100 00%
Logistics Services 100.00%
Energy roanos
Energy 100.00%
Lneigy 100 00%
Energy 100.00%
Engigy 100 00%
Energy 100 00%
Energy 100.00%.
Fnergy 100.00%
Energy 98 00%
Eneigy 98.00%
Eneirgy 98 R
Energy 100 00%
Energy 08 U0%
Energy 98.00%
“Pioperty 70.00%
Energy 98.00%
Enragy 98 00%
Energy 98.00%
Logistics Services 5750%
Energy 100.00%
Water Toeatrnent 100 00%
Energy 100.00%
Logistics Services 47 95%

Shareholder

Subgroup. Acciona
Infrastructure

Subgroup Acciona
Infrastiusture

Subgroup: Acciona
Infrastructure
Subgroup. Acciona
Infrastructme
Subgroup: NVS1
Investment Group
Subgroup: Sayago
Subgroup: Acciona
Solar Energy
Subgionp: Acciona
Hospital Services
Subgroup: Acciona
Forwarding
Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Eneigy USA

Acciona

Subgroup Cesa Italy

Subgroup:
Olloguiegui Haulage
“ubgioup: Acciona
Wind Doitugal
Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Portugal

Subgioup. Acciona
Wind Poitegal
Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Portugal

Subgrous Acciona
Wind Poriugal
Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Portugal

Subgioup Acciona
Wind Portugal

Subgroup: Alabe
Subgioup Cedliva
Subgroup: Ceblica
Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup: Alabe
Subgroup Cedlica
Subgroup: Cedlica
Subgrovp: Parque
Refirma

Subgroup: Cedlica
Subgioup: Cedlica

Subgroup: Cedlica
‘Subgtoup Acciona
Forwaiding
Subgroup: Acciona
Com. - Renewable
Energy
Subgroup: Acciona

Water -

Subgroup: Cesa Italy

Subgroup Acciona
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Groap
company

Pridesa America Corporation

Punta Palmerus, 3 A
Pyienees Wind Energy Developments Pty
Ltd

Pyiences Wind Bnergy iToldings ry, Ltd
Ravi Uija Eneigy India Pvt Lid

Red Hills Fmance, Ll

Red Hills Holding, Llc

Rengos, S A

Renovables Del Penedés, S AU

T1asho Nove Empreendimentos
hunobthenios, Lide

Rio Paraiba Do Sul Servigos Lida
Rodovia Do Ayo, S A

Rusticas Vegas Alfas, 8 L

SC A2Tramo 2,5 A

8.C. Acciona Concesiones Ruta 160

$.CC Aceciona Facility Services Automotive
Sik

S.C Dip, S A.

§<C Hospital Del Norte, S A
S .C.dad .Empresatial De Financiacion Y
Comercio, $ L

Salios Del Nansa. S AU
Saltos Y Centrales De Catalunya, S.A

Sa‘n Solar Energy Facility (Propiefary)
Limited

Servicios Corporativos [beroamenica, S A
deCV

Siighdl Accisa Windpower Tectmical
Service Ca

Sietra De Selva, S.1.
Silenc, S A

Sishen Solar Facility (Proprietary) Limited
Sistemas Energeticos E1 Granado S A
Sistemas Energeticos Sayago S.L

Sisternas Energeticos Valle 2 Sedano S A
Sociedad Explotadora De Recursos Eélicos,
SA

Lovtedud Tstingha Desairollo E£hico, § De
KL deCV

Sociedad Levantina De Obras Y Servicios,

Anditer

(E)

(A)

B)

A

(&)
(A)

A
(E}

©

A

Location

Usa
Chile
Austialia
Austiahig
India

UsA
USA
Madid

Badajoz
Brazl
Biazl
Bryal

Badajoz

‘juadalajara
Chile
Romana

Madrid
Madrid

Madrid
Santander

Barcelona

Sonth Afnca

Mexico

Ching
Navarre
Alava

South Africa
Sevlle
Madewd
Madrid

Portugal

Mexico

Valencia

Main business lime

Water Treatment
Energy
Eneigy
Lnergy
Enzigy

Energy
Energy

Fmance

Energy

. Propaty
Concession Operaton
1 oncession Operation

Energy

Concession Operation
Concession Operation
Utban Se1vices

Construction
Huspitals

Finance
Energy

Energy

Erergy

Pioperty

Energy
Energy
Wineries

Energy
Encrgy
Energy

Enfgy
Energy

Encrgy

Construction

% of
ownership
{nominal)

100.00%
190.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100 00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100 00%
100.00%
100 00%
100.00%
100 00%%
100.00%
100 00%

60.00%
95 00%

100.00%
100 002

100.00%

64, 00%

100.00%

100 00%
100.00%
100-00%,

51.00%
98 00%
100 00%
98 0%

100.00%

100-00%
100.00%

Shareholder
Forwarding Peru
Subgroup: Acciona
Water
Subgroun Acciona
Encrgy International
Subgroup: Pyrenees
Wind Energy

Subzroup Acciona.

Energy Austialasia
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy International

Subgroup: Acciona
Energy Infernational
Subgroup: Tatanka

Acciona
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy
Subgroup. Asciona
Pioperty
Subgroup: Acciona
Do Brazil

Subgroup Acciona
infiastiuctuie

Subgroup: Acciona
Energy
" Acclona

Subgroup: Acciona
Infrastructure Chile

. Acgiona
Subgroup: Acciona
Infrastructure

Aggiona

Acciona
Subgioun Acciona
Watei falls -
Subgroup: Acciona
Waterfalls
Subgroup’ Acciona
Corp. - Renewahle
Energy
Subgroup. Parque
Reforma

Sibgioup Acclona

Wind Power
Inteinational

Subgroup: Acciona
Energy
Subgroup. Hyos de
Antonio Barcelo

Subgroup: Acciona
Energy
Subgroup! Ceolica
Subgroup: Cesa

Subgroup  Ceolica
Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Portugal

Subgroup. Accipna
Enerzy Mexico

Acciona
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21,095
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Group
cowpany
S.A.

Sociudad Operadua Del Hospital Del Noic
Sociedad San Rafael Hididuhca S A De
CVv

socoafil S A

Solar Fields Energy Photo Voliaic Iudia Pyt
Lid

Solomun Foths Wind Farm. Lle

Soluciones Mecanicas Y Tecnologicas, S L.
starks Wing Golice Sp 7,010,

Sun Photo Voltaic Energy India Pvt Ltd
Suiya Eneigy Photo Volta ladia Pvt Lid
Tabie Mountai Wind Llc

Tayo. Sp 200

Tatanka Finance Llc
Tatanka Hoiding, Llc

Terminal De Carga Rodada, S.A
Tenmnal De Contenedores Algecnas, 3 A

Terminal Ferry Barcelona, S.R.L.
Tetmosolar Alvatado Dos, S L
Termosolar Alvarado, S.L.
Termosolar Majadas, S L

Teimosolar Palma Saetilla, S.L
Temua Holdmgs B V

Terranova Energy Coiporation
Temanova Energy Corporation S A
Tibest Cuatro, S.A

Tities S A

Tours And Incentives, S AU

Towwowa Park Spolka 7.0 (1
Transcargo Magreb. S.A.

Tianscaigo Cnupajes, A

Transportes Frigorificos Muicianos, S.1..
Transpoites Olloquiegul, S A
Transurme, S.A

Tiasmediieiranea Cargo, S A

Auditor

(s}

®)

A

(A)

(C)
)

©

(A)

(A)

Location

Madnd
Mexico
Madrid
India
USA
Navarre
Poland
India
India
USA
Poland

usa
USA

Madrid

Algeciras
Barcelona
Badajoz
Badajoz
Madiard

Madrid
Holland
USa
Baicelona
Madrid
Madnd
Madrid

Poland

Madrid

Madrid

Murcia
Navane
Barcelona

. Madnd

Muin business hue

tosprtals
Construction
Instrumentat
Energy
Enmigy
Energy
Eneigy
Energy
Eneigy
Energy
Properiy

Energy
Eneigy

Logistics Services

Logistics Services
Logistics Services
Enerzy
Energy
Enegy

Energy
Energy
Energy
Enéigy
Instrumental

Instiumental
Logishics Services

Propeity
Logstics Services

Logistics Servicas
Logistics Services
Logtstics Servioes
Logstics Services

Logistics Services

% ot

‘ ownership

{nominal)

1000855
100.00%
190 00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100:00%
100.00%
100 00%

100.00%
100 00%

100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
10000

100.00%
TG D0
100.00%
98.00%

100.00%
10000

100.06%0

100 00%

79.86%

79 36%
100 00%
100 00%
100.00%

100 00%

Shareholder

Acciona
Subgroup: Acciona
Engineering
Subgioup . Finance
and Cartera Dos
Subgtoup: Acciona
Energy International
Subgioup: Acciona
Wind Eneigy US A
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy
Subgroup: Acciona

* Encigy Poland
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy International

Subgioup Acciona
Energy International

Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgioup Acciona
Pioperty
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy International
Subgroup Tatanka
Subgroup:
Trasmediterranea
Acciona
Subgroup:
Trasmediterranea
Subgroup Acciona
Energy
Subgroup: Solar
thermal

Subgroup; Solar
therimal

Subgroup: Solar
thermal
Subgoup Tecusa
Subgroup: Cesa
S’i.lbgnéup Ceblica
Acciona

Arciona

Subgroup:
Trasmediterrinea
Subgroup. Acciona
Piopeity
Subgroup:
Trasmediterranea
Cargo
Subgroup
Tiasmediteirinea
Cargo
Subgroup:
Olloquiegui Haulage
Subgroup. Acciona
Logisiics
Subgroup: Acciona
Logistics
Subgicup
Trasmedneiranea
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v.608
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15,932
13,523

464
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Group
company

Trasmediterranea Shipping Matoc, SARL
Taatamiento De Residuos LUe Lu Rad, 3 L
Ttanka Wind Power Llc

Tucam, S5 20 C

Tuppadahalli Energy India Private Limited

Tunsme ¥ Aventuras, A U

Valgrand 6, S.A.

Yector-Cesa Hellas Likosterna Epe

Velva Windfarm, Llc

Viajes Burotras, § A

Vifiedos Vifia Mayor, S L.

Vjatroelekh ana Cemernica DO O

Vjetioelektrana Jelinak Doo

Vjetroelektrana (po D 0-Q

Yolkmarsdoi fer

Volser Servigor De Uperasao B

Manutenguo

White Shield Wind Proyect Llc

Wind Fam 66, ) lc

Yeong Yang Windpower Corporation 11
Zurich Wind Power [p Inc -

{*) Companies whose financial statements are audited by: (A) Deloitte;

Young (E) Other

Auditor

(A)

tA)

©

©

Location

Tangiers
LeRige
USA

Poland
India
Manrid
Maduid
Grecce
USA
Cadiz

Madrid

Croatia

Croatia

Croatia
Germany
Pormygal

USA
(JSA
South Korea

Canada

Main business line

L.ogistics Services
Urban Services

Energy
Piopeity
Energy
Logistics Servicey
Property
Eneigy
Energy
Logzstics Services

Budegas

: Eneigy

Energy

Energy
Energy
Eneigy
Energy
Energy
Energy

Enetgy

(B) PricewaterhouseCoopers;

- %5 of
ow nership
{nominal)

100.00%
167 00%
26.00%

RIS
100 00%
100 e
100.00%

2 00%
100.00%
100 00%

100.00%

100 00%

100.00%

100 00%
100.00%
100:00%
100.00%
100 00%
100.00%
100.00%

(C) KPMG;

Shareholder
Subgroup:
Trasmediterrinea
Acciona

Subgroup: Tatanka
Subgiony. Acciana
Pronerty
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy International
Subgioup
Tasmediterranea
Subgroup. Acciona
Property
Subgroup Cesa
Hellas
Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgroup
Tiasmediterrdnea
Subgroup. Hijos de
Antonio Barcelo
Subgioup, Acciona
.Corp - Rencwable

i Encigy
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy Internaticnal
Subgroup’ Actiona
Corp - Renewable
Ene1gy

Subgroup: Acciona
Energy [nternational
Subgroup’ Acclona
Eaergy Intcrnationat
Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgroups: Acciona
Wind Energy USA
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy International
Subgloup. Acciona
Reiewable Canada

(D) Emst &
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APPENDIX II

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The jointly controlled entities proportionately consolidated in the year ended 31 December
2013, in accordance with IFRS, and the information related thereto are as follows (amounts in

thousands of euros):
CeFoup
tulipaly

Acciona Chinook Roads Gp Inc.
Aceioia F3j Gp Lid -

Adelaideaqua Pty Ltd
Algerian Water nvestiient, 5 L

Amper Central Solar Moura
Arturo Sone Plaza, A 1E

Autovia De Los Vifledos
Baja Californis Power, SADCYV.

Bana HZz Szeleromu Megujulo Ene1gy
Hasznosito Kft

Bioetanol Encrgetice
Bioetanol Energetico La Mancha

Bokpoott Epe Consartium (Pty} Lid
Cathedral Rocks Construce And
Management, Pty Ltd

Cathedial Rocks Holdings 2, Pty Lid
Cathedial Rocks Holdings, Pty. Lid
Cathodral Rocks Wind Fana, Py Ltd
Chin Chute Windfarm Jv

Chimnok Highway Operations Ine
Cogeneracion Arrudas Lida
Compadiie UrbamzadaDel Coto. $ 1.
Concesionaina De Desalacton De Ibiea,
SA

Congesionariaba Chia, S A
Consorcio Hospital Ege, S.A
Copssictora De Obras Crviles ¥
electiouneeanicas 12

Constructoia Necso Sacyl Chile
Constyuctora Sacyr Necse Chale, 5.4
Deputar P1, §.A

Desairollo De Energias Renovables De
Navaite, 5 A

Auditor Location
(A) Canada
‘A) Canada
@ Australia

N Madud
®) Portugal
G Madsid
© Toledo

Mexico
(E) Hungary
= Madrid
© Madnd
= South
“Afnca

- Australia

. Australia

- Australia
®) Australia
®) Canada
(A) Canada

Brazil
() Madrid

- Ibiza
® Peiu

- Chile

14 Mexico

- Chile

Chile
Zaragoza
) Pamplona

Main line
of business

Concession
Operation

Hospitals
Water Treatment

‘Water Tizatment

Energy
Property
Concesston

Operation

Construction

Energy
Eneigy
Energy

Construction
Energy
Fnergy
Energy
FEnergy
Energy

Concession
Uperation
Water Treatment
Pivperty
Water Treatment
Water Treatment
Construction
Wairy Ticaiment
Construction
Cunstiuction

Water Tieatment

Energy

%o
DWNersmp
(nomisal)

50 00%
50 00%

50.00%
50 0%

65.60%
2500

50.00%
65.00%

17.30%
50,00%
50.00%

~3000%
50 00%
50.00%
50.00%
3¢ 00%

33313%

- SG00te

50.00%
50.00%
50 00%
50.00%
80.00%
49.00%
5000%
50.00%
50.00%

5690%

Shareholder

Subgroup: Acciona
Concessions

Arnciona Concessions

Subgroup: Acciona
Water - Adelaide
Subgmoup Acciona
Wate
Acciona Energy
International

Subgioup I[nosa

Acciona
Subgroup Acciona
Engmecning

Subgroup: Energy
Subgroup Eiofuels

Subgroup: Biofuels
Subgroup Arciona
Engincering
Subgroup: Accicna
Energy - Australasia
Subgoup: Cathedial
Fock
Subgroup. Acciona
Energy - Ausiralasia
Subgroup Cathedral
Rock
Subgroup: Acciona

Wind Energy Canada

Subgroup Acciona
Conesssions
Subgroup: Acciona
Water
Acciona Pioperty
Subztoup
Subgroup: Acciona
Water
Subgroup Acciona
Waler
Subgroup: Acciona
Infrastructure
Subgronp Aguas
-Hispano Mexicana
Subgroup: Acciona
Infrastructure Chile
Subgroup Acclona
Infrastructure Chile
Subgroup: Acciona
Water
Subgloup Accicna
Eneigy
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%
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13,616
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7
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Group
company

Emserva, S.A.
Fnergias Renovables Mediteiraneas,

3A
Energy Corp Hungary Kft
Folizax Mare Nostruta 5 L

Eolico Alijar, S.A.
Lurovento Renovables, 8 L.

Eurovento. S.L.

Firefly investments 238 (Piopnetary)
Lamited

Freyssinet, S.A.
Giesticn Do Edificios Comerciales, S A

Iniciativas Energeticas Renovables, S.L.

mterbova Piess, S A

Lineas Electricas Asturianas. S.L.

Lmeas Elcctricas Gallegas It S L

Lineas Electricas Gallegas Lii. S.L.
Lineas Flectucas Gallegas S L

Magrath Windfarm Jv

Mov-R H1 Szeleromu Megujuio
EFuergia Hasznostio KRt

Myah Typaza, Spa
Necsorgaz, S L

Nova Darsena Deportiva De Bara, S.A.

Ok lear Investment Holdings 86
{Prootietary} Limat

Ouarzazate Solar 1, Sarl

Paramo De 1.os Angostillos, S L
Parque Eolico A Runa. S.L.

Parque Eolico Adrano. § L
Parque Eolico Ameixenda Filgueira.
S.L.

Paique Folico Cinseto | L
Parque Eolico Curras, S.L.

Parque Eolico Le Abara S 1

Parque Eolico De Bobia Y San Isidro.
S.L.

Paique Eolico D¢ Deva SL

Parque Eolico De Tea. S.L.

Parque Eolico Vicedo €L

Parque Eolico Virxe Do Monte. S.L.
Paryues Eolicos De Buio S L

Poligono Romica, 5.A.

Anditor
(E)
(A)
(E)

(A

(E)

B)

®
(E}
(E)

(E)

(A)

(C)
(A)
{A)
(A)
(A)
(A)
(A)
(A)
(A)
(A)
(5]
(A)
{A)

Location
Malaga

Valencia
Hungary

Valeacia

Cadiz
Cotunna

Corunna
South

Afica
Bilbao
Mddl‘l(‘i

Pamplona

Maduig
Asturias
(ralicia
Gialicia

Gelicia
Canada

Hungary
Algeria

Madnd

Madrid

South
Afiica

Morocco

Patencia
Corunna
Cowunna
Corunna
Zamora
Corunna

Corumna

Asturias
Corunna
Corunna
Colunua
Cormunna

Colunna

Albacete

Main line
of business

Water Treatment

Energy
Energy

Energy
Energy
E’hergy
Energy

Enerzy

Construction
‘ Property

Energy

Logstics Services
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy

Energy

Eneigy
Water Treatment
Pioperty

Concession
Operation

Energy

Construction

Energy
Energy
Energy

Energy
Enengy
Energy
Energy

Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Energy
Enersy

Property

%
ownership
(nominal)

45.00%

50 (1%
50.00%

50 00%

50.00%
30 G0%
50.00%

45 00%

50.00%
25.00%

50.00%

50.00%
50.00%
50.00%
50.00%
50 00%%

33.33%

47 30%
25.50%

50.00%
50.00%
5000%
31.50%

5000%
50.00%
50 00%

50.00%
50 0%
50.00%
50 00%

50.00%
50 00%
50.00%
50.00%
50.00%
50.00%

50.00%

Shareholder
Subgroup: Acciona
Water
Subgroup: Astiona

Engdrgy .
Subgroup: Cesa
Subgmup: Acciong
Energv
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy

Subgroup: Cedlica

Subgroup: Tripower
Subgrcup. Acciona
Energy International
Subgroup: Acciona
Infrastructure

Subgioup Inosa
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy
Subgronp: Acciona
Logistics

Subgroup: Eurovento
Subgroup Furovento
Subgroup: Eurovenic
Subgioup: Eutovenic
Subgroup: Acciona
Wind Energy Canada
Subgroup: Eneigy

Subgroup: AWI
Subgroup Acciona
Propercy

Acciona
Subgroup: Aceiona
Energy International
Subgroup: Acciona
Engineering
Subgioup Acciona
Fneigy

Subgroup: Cedlica
Subgroup £edhica

Subgroup: Ceblica
Subgroup Ceblica
Subgroup: Ceblica
Subgroup Ceblica

Subgroup: Cedlica
Subgtoup Ceolica
Subgroup: Ceolica
Subgroap: Cedlica
Subgroup: Cedlica

Subgroup, Ceolica
Subgroup: Acciona
Property
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79,500
4,156

1452

2,791

29

5,261
60.

15

[ I = B

1,688

2,539
6,858

14

1,920
7,068
7420

6,648
505
1,885
1.663

548
3505
6,393

553
5,147
4305
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Group
cowmpany

Kapicy Windfam J¥
S.C. Del Canal De Navarra, S.A.

8 C Puente Dei £bro, S A

Secomsa Gestid, S.L

Sarvicios Comunitdfios De Molina Da
Segwa, SA

Sistema Electrico De Evacuacion Eolica
En Subestac

Sisteme Elcctrics Espuga. S A,
Sociedad De Aguas Hispano Mexicana
SADeCV.

Sovicaad Mixia Del Agus- Jaen S A

Torre Lugano S.L.
Toyenova S1.
Tripower Wind. B.V.

Valdra Cnergia Eéling, S A
Ventos E Terras Galegas 11. S.1..
Ventos B Tenas Galegas SL -

(*) Companies whose financial statements are audited by: (A) Deloitte;

(E) Other

Auditor
&)
D)

GV

E)

(A)
(a)

Location
Canada
Pamplona

Aiagon
Tarragona

Murcia
Madrid
Barceluna
Mexico
Jaén

Valencia
Corunna
Holland

Seville
(Galicia

Galicia

Main line
of businéss

Eneigy
Concession
Operation

Concession
Operation

Urban Services
Wates Treatment
Energy
Energy
Water Treatment
Water Treatment

Property
Encrgy
Energy

Energy
Energy
Energy

(B) PricewaterhouseCoopers;

%a
owncrship
(nominat)

30 00%
35.00%

50 00%
50.00%

48 27%
31.90%
50.00%
50.00%
60 00%

50.00%
50.00%
50.00%

50.00%
50.00%
30.00%

(C) KPMG;

‘Shareholder
Subgrovp. Accinna
Wind Energy Canada

Acciona

“Actiona

Subgroup: Cessa
Acciona Water
Subgroup

Subgroup: Cesa
Subgroup. Aeciona
Energy
Acciona Water
Subgroup
Acciona Wates
Subgroup
Subgroup: Acciona
Property
Subgroup: Tripower

Subgroup: Cedlica
Subgroup Acciona
Energy
Subgroup: Tripower
Subgroup Tripower
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4,927
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APPENDIX III

COMPANIES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

The associates accounted for using the equity method in the year ended 31 December 2013, in
accordance with IFRS, and the information related thereto are as follows (amounts in

thousands of euros):

Group
company
Acciona & Ghanim Bin Saad Alsaad And Sons
Group Ho

Atciona Wouvelle Autoroute 30 Inc
Acciona Wep Holdings Inc.

Apuag Tratadas Del Valle De Mexico 5 A De
CV. ] '

Aprofitament D'Energies Renovables De
L'Ebre S.L.

Afll Coacnricnaria De La Generahitat De
Catalunya,

Autovia Del Almanzora S A.

Camarate Golf, §. A
Carnotavento. S.A.

Consoicio Traza, S A

Evacuacion Villanueva Del Rey, S.L.
Explotaciones Eolicas Stera De Utrera S L

Ferrimaroc Agencias, S.L.

Ferimaroe, 3 A

Gran Hospital Can Misses, S.A.

Helena Water Finance Pty Ltd
Helena Water Pty Ltd

Helena Water Hoidings Pty Lid
Infraestructuras Radiales, S.A.
Infracstructuras Villanveva, S L
Locubsa

Makiynocos Socete Anonyme Of Produdtion
And Trag

Natural Climate Systems, S.A.
Opeiador Del Meicado Ibénice - Polo Espafiol,
SA

Operadora Can Misses S.L.
Parque Eolico De Barbanza S L

S.C. Autovia De La Plata S.A.

8.C. Autovia Gerediaga Elorrio S A

Auditor

(A)
A)

A)

Al
(D)

(4)

()

A)

(A)

(A)

E)

(B

(A)

B

Location

Qatar
Canada

Canada
Mexico
Barcelona
Paicelona
Seville

Madnd
Corunna

Zaragoza

Seville
Madnd

Almeria
Morowo
[biza
Aunstialia
Australia

Australia
Madrid
Madnid

Andorra
Grecia
Pamplona
Madnd

Ibiza

Cowunna
Madrid

Bilban

Main line
of business

Urban Services

Concession Gperation
Concession Operation
Waier Treatment
Energy
Tieatment Water
Concession Operation

Piopeity
Energy
Concession Opetation

Energy
Eneigy

Logistics Services

Logistics Services
Hospitals

Water Treatment
Water Treatment

W ater Treatment
Concession Operation

Eneigy
Construction
Energy
Energy
Enetgy

Hospitals
Energy

Concession Operation

Concession Operation

%

ownership
(nominal)

100.00%
50-00%

3333%

24.26%

9.76%

39.00%

23.75%

22 00%
24.50%
16 60%

44.75%
2500%

50.00%

50.00%
40.00%

25.05%

100.00%

100 O
25.00%
40 53%

48.89%

40 00%

22.00%

500%

40.00%

12 50%

25.00%

22 80%

Sharchokler
Subgroup: Acciona
Facility Services

Acciona
Subgroup: Acciona
Concessions
Subgroup Acciona
Waer
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy
Subgroup: Acciona
Water
Subgroup: Acciona
Infrastructure
Subgroup: Acecicna
Pioptity
Subgroup: Eurovento

Acciona !
Subgroup: Solar
thermal Palma Saetilla
Subgroup. Ceolica
Subgroup: Cenargo
Espafia
Subgronp Cenargo
Espafia
Acciona

Submioup: Acciona
Water International
. Anstialia

Subgroup: Helena
Water

Subgioup: Helenaa
. Water
Acciona

Subgroup: Guadalaviz
Subgroup: Acciona
Infrastructure

Subsgruup' Cesa
Subgroup: Acciona
Energy

Subgroup: Aceiona
Eneigy
Subgroup: Acciona
Servicios Hospitalarios
Subgioup  Eurovento
Subgrupo Acciona
Infraestructuras
Subgrupo Accivna

- Initaestiucturas
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Group
cumpany

8.C. Novo Hospital De Vigo S.A.
Servicte: De Tratamiento De Aguas Ptar
Caracul, $,A

Solena Group

Tranvia Metiopolita Dl Besoe, § A
Tranvia Metropolita, S.A.

_iranvias Urbanos De Zaragoza S.L.

Trikorfa
Vento Mareiro S 1.

Auditor Location

(D) Pontevedra

Mexico
USA

Baicelona

- Barcelona
Zaragoza
. Grecia

= Colunpa

(*) Companies whose financial statements are audited by: (A) Deloitte;

{E) Other

Main line
of business

Hospitals
Water Treatment
Urban Services

Concession Operation

Concession Operation

Concession Operation
Energia
Enei1gia

(B) PricewaterhouseCoopers;

%
ownership
(nominal)

43.33%
48 98%
25.00%

12 88%
11.78%
1500%

40.00%
24 50%

Shareholder

Acciona
Subgiupo Acciona
Agua
Subgrupo Acciona
Urban Services

Subgnipo Acolona
Concessions
Acciona
Substupo Acciona
Concessions
Subgrupo Cesa

Subgrupo Eurovento

(C) KPMG; (D) Ernst & Young
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APPENDIX IV

CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

The changes in the scope of consolidation in 2013 were as follows:

Company

Acciona & Ghanim Bin Saad Alsaad
And Sons Group Holdings

Accivaa Agua Servitios ST

Acciona Energia Servicios México § De
RiDeC.V.

Acciona Enevgtja DO O

Acciona Energy Oceania Construction
Pty Ltd

Acciond Energy Poland Maimienance:
Servicss 3p Z 0300,

Acciona Engineering Qatar

Acciond EPC North America, LL.C

Acciona Facility Services Automocion
Aragon, S L.

Acciona Facility Services Automocion
Calalunya, § L 5
Acciona Facility Services Automocion
Centro, S.L.

Arviona Facihity Services Automocion
Esic, S L

Acciona Facility Services Automocion
Levante, S.L.

Acciona Facility Services Italia, SR L
Acciona Infraestructuras Residenciales
México S.A.

Agciona infraestructuras-Elecnon,
Hospital David, S A

Acciona Windpower South Africa (Pty)
Ltd

.-\gt'ms Piar De La Horadada , S L
Amherst Wind Power , L.P.

Baja Califorma Power, SA DeC v
Bokpoort Epc Consortium (Pty) Ltd.
Chinook Highway Dperations Inc

Consorcio Hospital Ege, 5.A.
Dessirolladora (e Tnfraestrucinras
Hispaw-Mexicanas, 5 A de CV
Firefly Investments 238 (Proprietary)
Limited

Qakleaf Investment Holdings 86
{Proprictaty) Lunited

Quarzazate Solar 1, S.A.R.L.

Pe Ingénto, S DeRL DeCV

San Solar Energy Facility (Propietary)
Limited

Soviedad San Rafael Hidraulica S A de
[\

Vinedos Viila Mayor, S.L.

Vijetroclektrana Cememica DOO

Location
Qatar

Madnd

Mexico

Croaca

Australia
: Polonia

Qatar
USA
Madrid

Madnd
Madrid
-Madnd
Madrid

Italy

Mexico
Panama
Sudafrica
Madiid
Canada
Mexico

Sudafrica
Canada

Chile

Mexico
Sudafrica
Sudafnca

Marruecos
Mexice
Sudafrica

Mewo

Madrid

Croacia

Main line
of business

Urban Services

Water treatment
Energy

Energy
Energy

Eneigy
Engineering

Eneigy
Utban Services

Urban Services
Urban Services
Ulban_Ser\vlce:ﬁ.
Urban Services

Urbap Setvices

Construction
Construction

Energy

Watel treatment
Energy
fZonstiuction
Construction

Concession
Opetation

Construction

Constiuction
Energy
Energy

Construction
Eneigy
Energy

Constiuction

Bodegas
Energy

Change
Inclusion

Inclusion

Inclusion

Incluston

Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusion

Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusicn

Inclusion

Inclusion
Inclusion
In¢lvaion

Inclusion
Inclugion

Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusion

[nelusion

2013 consolidation

methoa
Equity

Globit
Group
Gilabal
Globat

(ilobal

Global
(Hobal
Global

Glehal
Global
Global
Global

Global
Global

Global
Global

Global
Global
Piopoitional
Proportional
Piapottional

Proportional
(lobal

Proportional
Prapmtional

Proportional
Global
Global
Cilobal

Global
Global
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Cumpany

Vjetroelektrana Opor D.0O.0.

Acciona Isl Health Vicioiia Holdeo, Lid
Creuers del Port de Barcelona, S.A.
Ibira Consignatatios, § L

Olloquiegui France, Eurl

Retiro Inmanchles, S L,

Terratest Tecnicas Especiales, 5.A.
Woodizan Wind Fneigy Pty Ltd
Yeong Yang Windpower

The changes in the scope of consolidation in 2012 were as follows:

Company

Acciona Agua Brasil - Tratamento de
Agua, Ltd
Acvilong Agl.lu india Pyt Ltd

Acciona Energfa Costa Rica, S.A.

Accumi Enctpy Oceants Fuuascial
Servives Piv. Ltd

Acciona Energy South Africa Pty Lid

Acciona Ingenterfa Industisal, S A de .
C\
Acciona Windpower Brasil Lida.

Aspu Gabon. § A

Atll Concesionaria de La Generalitat de
Catalunya

Autovia del Almanzora, S.A
Consorcio Acciona Ossa, 5.A.
Consorvig Eolico Chiripa, S A
Constructora El Paso S.p.A.

Deep River Wind Faciliiy Piy Ltd
Empresa Operadora Atll, S.A.
Gestio Catalana dAiglies. S A
Gouda Wind Facility Pty Ltd
Fambersly Solar Facility Pty Ltd

Makrynoros Societe Anonyme Of
Production And Tradi

Maritine Glohal Operator. Lid
§.C. Autovia de La Plata, S.A.

S C Autovia Geredaga Elonio, 8 A

Sc Acciona Fagility Services
Automotive, Srl

Servicic 4z Tratamiento de Aguas Ptar
Caracal, 5 A

Sishen Solar Facility Pty Ltd

Trikorfa

Acciona Energia UK, LTD.

Acciona Energy Woodlawn Piy Ltd

Location

Croacia
Canadi
Barcelona
Thiza
Francia
Madnd
Madrid
Australia
South Korea

Lacation
Brazil

India
Costa Rica
Ausuaalia

South Afiica

Mexico

Brazil
Gabun

Barcelona
Seville

Chile
Costa Rica
Chile
South Africa
Barcelona
Barcelona
South Africa
Souih Africa

Greece

Matta
Madrid

Hilbso
Romania
Mzxicn

South Africa
Greeee
Wales
Australia

Main line
of business

Energy
Hospitals
Logistics Services
Logistics Services
Logistics Services
Prope_lty
Constrﬁction
Energy
Energy

Main line
of business

Water treatment

‘Watel treatment

Energy
Eneigy

Energy

Engmeermg

Energy

Engineermg
Walter treatrent
Concession

opeiatioin
Construction

Eneigy
Construction
Energy
Water treatment
Water treatment
Energy
Energy
Energy

Logistics services

Concession
operation
Concession
apetation

Urban Services

Wiler rreatment

Energy
Encigy
Energy
Eneigy

Change

Inclusion
Exclusion
Exclusion
Exclusion
Exclusion
Exclusion
Exclusion
Exclusion

Exclusion

Change
Inclusion

Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusion

[nclusion

Inclusion

[nclugion
Inclusion

Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusion

Inciusion

Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion
Inclusion

Inclusion
Inclusion
Exclusion

Exclusion

2013 consolidation
-method

Global
Propostivnal
Equity
Global
Global
Praportional
Equity
Equity
Global

2012 ponvolidation
inethod

Global
Global
Global
Global

Global
Global

Global
(Global
Equity method

Equity method

Proportional
Global
Global

‘Global
Global
Global
Global
Cilabal
Equity method

Global
Equity meihod

Pioportunal
Global
Equity method

Global
Equity method
Global
Global
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Company Location Main line Change 2012 consolidetion
' of business methed
Amherst Wind Power Lp Canada Energy Exclusion Global
Concestonana Universidad Politdenica Meako .Concession Exclusion Glohal
de San Lun operation i
Ecobryn, Llc USA Energy Exclusion Globat
Feovhelle Windd, Lic Usa Eneigy Exglusmn (ilobal
Ecodane Wind, Llc usa Energy Exclusion Global
Fealeeds Wind, Llc UsA Energy Excluzion Global
Ecomagnolia, Llc USA Energy Exclusion Global
Ecomont Wind. Lle USA Ene1gy Exc¢lusion Global
Ecopraire Wind, Llc USA Energy Exclusion Global
Econdge Wind, Tl USA Ene1gy Excluston Glohal
Ecorock Wind, Llc USA Energy Exclusion Global
Feovalop Wind, Lic USA Energy Exclusion Global
Merlin Quinn Wind Power Lp Canada Energy Exclusion Global
Servicing de Control de Transito y de Madnd Logistics services Exclusion Proportional
Navegaeion Aciea, S L 1
St. Lawrence, Llc USA Energy Exclusion Global
West Hill Wind Powei, Lic USA Encigy Exclusion Gilobal
Wind Walker USA Energy Exclusicn Global
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APPENDIX V

DETAIL OF CONSOLIDATED RESERVES AND TRANSLATION DIFFERENCES

(Amounts in thousands of euros)

Company

Acciona Airport Services Berlin GMBH
Acctona Awrport Services Frankfuit GMBH
Acciona Airport Services, S.A.

Acciona Urban Servives, S

Acciona ISL Health Victoria Holdeo LTD
Acciona Nouvelle Autoroute 30 INC

Autovia de los Vifiedos, S.A.

Cimtover, S L

Coefisa, S.A.

Zompafiis Internacional de Consttucciones, S.A

Concesionatia Universidad S. Luis Potosi S.A. de C.V.

Conscip Tiaza, S A
Copane Valores, S.L.
Dren, S.A.

Entidad Efinen, S.A.

Etime Facilihies, S A

Finanzas Dos, 5.A.

Finanzas y Cutera Uno

Genérica de Construcciones y Mantenimiento Industrial,

SA

- \Gran Hospual Can Misses, $ A

Hospital del Bajio

Inetime, $ A

Infraestructuras Radiales, S.A.

TWova Darseng Deportiva de Baia, S A
Packtiviiy, S.A.

Rendds, 8 A

Sdad. Concesionaria Hospital del Norte, S.A,
Sefincu, S L.

Sociedad Concesionaria A2 Tramo 2, S.A.
Soviedad Conceswonaria del Cagal de Navana, S A
Sociedad Concesionaria Novo Hospital de Vigo
Soeedad Concssionana Puente del Ebro, S A
Sociedad Levantina de Obras y Servicios, S.A.
Sowiedad Opesadora del Hospital ‘del Norte
Subgroup: Acciona water

Subgrenp! Acciona Concessions

Subgroup: Accicna do Brasil

Subgroup. Acciona Infiastisctute

2013
j Con_(solnq.\te_d
TEserves
(10,220)
1.156
18,241
16677
1,005
(40_8E7)
(21,268)
93
694
4912

(2,884)
11,587
344
4,347)
(391)
(2,147)
)]
77

(4,353)
12,957
913
(58,186)
(1,089)
(2,407)
(18,007)
3,099
1,007
(17,479)
18,1500
221
(7.798)
1,700
(17.564)
69,303
(19.212)
9,628
497 875

Translation
differences

(5,102)
(311)
252
(14,834)

2012

Conxolidated
reserves

(8,844)
(192
17,578
14,648
(10,468)
(43,876)
(22,.373)

S 03
706
1.877
(3.197)
10,469
261
(4,347)
@393
(1,123)
(7)
77

(6079
9,897
(382)

(59,777}
(453

(2,407)

(17,914)

(288)
998
(16,331)
(10.358)
75
(4,549)
1,828
{20.264)
39,871

(25.540)
9,989
28,390
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) 2013 2012
Company
Consolidated Translation -Consolidated
reserves differences reserves
Subgroup: Acciona Property (166,716) (8,768) (115,896)
Suhgroup: Acciona l eglistics (73,281} 592 (51.929)
Subgroup: Acciona Urban Services and Environment 363 (411} 1,072
Subgrovp. Bestinver 89,8394 - 82,457
Subgroup: Corporate -- Acciona Renewable Energy 736,397 (25,788) 517,087
Subgroun: Corporate -- Acciona Windpower 33,213 2,350 46,922
Subgroup: Corperate — Operation and Services 3,743 - 3,654
Subgroup: Finanzas y Cartera Dos (15) - (M
Subgroup: Hijos de Antonio Barcelé 39,514 345 39,820
Subgroup: MDC Anport Consult GMBH 3418 - {2.891)
Subgroup: Mostostal Warszawa (7,149) (1.864) 7,066
Subgroup: Tictres (16,258) - --{15.888)
Tem;mal de Contenedores Algeciras, S.A. (9.425) - (9,209)
Nibest Cuatio, £ A 1147 - T 1136
Tranvia Metropolita, S.A. 460 92
Tratamiento de Residuos de la-_Bqd_ SL (30.967) - (30.911)
Reserves for consolidation adjustments in the Parent 187,011 (633) 277,363
Consolidation adjustments ’ 1103.320) 2 (99,474
Total 1,292,912 (63,628) 1,077,056
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ACCIONA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(CONSOLIDATED GROUP)
MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR THE 2013 FINNANCIAL YEAR

Main Magnitudes

*  Revenues amounted to EUR 6,607 million, representing a 5.8% decline relative to the same

period last year, 2012.

EBITDA amounted to EUR 1,228 million, 14.1% lower than in 2013 sic for 2012].

Ordinary profit before tax reached EUR 29 million, 88.1% less than in December 2012.

* EBT was EUR - 2,174 million after accounting extraordinary losses of EUR - 2,203 million in
relation to the impairment of the value of renewable assets in Spain as a consequence of the
expected regulatory changes (RD-L 9/2013).

*  Net aftributable loss of EUR - 1,972 million.

*  The group’s net ordinary capital expenditure during 2013 amounted to EUR 381 million, 55.4%
less than in the same period last year.

*  Net financial debt decreased significantly from EUR 7,482 million at 31st December 2012 to
EUR 6,715 million at 3 1st December 2013.

Income Statement Data

(Millfon eura) Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13 Chg, (%)
Revenues 7 7,016 6,607 -5.8

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 Cha. (%)

Equity _ _ _ 7 5,508 3,399 -38.3
Net debt - _ 7,482 6 715 -10.2
Financiat geanng 136% 198% 62pp
(Miliion ecro) Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13 Chg. (%)
Ordlnary capital expendlture 854 381 -55.4

Operating Data

31-Dec-12  31-Dec-13  Chg. (%)

Infrastructure backlog (Million euro) 6,766 5,723 -15.4
‘Water backlog (Milion euro) T 11,326 'To,y‘“g'o T 53
Tote'll_an—dTr-lstalled capamty (MW) ST ) 7,096 o 7,-1-39 ) 0._6_ )
Total installed capacity (MW) " 'B437 8480 05
Total productlo_n(TWh_) —(Eaﬁeg)_ S ?0-37‘5 —“2'274§ —9.9
Average workorce © 32,905 34108 37

The results are presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
approved by the European Union.
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In 2013 ACCIONA created ACCIONA Service in order to provide further momentum to its position
within the services sector. This division will now encompass the facility services business, airport
handling, waste management, logistic services and others. The aim is to offer tailor-made solutions to
public and private clients through an integrated management model.

As a result, the divisional breakdown presented in this report has changed. The 2012 figures included
in this report have been adjusted to make them comparable to those of 2013.

ACCIONA reports in accordance with its corporate structure, which comprises five divisions:

* Energy: ACCIONA’s power business comprises commercial and industrial activities that range
from the construction of wind farms to the generation, distribution and marketing of its different
energy Sources.

* Infrastructure: it includes construction and engineering activities as well as transport and hospital
concession activities.

»  Water: it includes the construction of desalination, water and wastewater treatment plants, as well
as integral water services management from bulk water abstraction all the way to discharging
treated wastewater water to the environment. ACCIONA Agua also operates water concessions
across the entire water cycle.

= Services: it includes the activities of facility services, airport handling, waste management and
logistic services, amongst others.

= Other activities: this division includes the businesses of Trasmediterranea, real estate, Bestinver,
wineries and other activities.

EBITDA in 2013 fell by 14.1% relative to 2012, mainly due to the performance of the Energy and the
Infrastructure’s divisions:

* The Energy division reported a drop in EBITDA of 13.0% as a consequence of the regulatory
changes in Spain in force since January Ist 2013 (Law 15/2012 and RD-L 2/2013) as well as the
impact in the second half of 2013 of the RD-L 9/2013.

» The Infrastructure division saw its EBITDA fall by 49.6% relative to 2012 due to the drop in
construction activity in Spain as well as the negative results accounted in some international
construction contracts.

The group’s EBITDA margin stood at 18.6%, slightly lower than 2012 (20.4%) mainly due to lower
margins in the Energy and Infrastructure divisions.

Regarding the EBITDA breakdown by division, the main contributor was Energy (79.7%), followed
by Infrastructure (6.7%) and Water (4.4%). The rest of the divisions contributed 9.2%.

% EBITDA Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13
Energy 78.5% 79.7%
Infiastunciures 11 4% €7%
Water 29% 4.4%
Setvice 1.3% 1.7%.
Other activities 5.9% 1.5%
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Note: EBITDA contributions calculated before consolidation adfustments.

Net ordinary capital expenditure during the period amounted to EUR 381 million, including EUR 205
million of organic investment in ACCIONA Energy and EUR 198 million in the Infrastructure
division (mainly in concessions).

Net financial debt decreased significantly from EUR 7,482 million at 3 1st December 2012 to EUR
6,715 million at 31st December 2013. Such decrease was mainly due to capex moderation during the
period, to the good performance of the working capital in the last quarter of the year, to the positive
impact of the mark-to-market of derivatives, to the positive impact of the exchange rates evolution
relative to the euro has had on debt as well as to the cash generated by the divestments during the
period.
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2. CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(M Euri ) Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13 Chg (%)
Amount e Revenues Amount % Revemies
Revenues : 7.016 100.0%" 6,607 100.0%; -5.8:
i - P S sl s i e M _-: e R e .__."x..____,, — . e e |._-...-.-....-.-.-.

Other revenues ! 500 7.1%! 365 5.5 -27.2
,Changes in inventories of finished goods and work In progress ! -7 -0.1%% 4 0 1:] n.m.:;
Total Production Value = ! ___ 7,509  107.0% i_ 6976 __105.6%} 7.1
: i i

Cost of goods sold | -1,656 -za.s%l‘ -1,532 -23.2%§ -7.5;
Personnel expenses | -1,325 -18.9% -1,334 -20.2%{ 0.7
Other expenses -3,007 -44,1% -2,881 -43.6%; -7.0
DA L 1431 204% 1228 18.6%;  -14.1
Depreclation and amortisation . -716 -10.2% -764 -11.6%} 6.7]
Provisions -25 -D.4%l -389 -5.9%) 1438.2
Impairment of assets value | -56 -0.8%) -1,843 -27.9%; 3168.6,
‘Results on non cumrent assets | 11 0.2%| 2 0.0%; -77.5
‘Other galns or losses 2 D.U%i -6 -0.1%; nm|
EBIT 646 9.2%, -1,771 -26.8% n.m.
L I IR ot 2 i

Financial revenues 75 1.1%' 73 1.1%] =17
Financial expenses -517 -7.4% -473 -7.2% -8.4
Exchange differences {net) 29 0.4%l -19 -0.3%| n.m.
Var, provisions financial investrments 15 a.2%! -2 0.0% n.m
Income from associated companies 1 0.0%, 12 0.2% 1422 6|
‘Variation in fair value of financlal instruments -3 0.0%! 5 0.1%; n.m
EBT SN N 246 3.5%! -2,174 -32.9% n.m.
| ! |
'Income tax -61 -0.9%, 145 2.2% n.m.
Profit from Continuing Activitles D ... S __2_.6@[___-3,_028 -30.7%: n.m.
F : | . Jcs

Minority interest 5 0.1%! 56 0.8% 9743l
Attributable NetProfit | 189 2.7% -1972  -29.9%|  n.m.!

Revenues

Consolidated revenues decreased by 5.8% to EUR 6,607 million, mainly due to:

* The revenue reduction of the Infrastructure division (-17.8%) due to the decrease of the

construction business in Spain and in international area.

» The revenue growth of the Water division (+15.6%), boosted by the good performance in design

& construction activities as well as in operation & maintenance.

EBITDA

2013 EBITDA amounted to EUR 1,228 million decreasing by 14.1% vs. 2012 mainly due to the
decline of the Energy division (negative impact of the regulatory changes in Spain) and of the

Infrastructure division.

The EBITDA margin in 2013 amounted to 18.6%, 180 basis points lower than in 2012.
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EBIT

EBIT reached EUR - 1,771 million (vs. EUR 646 million in 2012). This is mainly explained by the
accounted impairment of value of assets and most of all, to the Spanish renewable assets after the
significant impact of the recent regulatory changes in Spain.

EBT

EBT amounted to EUR -2,174 million due to the mentioned extraordinary effects (EUR - 2,203
million).

Excluding this effect, Ordinary EBT would have amounted to EUR 29 million vs. EUR 245 million in

2012. From this decrease of EBT of EUR 216 million, a 75% corresponds to Energy division, mainly

due to the mentioned regulatory changes.

The extraordinary effects amounted to EUR 2,203 million, mainly:

« Positive effects: EUR 19 million. Capital gains from the sale of a company that owns a wind farm
in Korea and the concession of the Hospital Royal Jubilee in Canada (EUR 18 and EUR 1 million
respectively)

* Negative effects: EUR 2,223 million

Energy: EUR 1,675 million, mainly due to the impairment of goodwill (EUR 870 million) and
assets, due to successive regulatory changes in Spain (EUR 563 million)

Infrastructure: EUR 288 million, mainly due to the status of judicial insolvency process of a
client in Brazil, completed work pending certification in Poland as well as impairments of
several assets, mainly a concession in Brazil

— Real Estate: EUR 100 million, as a result of the impairment of Real Estate assets

Others: EUR 160 million mainly due to the impairment of value of the fleet of
Trasmediterranea

Attributable Net Profit

Attributable net profit amounted to EUR - 1,972 miltion vs. EUR 189 million in 2012.
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Results by Division

Revenues Jao-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13

(Million Euro) Amount % Revenues Amount % Revenues Cheg. (%)
Ene1gy 2,107 30 2,120 32 =
Infrastructures 3,326 47 2,733 41 (18
Water - 506 7 585 b4 16
Service 592 8 641 10 3
Dther activities 631 9 641 1 o
Consolidation Adjustments (146) (1) (113} 2) (23)
TOTAL: Revenues 7,016 100 6,607 100 (3]
EBITDA Jan-Dee 12 Jan-Dec 13
(Mitlion Euro) Amount % Revenues Amount . % Revenues Chg (%)
Energy 1,125 53 979 46 (13)
Infrastryctures 153 5 82, 3 50)
Water 41 8 54 9 31
Service 18 3 20 3 14
Other activities 86 14 93 14 ]

" Consohdation Adjustments 3) 2 = T
TOTAL. EBITDA 1,431 20 1,228 19 (14)
EBT - Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13
{Million Euro) Amount % Revenues Amount % Revenues Chg. (%)
Euergy 166 ] 7 (96}
Infrastructures s 70 2 28 (N (141)
Warer 23 3 4 4 8
Service 2 3 1 93
Cther antivities 4 ) 2l 3 (244)
Congolidation Adjustments (1) 1 2 2) n.m.
Ordinary EBT 245 4 29 (88)
Extraordinaries 1 - (2,203) (33) n,m,
TOTAL EBI 246 4 {2,174) (33) (986)

3.1. Energy
(Million Eure) Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13  Chag. (%)
Generation 1,857 1,951 5.1%
Industrial, development and others 250 169 -32.4%
Revenues 2,107 2,120 0.6%
W-Eenem; - - - 1,2-17-__. o —1-,10_9 - -8.9% o
Industrial, development and others -92 -130 41.3%
EBITDA 1,125 979 =13.0%
Margin (%) 53.4% 46.2%
Adj. Gen. Margin® (%) 77.4% 70.4%
eeT 166 7 -95.9%
Margin (%) 7.9% 0.3%

*The generation figure published includes electric generation revenues from the different technologies and from xerm'u.s'_pm;fded—amf athers,
I Generation margin excluding the energy commercialisation activity.

ACCIONA Energy revenues remained almost flat (+0.6%) reaching EUR 2,120 million.
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The positive performance of generation at the revenue level is noteworthy, with revenues increasing
by 5.1% as a result of higher total installed capacity in the last twelve months (105 MW) as well as a
higher wind and hydro load factors in Spain. These factors compensated the lower solar and
international wind load factors and above all, the severe impact of the successive regulatory changes in
Spain.

The EBITDA margin decreased by 7.2 percentage points to 46.2% vs. 53.4% in 2012. This is mainly
due to the negative impact of the mentioned regulatory changes which was only partially compensated
by the exceptional increase in the wind output in Spain (+10.0%) as well as hydro output (+57.7%).

Total effect in 2013 of regulatory changes of Law 15/2012 and RD-L 2/2013 already approved and in
force since 1st January 2013, as well as RD-L 9/2013 and draft of Ministerial Order with effect since
14th July 2013 amounted to EUR 246 million in the last period.

The regulatory changes that have had a negative impact on 2013 results are the following:

*  Law 15/2012:
— 7% generation revenues tax
— 22% hydro levy (643 MW of ACCIONA’s capacity entitled to 90% rebate)

— Solar thermoelectric: electricity output attributable to natural gas usage not entitled to a
premium

* RD-L 2/2013:
— Elimination of the *pool + premium” option
- Revision of the tariff indexation formula

» RD-L 9/2013 and drafts of Royal Decree of renewables and Ministerial Order with remuneration
parameters:

— Elimination of reactive energy and efficiency incentive
- New remuneration scheme for renewables, cogeneration and waste

EBT amounted to EUR 6.7 million, 95.9% lower vs. the same period last year, mainly due to the
regulatory changes mentioned above.

During 2013 ACCIONA Energy installed 105 MW of new wind capacity (30 MW in Spain and 33
MW in Poland and 42 MW in Costa Rica) and has sold 62 MW of wind power facilities in Korea.

EBITDA from the industrial activity, development and others is shown in the table below:

(Million Euro) Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13 Chg. (€m)

Biofuels & others -7 -2 +5
windpower -8 -52 -44
Development and construction -5 -31 -26
Consolidation adj. & other o L 4 w21
g;;BI:DA Ind., development & _92 130 38
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Breakdown of Installed Capacity and Production by Technology

31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13
(MW installed) Total Attributable W (GWhH produced) Total Attributable
Wind Spain 4,743 4,073 Wind Spain 11,411 9,626
Wind Intemational 2,397 2,199 wind Intemational 6,988 6,372
L
TotalWind 7,139 6272 Total Wind 18,399 15,9908
Hydro special regime 231 231 Hydro special regime 920 920
Conventionat Hydro 681 681 Conventional Hydro 1,963 1,963
Biomags 57 57 Binmass AR4 454
Solar PV 49 33 Solar PV as 63
Solar Thermoelectric 314 314 Solar Therrmoelectric 546 546
Cogeneration ) 9 ) 9 B Cogenera_tion i 28 26
Total o!:ha_r tech_nglogies 1,341 ] 1,325 Tota_l other I:ec_hnnlogles 4,005 3,972
-T;::tal Energy V o ;,489_ o 7,_596 . .T_t.?tal _E!‘lerg_v_ ___ ____ T “2_2,404 iy 19,970 B
Jotal Spain 5974 5303  Total Spain 15200 13,422
Total International 2,506 2,293 Total International 7,196 6,548
Acciona Infrastructure
(Million Euro) Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13 Chg. (%)
Construction & Engineering 3,211 2,598 -19.1%
Concessions 116 135 16.9%
Revenues 3,326 2,733 ~17.8%
Construction & Engineering 103 23 -77.5%
Concessions 60 59 -1.8%
EBITDA 163 82 -49.6%
Margin (%) 4.9% 3.0%
EBT 70 -28 n.m.
Margin (%) 2.1% -1.0%

Revenues amounted to EUR 2,733 million, 17.8% lower than in 2012 mainly due to a decrease in the
construction businesses in Spain and International. EBITDA amounted to EUR 82 million with a
margin of 3.0%.
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The decrease in EBITDA is mainly due to the losses accounted in some works mostly in Poland and
Canada.

The concession business reduced its EBITDA by 1.8% to EUR 59 million due to, among other factors,
the sale of the concession of the University of San Luis De Potosi in Mexico in the third quarter of
2012 (this concession generated and EBITDA of EUR 4.3 million in 2012) as well as the sale of the
Royal Jubilee Hospital (Canada) in the third quarter of 2013 (this concession generated an EBITDA of
EUR 3.8 million in 2012 and EUR 2.1 million in 2013). Excluding these two effects concession

business EBITDA would have increased by 8.3%.

At 31st December 2013 the construction backlog amounted to EUR 5,723 million, 15.4% lower than
in December 2012. The international backlog reached an overall weight of 54% out of the total
backlog vs. 52% twelve months ago.

Breakdown of Construction Backlog

{Million Euro) 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 Chg. (%) Weight (%95)

Civil works (Spain) 2,405 1,851 -23% 32%
Civil works (International) 2,909 2,554 -12% 45%
Total Civil Works 5,315 4,405 -17% 77%
Non Residential {Spain) 535 533 0% 9%
Non Residential (International) 434 278 -36% 5%
Non Residential 269 811 -16% 14%
Residential (Spain) 57 24 -58% 0%
Residential (International) 72 20 -73% 0%
Total Residential 129 44 -66% 1%
ANA Development (Spain) 0 0 0% 0%
ANA Development (International) 24 15 -326% 0%
Total ANA Development 24 16 -36% 0%
Other* 329 449 37% 8%
TOTAL 6,766 5724 ~15% 100%
Total Spain 3,271 2,646 -19% 46%
3,494 3,078 -12% 54%

Total International

* Gther includes: Construction auxiliary, Engineering and Other.

At 31st December ACCIONA held a portfolio of 22 concessions with a book value of EUR 1,772
million (EUR 420 million equity and EUR 1,352 million net debt). This includes the debts of the
current concessions held for sale (EUR 104 million) as well as the debt of the concessions accounted

by the equity method (EUR 735 million)

The sale of the concession of the Royal Jubilee Hospital in Canada was carried out last August.
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Acciona Water

{Million Euro) Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13 Chg. (%)

Revenues 506 585 15.6%

EBITDA o 41 54 305%
Margin (%) 8.2% 9.2%

_E_BT o 2_3__ 2-4 - ;:6% o

Margin (%) 4.5% 4.2%

The Water division delivered a good performance during 2013 achieving an increase in sales of
15.6%. Its EBITDA reached EUR 54 million helped both by the design & construction as well as the
operation & maintenance activities.

EBT stood at EUR 24 million compared to EUR 23 million in December 2012,

Water backlog as of December 2013 reached EUR 10,730 million, 5.3% lower than twelve months
ago due to the high level of work executed in the year.

Breakdown of Water Backlog

(Million Euro) 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 Cha. (%)
D&C 749 485 -35%
OaM 10,577 10,245 -3%
TOTAL 11,326 10,730 -5%
{Miltion Eurp) 31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 Weight (%)
Spain S,487 9,463 B8%
Intermational 1,839 1,267 12%
TOTAL 11,326 10,730 100%

Acciona Service

{Million Eurp) Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13 Chg. (%)

Revenues 592 641 8.3%

EBITDA 18 20 13.5%
Margin (%) 3.0% 3.2%

T 2 3 92,6%
Margin (%) 0.3% 0.5%

ACCIONA Service encompasses under a new division a series of services that the company was
already providing: airport handling services, facility services, logistic services, waste management and
others.
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The division reported an increase in revenues of 8.3% in 2013, reaching EUR 641 million boosted by
the higher volumes of facility services.

ACCIONA Service registered an EBITDA of EUR 20 million, 13.5% above 2012, thanks to a margin
improvement in 2013 within the activity of handling.

QOther Activitics
(Million Euro) Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13 Chyg. (%)
Trasmediterranea 437 419 -4.2%
Real Estate 68 66 -2.2%
Bestinver 81 113 39.4%
Winery 40 38 -4.9%
Corp. & other 5 5 0.7%
Revenues 631 641 1.6%
Trasrnedmrz;a - Z-BWL —_11 o -61.6%_—
Real Estate 3 3 0.7%
Bestinver 55 78 42.0%
Winery 5 5 0.9%
Corp. & other -5 -5 «7.5%
EBITDA 86 93 7.6%
Margin (%) 13.6% 14.4%
EBT a4 21 am.
Margin (%) -2.3% 3.2%

During 2013 this division, which includes Trasmediterranea, real estate, Bestinver, wineries and
others, reported revenues of EUR 641 million, 1.6% higher than in 2012.

Its EBITDA also increased to EUR 93 million, 7.6% above 2012 levels, mainly due to the improved
performance of Bestinver.

Trasmediterrinea:
Trasmediterranea reduced its EBITDA to EUR {1 million.

During the period, the number of passengers, vehicles and line metres increased by 5.6% and 6.0%
and 1.5% respectively. The cost of fuel per mile sailed decreased by 12.5%.

Passengers served 2,496,489 2,635,721 5.6

Cargo handled (lane metres) 5,083,858 5,161,963 1.5

Vehicles 594,502 630,212 6.0
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Real Estate:
Real Estate revenues amounted to EUR 3 million, in line with 2012.

31-Dec-12 31-Dec-13 Chag. (%)
Housing stock 912 828 -9.2

During the last twelve months, ACCIONA has handed over 125 homes and initiated the construction
of 64 premium homes in Mexico. The housing stock was reduced by 84 units during the last twelve
months from 912 in December 2012 to 828 in December 2013.

Bestinver:
Fund manager Bestinver’s assets under management reached EUR 8,930 million at 31st December

2013, an increase of 51.0% relative to December 2012,

Bestinver reported revenues of EUR 113 million (+39.4%) and EBITDA of EUR 78 million (+42.0%)
vs. 201Z2.
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31-Dec-12 31-Dac-13
Amount %% Total Amount o Total
|
:Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible assets 11,285 56.9 ! 9,515 56.7
Financlal assets 279 1.4 t 345 2.1 i
Goodwil | 1,088 53 | w7 0.6
Other non-current assets 1,359 6.9 * 1,568 9.3 |
i I
NON-CURRENT ASSETS i 13,971 70.5 ! 11,526 687 !
'Inventories i 1,183 6.0 1,047 6.2
|Accounts receivable ! 2,371 120 | 1,859 11.1
Other current assets | 300 1.5 E 279 1.7
Current financial assets {370 1.9 l 369 2.2
Icash and Cash equivalents L1,196 6.0 1,248 7.4
Assets held for sale o428 2.2 I 456 2.7
| | | |
| CURRENT ASSETS | 5,848 295 | 5,258 3.3 |
TOTAL ASSETS 19,819 100.0 16,784 100.0
!—C—apltal 57 03 57 03 |
|Reserves 4,987 252 . 5,152 30.7 |
Profit attributable to equitly holders of the parent 189 1.0 -1,972 -11.8
Own Securities -4 0.0 -6 0.0 l
Interim dividend 0 0.0 0 0.0 l
!Equrrv ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT | 5,230 264 | 3,230 19.2
I ! |
MINORITY INTERESTS l 279 1.4 I 169 1.0 '
EQU o ‘ 5,508 278 | 3,399 20.3
|__,._____,_-__,,.,.._ , — a2 S IR e
‘ |
Interest- bearing bomowings | 6,939 35.0 ! 6,240 37.2 !
Other non-currrent liabilities E 1,932 9.7 '. 1,882 11.2
NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES ] 581 _44.8 ! 8,123 48.4
| | | | |
IInterest— bearing bommowings i 2,109 10.6 : 2,092 12,5 i
‘Trade payables ! 2,335 11.8 | 2,207 3.1 !
|Other cument liabilities I 689 35 | 680 4.1
|Liabllities associated to assets held for sale ! 308 1.6 | 282 1.7
CURRENT LIABILITIES l 5,440 27.5 5,261 31.3
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 19,819 100.0 16,784 100.0
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Attributable Equity

ACCIONA’s attributable equity at 31st December 2013 amounted to EUR 3,230 million vs. EUR
5,230 million in December 2012. This decrease is due to the losses incurred during the year as a result
of the impairments in the period.

Net Financial Debt

Net financial debt decreased significantly from EUR 7,482 million at 31st December 2012 to EUR
6,715 million at 3 1st December 2013. Such decrease was mainly due to capex moderation during the
period, to the good performance of the working capital in the last quarter of the year, to the positive
impact of the mark-to-market of derivatives, to the positive impact of the exchange rates evolution
relative to the euro has had on debt as well as to the cash generated by the divestments during the
period.

AR Eare) 31-Dec-12 3i-Doc-13 !
! ; Chy. (%)
Amodat %5 Total Ampunt 25 Tatal
Cash + Cash aguivalents 1,566 n.m. 1,617 n.m. 3.2
Interest-bearing borrowings without recourse 6,086 67.3 5,548 66.6 -8.8
Interest-bearing borrowings with recourse 2,961 32.7 2,784 33.4 -6.0
Tbtal interest-bearlng debt 9,048 100.0 8,332 100.0 -7.9
Net financial debt_ - 748 7 ‘ens o2

* Financial debi includes obhgalmm and bonds.

Gearing during the last quarters developed as follows:

31-Dic-12 31-Mar-13  30-Jun-13 30-Sep-13  35-Dec-13
Net Debt 7,482 7,549 7 420 7 373 6,715

Geanng {Net Debt / Equltv) (%) 136% 136% 136% 134% 198%

Capital Expenditure

Net ordinary capital expenditure in ACCIONA’s divisions amounted EUR 381 million in the period,
55.4% less vs. 2012, It is to be highlighted that ACCIONA Infrastructure incurred in a capital
expenditure of EUR 198 million, mainly in the concession business while ACCIONA Energy invested
EUR 205 million, a 53.5% lower than the same period last year.

The table below shows the breakdown of capital expenditure by division:

(Million Euro) Investments Investments
Jan-Dec 12 Jan-Dec 13
Energy 440 205
Infrastructures 343 198
Water 83 30
Service -10 10
Other Activities -2 -61
_Or;d_;na_ry_N_e-t—E-apex_ S N 854 B 3 381_w o
Extraordinary divestments 24 -104
TotalNetcapex s a8
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MATERIAL INFORMATION, DIVIDEND AND SHARE DATA

Significant communications to the stock market

*  3rd of January 2013: ACCIONA informs on the administrative appeal filed in connection
with the ATLL contract

ACCIONA has become aware of the ruling issued on January 2nd, 2013 by the Catalonian
Contractual Administrative Agency by virtue of which it partially estimates the special appeal
filed by Sociedad General de Aguas de Barcclona (AGBAR) against the decision of the
Department of Territory and Sustainability of the Generalitat de Catalunya awarding the Ter-
Llobregat water supply network public contract for 50 years, for the construction,
improvement and maintenance of the Ter-LLobregat water supply network installations,

including treatment, storage and water transportation.

- Said contract had been awarded on November 6th, 2012 to the consortium “ATLL

Concesionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya SA” (led by ACCIONA Agua (39%) together
with other shareholders such as the Brazilian investment bank BTG Pactual (39%) and other
minority companies representing individual investors). The signing of the contract between
the consortium and the Generalitat de Catalunya took place last December 27th, 2012, when
EUR 298,561,830 were paid out as the first payment of the concession levy.

*  10th of January 2013: Interim dividend

On the 10th of January 2013, the Board of Directors of ACCIONA approved the distribution
of an interim dividend of EUR 0.90 per share against the results of the fiscal year 2012 that
should be approved in the next Annual General Shareholders meeting. The total amount paid
as interim dividend amounted to EUR 51,533,595 and its payment was carried out on 21st

January 2013.

* 17th of January 2013: Euro Commercial Paper Programme

ACCIONA has formalised a Euro Commercial Paper Programme for 4 maximum amount of
EUR 500 million that has been registered on the Irish Stock Exchange. By means of this
program the company will be able to issue Euromarket debt instruments due between 7 and
364 days, allowing a possible diversification on alternatives ways of financing Capital

Markets.

« 28th of February 2013: Formulation of Annual Accounts and Management Report and 2012
dividend proposal

— On the 28th of February 2013, the Board of Directors of ACCIONA resolved to formulate the

Annual Accounts and Management Report (Individual and Consolidated of the Group it
dominates) of 2012, and to propose to the Annual General Shareholders Meeting the
allocation of 2012 profits. The Board proposes to allocate EUR 151,737,807 to dividends of

which EUR 51,533,595 were paid on 21st of January 2013,

28th of February 2013: ACCIONA’s Corporate Governance report

- On the 28th of February 2013, the company submitted to the CNMV the Annual Report of

Corporate Governance 2012.
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*  27th of March 2013: ACCIONA informs on the interim measures filed within the appeal proceedings
instituted in connection with the ATLL contract

The Catalonia Superior Court of Justice has rejected the interim measures filed by Sociedad
General de Aguas de Barcelona S.A. within the administrative appeal proceedings number
13/2013, against the formalisation of the contract for the management and public service of
the ATLL water supply network, therefore maintaining the validity and full force and effect of

the contract

Additionally, the High Court of Justice for Catalonia, has rejected the interim measures filed
by ACCIONA Agua, S.A., within the administrative appeal proceedings number 28/2013
against the ruling of the Catalan Contractual Administrative Agency (OARCC) on 2 January,
2013. Therefore the Catalonia Superior Court of Justice has rejected the suspension of the
eventual execution of the OARCC resolution that, in any case, ACCIONA does not
understand as directly executive. ACCIONA Agua, S.A. will appeal that decision at the

Supreme Court.

These decisions taken by the High Court of Justice for Catalonia on the interim measures
ruling do not prejudge the merits of the matter.

As a consequence, ATLL Concessionaria de la Generalitat de Catalunya, S.A., company 39%
participated by ACCIONA Group, will continue to provide the services related to the Ter-

Llobregat water supply contract
*  24th of April 2013: Official announcement of the Annual General Meeting

— On the 24th of April 2013, the company informed the CNMV (Spanish Stock Market
Regulator), of the Annual General Meeting announcement for the 5th of June 2013 at the first
call, or the 6th of June 2013 at the second call and submitted the proposed agreements.

= 6th of June 2013: Annual General Meeting — Approval of the agreements:

On the 6th of June 2013, the Annual General Meeting approved, among others, the following
agreements:

To approve a EUR 1.75 complementary dividend per share to be paid as per the Ist of July
2013.

- To approve the amendment of the Article 31° of the Articles of Association (Term limits and
remuneration):

o Directors shall have a term of three years, and may be re-appointed one or more times

& Directors' remuneration shall consist of a fixed annual amount for membership of the
Board of Directors and any Committees of which the director is a member
The remuneration for the membership of the Board of Directors shall be compatible
with any other remuneration to which the director may be entitled, subject to a proposal
by the Appointments and Remuneration Committee and a decision by the Board of
Directors, for performing other functions in the Company

<. Executive directors may also be paid in the form of shares or stock options or by any
other remuneration system referenced to the share price
The Company may arrange third-party liability insurance for its directors in the usual
conditions and commensurate with the Company's circumstances

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 156 of 169 April 5th, 2014



EDWARD EWING - INTER-2"E JURADO
Calle Francisco Madariaga, 2 - 4°C / 28017 MADRI[

z_g'_ ar: 918 514 253 - @: edward@sande.es

Certified Translation

~ To approve the annual allocation of the Board of Directors in concept of statutory

remuneration of EUR 1,503,000 which amount shal! remain in force until the General of
Shareholders decides to amend it, the amount might be reduced by the Board of Directors

To appoint Mr. Juan Carlos Garay lbargaray as independent non-executive director, and the
re-election of Ms. Consuelo Crespo Bofill, Mr. Carlos Espinosa de los Monteros and Bernaldo
de Quirds as independent non-executive directors

To approve the allocation of shares and buying option rights to the top management of
ACCIONA and its group, including the executive directors, as part of the variable
remuneration for 2012 contained in the valid “Plan 2009-2014”. Additionally:

= To extend the validity of the plan until 2014

¢ To increase the maximum numbers of shares available, currently established in
300,000 to 335,000 shares
To establish the value of the shares to be delivered to participants will be the closing
price in the last stock market session in the month of March of the year in question,
which will also be the strike price of any options allocated

To approve the 2012 Sustainability Report.

26th of September 2013: ACCIONA informs about the composition of the group’s Executive
Committee

- On the 26th of September, ACCIONA published a statement via the securities regulator

CNMYV informing the market about the composition of the group’s Executive Committee
following the changes in the group’s senior management.

The Board of Direcotrs of ACCIONA comprises:

The Executive Directors:
. Mr. José Manuel Entrecanales Domecq, President
¢ Mr. Juan Ignacio Entrecanales Franco, Vice-President

and the following Directors:

o Mr. Carlos Arilla de Juana

+  Ms. Carmen Becerril Martinez
% Mr. Pio Cabanillas Alonso

«»  Mr. Alfonso Callejo Martinez

v Ms. Macarena Carrion Lopez de la Garma
<, Mr, Luis Castilla Camara

- Mr. Pedro Martinez Martinez

¢ Mr. Rafael Mateo Alcala

= Mr. Joaquin Mollinedo Chocano
<, Mr. Juan Muro-Lara Girod

s Mr. Jorge Vega-Penichet Lopez

* 11th of November 2013: ACCIONA Energy executed an agreement for transmission of the
Yeong Yang 1 wind farm

Acciona Energy, through one of its affiliates Acciona Energia Inversiones Corea, S.L., has
executed a sale and purchase agreement with a company wholly owned by a South Korean
investment fund over the whole share capital of Yeong Yang Wind Power Corporation, who
owns an operating wind farm named “Yeong Yang I” (61.5 MW) located in the province of
Gyeongsangbuk-Do (Korea)
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— The transaction’s consideration amount is 162 billion KRW (EUR 114 m) including a net debt
of 28 billion KRW (EUR 20 m)

*  29th of November de 2013: ACCIONA renews the Euro Commercial programme with a
total amount of EUR 500 m

-~ Through this programme the Company may issue Notes in the Euromarket with a maturity
between 15 and 364 days, enabling the diversification into alternative ways of financing in the

capital market
* 12th December 2013: Interim Dividend

— The Board of Directors of ACCIONA, S.A. has made the following agreement:
» Not to distribute any interim dividend for the results in the 2013 financial year

= 18th of December de 2013: Acciona Energia Internacional S.A., has entered an agreement
for the transfer of 18 wind farms in Germany

Acciona Energia Internacional S.A. has entered into a sale and purchase agreement with two
companies of the Swisspower Renewables AG Group for the total share capital of Acciona
Energie Windparks Deutschland GmbH, Acciona Energie Deutschland GmbH and
Volksmarsdorfer Windarkbetriebs GmnH owners of 18 operating wind farms located in
Lower Saxony and Branderburg (Germany), with a total attributable capacity of 150.3 MW
and a weighted average life of 8 years. The sale by Acciona Group was finally completed on
the 23rd of January, 2014, and the capital gain obtained was EUR 27 million.

isande.es

=

(M

The transaction’s consideration amounts to EUR 157 m. The net debt with financial
institutions of the companies amounts to EUR 85 m

Material Information in 2014 to date:

* 16th of January 2014: ACCIONA informs of the issue of the convertible bonds into shares

The Company has approved the definitive terms and conditions of the Issue set out below:

s The initial size of the Issue is EUR 325 m, which may be increased up to an aggregate

principal amount of EUR 50 m

It will accrue a fixed annual coupon of 3% payable semi-annually, commencing on the

30th of July, 2014.

¢ The initial conversion price has been set at EUR 63.02 per ordinary share, which
represents a premium of approximately 32.5% over the volume-weighted average
price of the shares during the period between launch and the setting of the final terms
of the Issue.

¢, The number of ordinary shares to be delivered for all the Convertible Bonds, would
amount to approximately 5,157 m shares, representing approximately 9.00% of the
current share capital of the Company.

«+ The convertible Bonds will mature on the fifth anniversary of the Closing Date, when
they will be redeemed at par at maturity unless previously converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

¢ Subscription for the Convertible Bonds is expected to take place between the 29th and
30th of January 2014, the latter being the closing date.
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27th of January 2014: ACCIONA informs that it has partially exercised the over-allotment

option granted to the joint bookrunners on behalf of the Issue Underwriters, in relation with
the Convertible bonds Issuance.

It is reported that the managers of the Issue, have partially exercised, in the amount of EUR

17 m, the over allotment option granted by the Company to increase the size of the Issue by up
to EUR 50 m.

— Consequently, the final size of the Issue is EUR 342 m.

The number of ordinary shares to be delivered upon conversion of all the Convertible Bonds,
taking into account the initial conversion price (EUR 63.02) and the final size of the Issue

(EUR 342 m), would amount to approximately 5,427 m shares representing approximately
9.48% of the Company’s share capital currently issued and outstanding.

Dividend

On the 6th of June 2013 the Annual General Meeting of ACCIONA, S.A. resolved on the distribution
of EUR 1.75 per share complementary dividend against the results of the 2012 financial year.

This dividend along with the EUR 0.9 interim dividend per share paid by the company last January,

totals EUR 2.65 per share paid against the results of the 2012 fiscal year. Total dividend distributed
against 2012 results amounted to EUR 152 million.

Share data and share price performance

ACCIONA Share Price Evolution (EUR/share)
68
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48 -
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I
28 4—- Y e e ! T e
Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13

Jul-13  Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13

Key Share Data

Price at 31°' Decermber 2013 (€/share) 41.77
Price at 1°* January 2013 (€/share) 56.21
Low in FY 13 (19/07/2013) 34.06
High in FY 13 (10/01/2013) 64.76
Average daily trading (shares) 264,895
Average daily trading (€) 13,245,595
Nurmber of shares 57,259,550
Market capitalisation 31°" December 2013 (€ million) 2,301
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Share Capital Information

As of the 31st of December 2013, the share capital of ACCIONA amounted to EUR 57,259,550
divided into 57,259,550 shares with a face value of EUR 1 each.

The group’s treasury shares as of the 31st of December 2013 amounted to 140,440 shares which
represent 0.25% of the share capital.

Main Risks associated with the activities of the ACCIONA Group

Acciona’s presence in diverse business areas and multiple countries with different regulatory,
political and social contexts means that there are a number of widely varying risks that need
to be identified and managed.

The Risk Management System is designed to identify potential events that might affect the
organisation; to manage its risks through the establishment of internal treatment and control
systems that ensure the probability and impact of these events occurring are kept within the
established tolerance levels; and to provide reasonable assurance in relation to the
achievement of strategic business objectives.

The main risks that might affect the achievement of ACCIONA’s goals are as follows:
Economic and financial risks

Those risks that, when they materialise, have a direct impact on the company’s operating
statements: mainly fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and financial markets,
changes in the prices of raw materials, liquidity, cash flow, late payment or loss of clientele.

ACCIONA is engaged in a growing process of internationalisation, implying exposure to
exchange rate risk in transactions with the currencies in which it invests and operates.

Interest rate risk is particularly material with regard to the funding of infrastructure projects,
in concession contracts, in the construction of wind farms or solar plants and other projects
maturing in the longer term where the variation in interest rates has a strong impact on their
profitability.

ACCIONA is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in the price of construction procurement for
its infrastructure, water and electricity-generation facility construction businesses and fuel
procurement in its road and sea transport businesses.

Credit risk is mitigated through the negotiation of operations with solvent third parties, using
for the purpose criteria generally accepted on the market (ratings, historical commercial
relations with the counterparty, etc.). In addition, depending on the type of operation or the
type of counterparty, the negotiations involve obtaining sufficient assurances to mitigate the
risk of financial losses in the event of any non-compliance.

The proper management of these risks is achieved through the search for natural hedging
situations between income and expenditure and between assets and liabilities. When this is
not possible, hedging operations and derivative contracting are carried out with the aim of
avoiding extreme volatility in the operating results. Nonetheless, these transactions do not
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guarantee the totally effective hedging when it comes to eliminating completely the exposure
to changes in interest rates and exchange rates for foreign currencies, which may have a
negative impact on the Company’s financial situation and results.

Furthermore, a hedge scheme is established for material risks through complementary
insurance mitigating those situations in which the general risks incurred, when they
materialise, do not impact the Group’s financial solvency.

Strategic Risks

Those with consequences entailing the failure to achieve the Company’s goals and reducing
its growth. These risks include organisational changes, investments and divestments, threats
from competitors, economic, political and regulatory changes, impacts of new technologies,
research and development.

ACCIONA minimises these risks through its own strategy and business model by applying
adequate sectoral and geographic diversification of its businesses; the performance of
exhaustive market research, surveys of competitors and the countries in which its activities
are carried out; as well as through the encouragement of Research and Development.

The risk originating from changes in the regulatory framework, mainly in the electricity
industry, is analysed jointly by the Regulation Department and ihe Economic-Financial
Department, which are constantly monitoring this situation.

Prior to any decision on investing or divesting in a business, there are preventive checks in
place and an assessment of the associated risks on the basis of the business’s projected
economic information; this information must be approved by the Investment Committee
having regard for certain parameters of business volume and profitability depending on the
associated risk.

Operational Risks

Those related with processes, persons and products. These risks are related to compliance
with regulatory, legal and contractual requirements, control systems and procedures, the
supply chain, auxiliary services, information systems, productivity of employees or the loss of
key personnel.

In each business area, specific systems are established to cover all the business requirements,
to systematise and document processes, and to manage quality, operations, planning and
financial oversight.

Conducting the Group’s own business activities sometimes requires the holding of permits,
licences and authorisations. Delays in obtaining these and adverse changes in the political and
regulatory context in countries where the Group operates may cause delays in the start of
operations or deficiencies in the execution of works and the rendering of services.

ACCIONA has put in place an updated Code of Conduct establishing the basic principles and
commitments that must be respected and complied with by executives and employees of the
divisions as well as by suppliers and third parties working with the Company in the exercise
of their activities.
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Chance Risks

Those risks related to damage caused to the Company’s assets and people with potential
negative impact on the Company’s performance, such as a fire, an explosion, natural disasters,
environmental pollution, harm to third parties or employment-related risks.

The Corporate Crisis Management Policy allows the Company to identify systematically the
risks that might give rise to an environmental incident and defines the processes, guidance on
behaviour and responsibilities in the event of crisis situations, other legal and internal
corporate requirements and are subjected to continuous review and monitoring.

With respect to the Management of Environmental Risks, it is necessary to highlight the
production of an Environmental Risk Audit and the Pilot Project on Environmental Risk
Management implemented during 2013.

The management of Employee Health and Risk Prevention is one of the priorities of all the
Divisions and lines of business: a large part of our activities are included among those
considered by legislation to be high risk (especially the Infrastructure and Energy divisions).
Prevention activities are carried out through the Management Systems under international
premises certified to OHSAS 18001 standard.

Sustainability

ACCIONA promotes an entreprencurial model that strives to anticipate and manage
responsibly the risks and challenges derived from sustainable development, as well as

responding successfully to the new opportunities arising therefrom in a context of economic,
social and environmental transformation.

ACCIONA deploys its sustainability strategy through the 2015 Sustainability Master Plan
(PDS 2015). This is a roadmap integrating the sustainability-related initiatives in the
Company and sets goals in the areas of Innovation, Context, Society, People, Value Circle
and Good Governance, as well as commitments with regard to Dialogue with Stakeholders,
Dissemination and Leadership, and Accountability. In addition, this Plan includes a criterion

for engaging people and bringing them closer to the business, creating competencies and
capacities aimed at sustainable development,

Some of the goals of the PDS 2015 in the different areas, among others, include:

e In Innovation, the PDS involves a total investment of EUR 500 million in R&D+I
during the period from 2010 to 2015.

e In the Context area, the Company has set quantitative targets for 2015 such as
improving the ratio of CO; emissions avoided by 15% with respect to the CO;
emissions generated (base 2009) and increasing the net positive contribution of its
water footprint (an improvement of x5 compared to 2009).

e In the area of People, one of the goals for 2015 is a 20% reduction in the frequency

index with respect to 2011. Attempts are also being made to increase the scope of the
variable remuneration related to sustainability.
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e In Society, the goal for 2015 is to implement a methodology for assessing social
impact of all international projects by the strategic divisions.

* In the Value Circle area, the Company is working to improve the performance of the
supply chain in terms of sustainability and to foster and promote responsible
procurement through tender processes that incorporate sustainability criteria.

e In Good Governance, the aim is to roll out improvement measures gradually.

o To consolidate the position of ACCIONA as a benchmark for sustainability is the
main commitment of the Dissemination and Leadership area.

e The PDS also reflects the undertaking to consider the expectations of the Company’s
main stakeholders in the management of sustainability practices.

o Furthermore, the Company has committed to reporting on the performance of its
sustainability practices to its main stakeholders in a transparent, rigorous manner to
the highest international standards.

Since 2009, sustainability-related actions and undertakings are promoted by the Board of
Directors’ Sustainability Committee, the organ in charge of supervising and approving the
goals of the Sustainability Master Plan.

The various sustainability committees created in the main divisions are, in turn, the route for
bringing sustainability closer to business areas. Their function is to drive and monitor specific
initiatives in these divisions within the framework of the PDS.

The Company’s progress in the achievement of its targets and the actions carried out during
2013, together with the challenges faced in terms of sustainability, are described in detail in

the Sustainability Report and the Company’s web site (http://www.acciona.es/sostenibilidad).
Some of the milestones achieved during the last year are summarised below.

In order to strengthen the Company’s framework for ethics and integrity, in April 2013, the
Board of Directors’ Sustainability Committee approved the Policy Manual, which updates
pre-existing policies an adds new ones to reflect the action principles applicable in economic,
social and environmental matters. The Manual includes policies on Sustainability (this acts as
the over-arching policy establishing the principles that frame the rest); Innovation; Anti-
corruption; Anti-monopoly; Risk Management; Quality; Human Rights; Human Resources
and the Prevention of Occupational Risks; Social Action; the Environment; Biodiversity; and
the Fight against Climate Change.

Furthermore, training of employees continued in connection with the matters contained in the
Code of Conduct, with the launch of the on-line course in five languages apart from Spanish,
specifically in English, French, Italian, German and Brazilian Portuguese. In this way,
training extends internationally to employees in Mexico, Chile, Brazil, Canada, Australia and
Italy.

In the employment sphere, it should also be noted that the scope of the programme for linking
variable remuneration to the achievement of sustainability targets was extended during 2013,
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In 2013, the Company has strengthened its undertaking to evaluate and manage the social
impact of its projects through implementation of the methodology in several projects by the
main divisions in such countries as Brazil, Chile, Costa Rica, Morocco, Mexico and South
Africa and in works of different types: construction of a bypass, a desalinisation plant, a solar
thermal plant, a photovoltaic plant, wind parks and the fitting out of an electricity generator at
a dam. Furthermore, in order to speed up the management and assessment of social impacts,
ACCIONA is working on the development of tools to characterise projects according to their
social risk and on dissemination guidelines scheduled to be rolled out in 2014,

Progress has also been made in the consolidation of the ACCIONA Foundation’s
Microenergy project to facilitate basic access to sustainable electricity in isolated rural areas.
In Peru, the installation of 1,700 home-based photovoltaic systems has been completed in the
“Light at Home” project and the first electrification installations have been commissioned at
community centres as part of the “Cajamarca Community Power” initiative. In Mexico, on the
other hand, the first small home-based systems have been supplied in 10 locations along the
Tehuantepec Isthmus in the “Oaxaca Light at Home” project.

As part of its commitment to society and the promotion of sustainability, ACCIONA held its
second annual Volunteering Day during which 350 employees took part in Sustainability
Workshops reaching out to approximately 7,000 schoolchildren between 7 and 11 years of
age in seven countries simultaneously.

As for the supply chain, the Company continues to support strongly the training of its
suppliers and contractors, as well as the encouragement of responsible procurement with
identification and inclusion on the catalogue of new sustainable products and services.

In an exercise of transparency and integration of information in response to the expectations
of the Company’s stakeholders, ACCIONA published the 2012 Integrated Report applying
the framework of the International Integrated Reporting Committee.

Analysis of materiality in sustainability matters

In order to maintain an attitude of continuous monitoring of new trends and challenges in
sustainability matters, and to delve deeper into the social, environmental and governance
aspects of relevance for the business, ACCIONA has drawn up a materiality survey.

In 2013, the analysis of materiality starts from the study carried out the previous year, probing
deeper into those matters identified as relevant and extending to subjects of interest according
to a variety of sources: stakeholders, investors and press releases.

Once identified, these matters were classified according to the areas defined in the 2015
Sustainability Master Plan (PDS) and them prioritised by area within the PDS and by business
to determine the materiality of each topic. During this year’s analysis , the spotlight has fallen
on six of the main countries in which ACCIONA is active (Spain, Brazil, Mexico, Australia,
Chile and Canada), as well as on the Company’s main businesses: Energy, Infrastructures,
Water and Services.

The results obtained were assessed and validated internally through the sustainability
committees of ACCIONA’s different businesses who provided the Company’s viewpoint.
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This has enabled the creation of a matrix with the material issues depending on the
importance of each subject for the Company and its stakeholders.

Finally, in order to review the material issues, several external consultations were made with
experts and representatives of the Company’s different stakeholders (international
organisations, NGOs, academia and the public administration, among others).

With respect to the key topics identified for ACCIONA’s main lines of business, the most
relevant subject in both Acciona Infrastructure and Acciona Service was Occupational Health
and Safety, whereas for Acciona Water the most important areas were the management,
policies and risks relating to water. In Acciona Energy, topics relating to climate change
strategy and impacts were the most relevant.

uality, Environment

For ACCIONA, the fight against Climate Change, the sustainable use of Natural Resources
and the protection of Biodiversity make up the principal thrusts of its environmental strategy.

Even though the Company has reduced the CO, emissions generated in its production activity
by a factor of 24 times, ACCIONA has continued developing during 2013 the measures
necessary to reduce and offset its global environmental footprint.

These efforts have been acknowledged by the main international benchmarks in 2013:

- ACCIONA obtained the highest score in Climate Strategy and Reporting of
Environmental Indicators and Initiatives, according to the valuation by the Dow
Jones World Sustainability Index and also achieved an overall environmental mark
higher than 93% of all the electricity companies assessed.

- The CDP organization (previously the Carbon Disclosure Project) honoured
ACCIONA as a leader in the fight against climate change by awarding it the
highest grade possible in environment performance for a business,

- Asrecently as January 2014, CDP also included ACCIONA its highest category as
a Sustainable Supplier, where it now stands alongside the top 80 most sustainable
companies in the world as a supplier of products and services.

The Company’s main achievements in environmental matters during 2013 have been:

- 15 million tonnes of CO; avoided, meaning that ACCIONA avoids 24 times the
amount of CO; generated in its production activities.

- For the sixth year in a row, a reduction in the figure for emissions generated in its
production activities. The Company has emitted 0.6 million tonnes of CO,, a fall
of 21% with respect to the previous year.

- As for water, the Company’s balance sheet is clearly favourable for the
environment, with a positive water footprint of over 562 million cubic metres
across the globe, a figure equivalent to the annual domestic consumption of 11
million inhabitants.

- Almost 30% of the Company’s total water consumption comes from reused or

recycled water.
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- The Company’s commitment to reduce Greenhouse Gas emissions (GHG) has
been extended to its supply chain, where it has calculated the carbon footprint of
its top 1,000 suppliers, representing 25% of the Group’s total procurement.

- Development of new initiatives within the framework of the Biodiversity
Compensation and Improvement Programme.

- Promotion of services with environmental compensation, with the organisation of
carbon-neutral events for both its clients and for its own events, some of them of
international relevance such as the event held on the occasion of the final of the
Champions” League in London in May, 2013.

In 2013, the Board of Directors approved three specific policies in the environmental area: a
Climate Change Policy, an Environment Policy and a Biodiversity Policy.

Progress has also been made in the implementation and certification of quality and
environmental management systems in all of ACCIONA’s divisions. These systems, which
respectively comply with the ISO 9001 and ISO 14001 international standards, enable process
management and take into account the environmental aspects relating to our activities at all
stages, with an approach based on continuous improvement. The Company has also increased
its roll-out of ISO 50001 energy efficiency systems at Acciona Water centres. All these
management systems provide a tool for monitoring operational and environmental risks.

ACCIONA has put in place an organisational siructure that faciiitates the integration of
environmental and quality variables into the operations of its businesses and guarantees
enforcement of the policies, principles and strategies related to these matters.

This structure has been strengthened through the Training efforts made by the Company,
which have contributed to the growth of a continuous improvement in the qualification of its
professionals and their active participation in an environment-focused and quality-centred
culture.

Publishing ACCIONA’s commitment to the environment forms part of the role the Company
plays in society by conveying the importance of preserving the surroundings, also from a
business perspective. For this reason, the Company communicates its strategies and policies
and its environmental and quality targets to all stakeholders: employees, clients, suppliers,
public administrations, the mass media and society in general.

During 2013, ACCIONA has undertaken specific initiatives with regard to the Management
of Environmental Risks. Thus, it has held an Environment Risk Audit consisting in the
identification and measurement of the main environmental risks of the 39 activities
considered. This analysis has enabled the risks to be prioritised by each specific activity and
will provide an individualised response for the monitoring and treatment of each one by
establishing the most appropriate prevention and abatement measures. In parallel, and at the
level of each operating centre, ACCIONA has also carried out in 2013 a Pilot Project on
Environmental Risk Management at representative facilities in each of the Divisions and
Lines of Business.

With regard to the management of environmental impacts, ACCIONA has a basic
management tool for the main environmental issues highlighted by the Divisions and Lines of
Business known as PLAN 10+, which has represented during 2013 the impiementation of 112
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specific solutions and the identification of 59 improvement measures aimed at preventing and
minimising the impacts associated with each of the issues identified.

Environment-related figures for 2013:

The environmental investments and expenditure effected by the ACCIONA Group in 2013
cover the following headings:

- Measures to minimise environmental impact
- Environmental research, development and innovation
- Environmental prevention

- Personnel
- Investments in plant, property and equipment to avoid impacts and protect
the environment

- Environment advice and consultancy
- Waste water treatment
- Others

In 2013, environmental expenditure amounted to EUR 80 million and the investments EUR
204 million (respectively EUR 70.2 million and EUR 1.1 million in 2012). Furthermore, the
construction, operation and maintenance of waste water treatment plants represented EUR
234.5 million.

The greatest efforts were made in the areas of waste water treatment, environmental
prevention and measures to minimise environmental impact.

Innovation

ACCIONA puts into practice the most advanced leading-edge techniques in the execution of
its projects, incorporating the most suitable technologies in each case. As a result, we have
improved our innovation figures year on year by focusing the R&D+I strategic lines on
Sustainable Transport and Infrastructure, Water Technologies and Renewable Energies.

The innovative solutions provided from all spheres of our business to solve our clients’
problems constitute one of the hallmarks of our Company. In this context, the joint efforts of
the R&D Centres, together with our technological teams, have enabled us to raise the
Innovation figure in 2013 to EUR 173.2 million, an increase with respect to EUR 166.2
million the previous year. The figure corresponding to innovation developed internationally
came to EUR 48.6 million, in line with the preceding year. This effort represents 28% of the
total of ACCIONA’s innovation.

Work has been carried out on 233 Projects in the 14 strategic research areas and in 10
countries: Canada, Australia, Brazil, USA, Colombia, Saudi Arabia, United Arab Emirates,
Italy, Poland and Spain.

Short-term Forecast

The global economy closed 2013 with a growth rate of 2.9% according to the IMF. The
growth prospects for 2014 remain optimistic, rising to 3.6% expected this year.
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The world’s economy has entered into a new transition phase. The advanced economies are
gradually becoming stronger while the emerging market economies have slowed down. In
consequence, these less mature markets are now facing two major challenges: the slowdown
in growth and the toughening of monetary policies world-wide. This situation is already
becoming evident in the weakening of their currencies.

In the United States, there is clearly still a very solid level of private demand but growth has
been slowed this year by excessive fiscal consolidation. On the other hand, the political
factors continue to generate uncertainty about the magnitude and nature of the fiscal
adjustment.

The general expectation is for the US economy to grow by about 3% in 2014, in comparison
with 2.1% in 2013. This scenario suggests that the FED will trim its liquidity injection
programme gradually back to zero by the second half of the year. Nonetheless, the FED is
expected to keep the short-term reference interest rate at its current level (0.0-0.25%)
throughout 2014,

In Europe, the financial markets are experiencing a period of consolidation of their
sustainability, to the point where it can be said that the euro area emerged from the recession
during the second quarter of 2013. The data show that this trend was maintained throughout
the third quarter, when ihe euro area enjoyed a score or so of basis points growth. Our
interpretation of these data is positive as this upturn is founded on an increased demand both
at home and abroad.

On the other hand, the improvement in business is not only driven by the countries at the heart
of Europe but is also spreading to its periphery, helping to eliminate the systemic risks
experienced in the course of the year.

Spain has confirmed that its economy is beginning to grow, thanks to exports and the
continuity of the process to reduce uncertainty, with a notable fall in the sovereign debt
spread. Growth is still not, however, strong enough to prevent the destruction of jobs., The
scenario remains the same and GDP is expected to grow by about 0.9% in 2014, thanks to the
stability of the financial conditions, the improvement in competitiveness and the early fruits
of the structural reforms.

In Japan, a moderate recovery is expected to result in growth of more than 1.4%, but it will
have to overcome two challenges to maintain this level: set an adequate pace for fiscal
consolidation and implement a credible suite of structural reforms to be able to achieve
sustainable growth.

In China, the improvement in the growth drivers has given rise to higher forecasts than were
predicted for 2013, climbing to as much as 7.6%, according to the IMF, for 2014.
Nonetheless, doubts persist about the sustainability of this growth in the medium and longer
term.

With respect to Latin America, some growth is expected and indicators suggest 3.1% in 2014
the external demand gradually improves in the wake of the recovery in the United States.
Even so, there is a strong degree of heterogeneity in the direction of the monetary policy
applied in the different countries in the region due to the varying inflationary pressures and
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cyclical positions. Since the start of the year, however, Latin America has suffered great
volatility on the foreign exchange markets, which might drive away potential investors due to
the mistrust this might cause. The reasons underlying these tensions stem from the Federal
Reserve’s tapering of its stimulus package.

As for the rest of the economies in the emerging markets, their growth has diminished
somewhat, in many cases more than was expected. This slowdown reflects a reduction in
potential product growth, to which is now added greater volatility assumed as a consequence
of a possible flight of capital, aspects to which the governments in these markets will have to

adapt.

To sum up, global activity in 2014 is expected to see moderate strengthening, despite the fact
that, on balance, most prospects are still pointing downward. According to forecasts, the main
thrust will come from the advanced economies, and their production will expand at a rate of
about 2% in 2014, up by 75% on 2013. This increase will be due to the strengthening of the
US economy, a much milder fiscal contraction and flexible monetary conditions.

Annual Corporate Governance Report

The Annual Corporate Governance Report is available in its entirety on the web site of the
National Securities Market Commission (www.cnm.es) and on the Company’s web page

(www.acciona.es).

In addition, the Annual Corporate Governance Report will be notified to the National
Securities Market Commission as a Materia! Event.

CERTIFICATION CERTIFICACION

Edward EWING, as Official Translator of Don Edward EWING, Intérprete Jurado de
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Spanish.
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For the purposes of Royal Decree 1,362 dated October 19th, 2007, (art. 8.1 b), the Directors of
Acciona, S.A., make the following declaration on their own responsibility:

As far as they are aware, the Consolidated Annual Accounts drawn up in accordance with the
applicable accounting principles offer a true and fair view of the equity, financial situation and results
of the Company, and the management report includes a faithful analysis of the progress and results
of the business and the companies included with the consolidation group taken as a whole, together
with a description of the main risks and uncertainties faced.

THIS NOTE is added to state for the record that the Directors of ACCIONA, S.A. are aware of the
entire contents of the Annual Accounts and the Management Report corresponding to the 2013
financial year of Acciona, S.A. and subsidiaries (the Consolidated Group) submitted to the Board of
Directors and formalized by the same at its session held on February 25th, 2014, and printed on 186
sheets, all with the paraph of the Secretary and the stamp of the Company and numbered as follows:

811 = RN T T Page 1

LOBEOINE oo osmmmmssmmmmisismsemaimmwsmibr sl Pages 2 and 3
Consolidated Balance Sheet .................... T Page 4

Conselidated Income Statementi .. wimesismsim s e w e Page 5

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ......................... Page 6

Total Statement of Changes in the Consolidated Equity ........................ Pages 7 and 8
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows......................ocovvivnene Page 9

Notes to the- Consolidated Accounts..comssimpammarsmininmemmms Page 10 to Page 154

Consolidated Management Report...............cccooeiiioeoeeoee o Page 155 to Page 186

In witness of their agreement herewith, all of the members of the Board of Directors now sign below:

Mr. José Manuel Entrecanales Domecq Mr. Juan Ignacio Entrecanales Franco
President 1st Vice-President

Mr. Valentin Montoya Moya Mr. Javier Entrecanales Franco

Member Member
Mr. Juan Carlos Garay Ibargaray Ms. Consuelo Crespo Bofill
Member Member

Mr. Carlos Espinosa de los Monteros y
Bernaldo de Quiros
Member

Ms. Sol Daurella Comadran
Member

Ms. Belén Villalonga Morenés Mr. Daniel Entrecanales Domecq

Member Member
Mr. Jaime Castellanos Borrego Mr. Fernando Rodés Vila
Member Member
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Ms. Miriam Gonzalez Durantez
Member

CERTIFICATION CERTIFICACION

Edward EWING, as Official Translator of Spanish and Don Edward EWING, Intérprete Jurado de inglés,
English, hereby certifies that the foregoing text is atrue  certifica que la que antecede es traduccién fiel y

and complete translation in English of its original in completa al inglés de un documento redactado en
Spanish. lengua espafiola.
In Collado Villalba, on April 5th, 2014. En Collado Villalba, a cinco de abril de 2014.

EDWARD EWING - INTERPRETE JURADO

Calle Francisco Madariaga, 2 - 4°C / 28017 MADRID
& 918 514 253 - @: edward@sande.es

Prepared by Edward EWING Page 2 of 2 April 5th, 2014



